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Re: 	 Application of SBA Broadband Services, Inc. for Authority to 

Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Service within the 
State of Florida 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Enclosed please find an original and six (6) copies of the application of SBA Broadband 
Services, Inc. for authority to provide interexchange telecommunications services within the 
State of Florida. Also transmitted herewith, please find an additional copy of this filing. Please 
date-stamp this copy and return it in the self-addressed stamped envelope enclosed for this 
purpose. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact the 
undersigned. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~ata E. Sheppard 
Counsel for SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 
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** FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION ** 

DIVISION OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

BUREAU OF CERTIFICATION AND SERVICE EVALUATION 


APPLICATION FORM 

for 


AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE 

INTEREXCHANGE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE 

BETWEEN POINTS WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 


Instructions: 


• 	 This form is used as an application for an original certificate and for approval of the 
assignment or transfer of an existing certificate. In the case of an assignment or transfer, 
the information provided shall be for the assignee or transferee (See Appendix A) . 

• 	 Print or type all responses to each item requested in the application and appendices. If an 
item is not applicable, please explain why. 

• 	 Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted space. 

• 	 Once completed, submit the original and six (6) copies of this form along with a non­
refundable application fee of $250.00 to : 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Records and Reporting 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6770 

• 	 If you have questions about completing the form, contact: 

Florida Public Service Commission 
Division of Telecommunications 
Bureau of Certification and Service Evaluation 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 
(850) 413-6600 

FORM PSCICMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470. 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473,25-24.480(2) 




APPLICATION 


1. This is an application for (check one): 

( " ) Original certificate (new company). 

( ) 	Approval of transfer of existing certificate: Example, a non-
certificated company purchases an existing company and desires to 
retain the original certificate of authority. 

( ) 	 Approval of assignment of existing certificate: Example, a certified 
company purchases an existing company and desires to retain the 
certificate of authority of that company rather than apply for a new 
certificate. 

( ) 	 Approval of transfer of control: Example, a company purchases 51 % 
of a certified company. The Commission must approve the new 
controlling entity. 

2. 	 Name of company: 

SBA Broadband Services, Inc. ("SBA") 

3. 	 Name under which the applicant will do business (fictitious name, etc.): 

SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 

4. 	 Official mailing address (including street name & number, post office box, 
city, state, zip code): 

SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 

One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

Boca Raton, FL 33486 


5. 	 Florida address (including street name & number, post office box, city, state, 
zip code): 

See Answer No.4 

FORM PSClCMU 31 (12/96) 

Hequired by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




6. 	 Select what type of business your company will be conducting (check all that 
apply): 

(x) 	 Facilities based carrier - company owns and operates or plans to own 
and operate telecommunications switches and transmission facilities in 
Florida. l 

( ) 	 Operator Service Provider - company provides or plans to provide 
alternative operator services for IXCs; or toll operator services to call 
aggregator locations; or clearinghouse services to bill such calls. 

() 	 Reseller - company has or plans to have one or more switches but 
primarily leases the transmission facilities of other carriers. Bills its own 
customer base for services used. 

( ) 	 Switchless Rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities 
but may have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk 
discounts from underlying carrier. Rebills end users at a rate above its 
discount but generally below the rate end users would pay for 
un aggregated traffic. 

( ) 	 Switchless Rebiller - company has no switch or transmission facilities 
but may have a billing computer. Aggregates traffic to obtain bulk 
discounts from underlying carrier. 

( ) 	 Multi-Location Discount Aggregator - company contracts with 
unaffiliated entities to obtain bulk/volume discounts under multi-location 
discount plans from certain underlying carriers. Then offers the resold 
service by enrolling unaffiliated customers. 

( ) 	 Prepaid Debit Card Provider - any person or entity that purchases 800 
access from an underlying carrier or unaffiliated entity for use with 
prepaid debit card service and/or encodes the cards with personal 
identification numbers. 

7. Structure of organization: 

( ) Individual ( --.j) Corporation 

( ) Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership 

( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership 

( ) Other 


SEA will not operate any switches in Florida; only transmission facilities. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (J2/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




8. If individual, provide: 

Name: 


Title: 


Address: 


City/State/Zip: 


Telephone No.: Fax No.: 


Internet E-Mail Address: 


Internet Website Address: 


9. 	 If incorporated in Florida, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) 	 The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number. 
P00000079825 

10. 	 If foreign corporation, provide proof of authority to operate in Florida: 

(a) 	 The Florida Secretary of State corporate registration number: 

Not applicable. 

11. 	 If using fictitious name-d/b/a, provide proof of compliance with fictitious name 
statute (Chapter 865.09, FS) to operate in Florida: 

(a) 	 The Florida Secretary of State fictitious name registration number: 

Not applicable. 

12. 	 If a limited liability partnership, provide proof of registration to operate in 
Florida: 

(a) 	 The Florida Secretary of State registration number: 


Not applicable. 


FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Hequired by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24·470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




13. 	 If a partnership, provide name, title and address of all partners and a copy of the 
partnership agreement. 

Name: 

Title: 

Address: 

City/State/Zip: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 

Internet E-Mail Address: 


Internet Website Address: 


14. 	 If a foreign limited partnership, provide proof of compliance with the foreign 
limited partnership statute (Chapter 620.169, FS), if applicable. 

(a) 	 The Florida registration number: 


Not applicable. 


15. 	 Provide F.E.1. Number (if applicable): 65-1036222 

16. 	 Provide the following (if applicable): 

(a) Will the name of your company appear on the bill for your services? 

(x) Yes ( ) No 

(b) 	 If not, who will bill for your services? 

Name: 

Address: 

CityIS tate/Zi p: 

Telephone No.: Fax No.: 


(c) 	 How is this information provided? 

The Company's name, address and toll-free number will appear on the bill 
insert with every customer bill. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




17. Who will receive bills for your service? 

( ) Residential Customers (--./) Business Customers 
( ) PATs providers ( ) PATs station end-users 
( ) Hotels & Motels ( ) Hotel and Motel guests 
( ) Universities ( ) Universities dormitory residents 
(-V) Other (specify) CLECs, ISPs 

18. Who will serve as liaison to the Commission with regard to the following? 

(a) The application: 


Name: Steven 1. Hamrick, Esq. 


Title: Attorney - Fleischman and Walsh, L.L.P. 


Address: 1400 Sixteenth Street, N.W. - Suite 600 


City/State/Zip: Washington, DC 20036 


Telephone No.: (202) 939-7900 Fax No.: (202) 588-0095 


Internet E-Mail Address: shamrick@fw-Iaw.com 


Internet Website Address: www.fw-Iaw.com 


(b) Official point of contact for the ongoing operations of the company: 


Name: John S. Stevens, P.E. 


Title: Chief Technical Officer 


Address: SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 

One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

City/State/Zip: Boca Raton, FL 33486 

Telephone No.: (561) 995-7670 Fax No.: (561) 995-7626 

Internet E-mail Address:jstevens@sbasite.com 

Internet Website Address: http://www.sbasite.comlservices _ broadband.cfm 

FORM PSC/CMV 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.47J, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 


http://www.sbasite.comlservices
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(c) ComplaintslInquiries from customers: 


Name: John S. Stevens, P.E. 


Title: Chief Technical Officer 


Address: SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 

One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

City/State/Zip: Boca Raton, FL 33486 

Telephone: (561) 995-7670 Fax No.: (561) 995-7626 

Internet E-mail Address:jstevens@sbasite.com 

Internet Website Address: http ://www.sbasite.comlservices _ broadband.cfm 

19. 	 List the states in which the applicant: 

(a) has operated as an interexchange telecommunications company. 

SBA has not operated as an interexchange telecommunications company 
in any state. 

(b) 	 has applications pending to be certificated as an interexchange 
telecommunications company. 

SBA will have applications to be certified as an interexchange 
telecommunications company pending in: Alabama; Arizona; Georgia; 
Indiana; Missouri; North Carolina; New Jersey; New York; Oregon; 
Pennsylvania; Puerto Rico; South Carolina; Virginia; and Texas. 

(c) is certificated to operate as an interexchange telecommunications 
company. 

SBA is certified to operate as an interexchange telecommunications 
company in Wisconsin. 

(d) 	 has been denied authority to operate as an interexchange 
telecommunications company and the circumstances involved. 

SBA has not been denied authority to operate as an interexchange 
telecommunications company in any state. 

(e) 	 has had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of 
telecommunications statutes and the circumstances involved. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 
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SBA has not had regulatory penalties imposed for violations of 
telecommunications statutes by any state. 

(f) 	 has been involved in civil court proceedings with an interexchange 
carrier, local exchange company or other telecommunications entity, 
and the circumstances involved. 

SBA has never been involved in civil court proceedings with an 
interexchange carrier, local exchange company or other 
telecommunications company. 

20. 	 Indicate if any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders 
have previously been: 

(a) 	 adjusted bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any 
felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may result from 
pending proceedings. Provide explanation. 

None of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders of SBA have 
previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent, or found guilty of any 
felony or of any crime, nor will such actions result from pending proceedings. 

(b) 	 an officer, director, partner or stockholder in any other Florida 
certificated telephone company. If yes, give name of company and 
relationship. If no longer associated with company, give reason why 
not. 

None of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest stockholders of SBA have 
previously been officers, directors, partners or stockholders in any other Florida 
certificated telephone company. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




21. 	 The applicant will provide the following interexchange carrier services 
(check all that apply): 

MTS with distance sensitive per minute rates 
Method of access is FGA 

Method of access is FGB 

Method of access is FGD 

Method of access is 800 


MTS with route specific rates per minute 
Method of access is FGA 

Method of access is FGB 

Method of access is FGD 

Method of access is 800 


MTS with statewide flat rates per minute (i.e. not distance sensitive) 
Method of access is FGA 

Method of access is FGB 

Method of access is FGD 

Method of access is 800 


MTS for pay telephone service providers 

Block-of-time calling plan (reach out Florida, Ring America, etc.). 

800 Service (toll-free) 

WATS type service (bulk or volume discount) 
Method of access is via dedicated facilities 
Method of access is via switched facilities 

X Private line services (Channel Services) 

(For ex. 1.544 Mbs., DS-3, etc.) 

* SBA will be providing Tl, T3 and OC-3 service. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




Travel Service 

Method of access is 950 

Method of access is 800 


900 services 

Operator Services 
Available to presubscribed customers 
Available to non-presubscribed customers (for example to patrons of 
hotels, students in universities, patients in hospitals. 
Available to inmates 

Services included are: 

Station assistance 

Person to Person assistance 

Directory assistance 

Operator velify and interrupt 

Conference Calling 


22. 	 Please submit the proposed tariff under which the company plans to begin 
operation. Use the format required by Commission Rule 25-24.485 
(example enclosed). 

See Exhibit C. 

23. Submit the following: 

A. Financial capability. 

The application should contain the applicant's audited financial statements for 
the most recent 3 years. If the applicant does not have audited financial 
statements, it shall so be stated. 

The unaudited financial statements should be signed by the applicant's chief 
executive officer and chief financial officer affirming that the financial statements 
are true and correct and should include: 

1. the balance sheet; 
2. income statement; and 
3. statement of retained earnings. 

NOTE: This documentation may include, but is not limited to, financial statements, a 
projected profit and loss statement, credit references, credit bureau reports, and 
descriptions ofbusiness relationships with financial institutions. 

FORM PSCICMU 31 (12196) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




Further, the following (which includes supporting documentation) should be 
provided: 

1. 	 written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to provide the requested service in the geographic area 
proposed to be served. 

2. 	 written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to maintain the requested service. 

3. 	 written explanation that the applicant has sufficient financial 
capability to meet its lease or ownership obligations. 

See Exhibit A. 

B. 	 Managerial capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient managerial experiences of 
each. 

See Exhibit B for a description of SBA's management team. 

C. 	 Technical capability: give resumes of employees/officers of the 
company that would indicate sufficient technical experiences or 
indicate what company has been contracted to conduct technical 
maintenance. 

See Exhibit B for the resumes of SBA's technical personnel. 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471 , and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




** APPLICANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT STATEMENT** 

1. 	 REGULATORY ASSESSMENT FEE: I understand that all telephone 
companies must pay a regu latory assessment fee in the amount of .15 of one 
percent of gross operating revenue derived from intrastate business. Regardless 
ofthe gross operating revenue ofa company, a minimum annual fee of$50 is 
required. 

1. 	 GROSS RECEIPTS TAX: I understand that all telephone companies must pay a 
gross receipts tax of two and one-half percent on all intra and interstate business. 

2. 	 SALES TAX: I understand that a seven percent sales tax must be paid on intra 
and interstate revenues. 

3. 	 APPLICATION FEE: I understand that a non-refundable application fee of 
$250.00 must be submitted with the application. 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Sign ture 	 Date 

(561) 995-7670 
Telephone No. 

Address: SBA Broadband Services, Inc. (561) 995-7626 
One Town Center Road Fax No. 
Third Floor 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12196) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471 , and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




** APPENDIX B ** 

CUSTOMER DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE PAYMENTS 

A statement of how the Commission can be assured of the security of the 
customer's deposits and advance payments may be provided in one of the following ways 
(applicant, please check one) : 

( X ) 	 The applicant will not collect deposits nor will it collect payments for 
service more than one month in advance. 

( ) 	 The applicant intends to collect deposits and/or advance payments for 
more than one month's service and will file and maintain a surety bond 
with the Commission in an amount equal to the current balance of deposits 
and advance payments in excess of one month. (The bond must 
accompany the application.) 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

cd 1'2.. )(;11 

DateSig~ 
(561) 995-7670 
Telephone No. 

Address: SBA Broadband Services, Inc. (561) 995-7626 
One Town Center Road Fax No. 
Third Floor 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

FORi"l PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




** APPENDIX C ** 

CURRENT FLORIDA INTRASTATE SERVICES 

Applicant has ( ) or has not ( x) previously provided intrastate telecommunications in 

Florida. 


If the answer is yes, fully describe the following: 


a) What services have been provided and when did these services begin? 

b) If the services are not currently offered, when were they discontinued? 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 


Si ature 	 Date 

(561) 995-7670 
Telephone No. 

Address: 	 SBA Broadband Services, Inc. (561) 995-7626 
One Town Center Road Fax No. 
Third Floor 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

FORM PSC/CMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




** APPENDIX D ** 

AFFIDAVIT 

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to the accuracy of the 
information contained in this application and attached documents and that the applicant 
has the technical expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to provide 
interexchange telecommunications company service in the State of Florida. I have read 
the foregoing and declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information is 
true and correct. I attest that I have the authority to sign on behalf of my company and 
agree to comply, now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and orders. 

Further, I am aware that, pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida Statutes, "Whoever 
knowingly makes a false statement in writing with the intent to mislead a public 
servant in the performance of his official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of 
the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083." 

UTILITY OFFICIAL: 

Date 

(561) 995-7670 
Telephone No. 

Address: SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 
One Town Center Road 
Third Floor 
Boca Raton, FL 33486 

(561) 995-7626 
Fax No. 

FORM PSCfCMU 31 (12/96) 

Required by Commission Rule Nos. 25.24-470, 

25-24.471, and 25-24.473, 25-24.480(2) 




EXHIBIT A - FINANCIAL 




EXHIBIT A - FINANCIAL 


SBA is financially qualified to provide telecommunications services in Florida. 

Through its parent company, SBA, Inc., SBA has access to the financing and capital 

necessary to conduct its telecommunications operations in Florida as specified in this 

application. SBA attaches hereto a copy of SBA, Inc. 's most recent 10-K as filed with 

the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Thus, SBA possesses adequate resources to construct and maintain its 

telecommunications system and meet any applicable lease or ownership obligations for 

its telecommunications network in Florida. 
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15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 
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For the transition period from to 

Commission file number: 0()()"30UO 

SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION 

(Exact name of Registrant IL~ 'PKifitci in ils charter) 

Florida 65-0716501 
(State or other jurisdiction (I.R.s. Employer 

of Incorporation or organization) Identification No.) 

One Town Center Road 33486 

Boca Raton, Florida (Zip Code) 


(Add~ss of principal txeculive ollkes) 


Registrant's telephone number. including area code: 
(561) 995-7670 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 

None 


Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 

Class A common stock $.01 par value 


Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has fi led all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 
15( d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the 
Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 
days. Yes ~ No 0 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent fil ers pursuant to hem 405 of Regulation S-K is not 
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or 
information sta tements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form IO-K or any amendment to this 
Form 1O-K. 0 

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was approximately 
$761.1 million as of March 15,2001. 

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant's common stock (as of March 15,2(01): 

Class A Common Stock-4I,483,625 sbares 


Class B Common Stock- 5,455,595 shares 
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proxy statement will be tiled no later than 120 days after the close of the Registrant's fiscal year ended 
December 31. 2000, are hereby incorporated by reference in Part m of this Annual Repon on Form IO-K. 



PART I 

ITEM I. BUSINESS 

General 

We are a leading independent owner and operator of wireless communications towers in the United States. 
We generate revenues from our two primary businesses. site leasing and site development In our site leasing 
business. we lease antenna space on towers and other structures that we own or manage for others. The towers 
that we own have either been built by us at the request of a wireless carrier or built or acquired based on our 
own initiative. As of December 31,2000, we owned or controlled 2,390 towers and had agreements to acquire 
677 towers. We also had carrier directives to build approximately 600 additional towers and had. in various 
phases of development. over 1,000 locations which we had internally identified as a desirable location on which 
to build a tower. The following chart shows the number of towers we constructed for our own account and the 
number of towers we acquired during the periods indicated: 

Years ended December 31, 

~ 1999 1998 1997 Total 

Towers constructed . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 779 438 310 15 1.542 
Towers acquired ........ ... .......... .. . . .. . 448 231 133 36 848 

In our site development business, we offer wireless service providers assistance in developing their own 
networks, including designing a network with full signal coverage. Identifying and acquiring locations to place 
their antennas, obtaining zoning approvals, building towers when necessary and installing their antennas. Since 
our founding in 1989, we have participated in the development of more than 15,000 antenna sites in 49 of the 
51 major wireless markets in the United States. 

Business Strategy 

Our primary sttategy is to expand the scope of our position as a leading owner and operator of wireless 
communications towers and provider of site development services. Key elements of our strategy include: 

Maximizing Use o/Tower Capacity. We be heve that many of our towers have significant capacity available 
for antenna space leasing and that increased use of our owned towers can be achieved at a low incremental COSL 

We generaUy construct our towers to accommodalt' mUltiple tenants in addition to the anchor tenant, and a 
substantial majority of our towers are hig h capacll ~ lattice or guyed towers. We actively market space on our 
own towers through our internal sa1es force . 

Developing New Towers That We Will O"'n and Operate. As wireless service providers increasingly 
outsource their investtnent in, and ownership of. lower~ . we can meet their outsourcing needs through our build­
to-suit programs. We can also independently idenufy attractive locations for new towers and strategically 
complete pre.consttllction procedures necessary to secure tower sites in advance of customer demand. As of 
December 31, 2000, we were in varying stages of development on over 1,000 additional sites which we believe 
will be attractive locations for strategic new tower construction. In 2000, we built 779 towers for our own 
account. 

Acquiring Existing Towers. We believe that our existing national field organization gives us a competitive 
advantage in identifying opportunities for the acquisition of existing towers. Our strategy is to acquire towers 
that can service multiple tenants and are attractive to wireless service providers based on their location, beight 
and available capacity. While we generally target smaller acquisitions, we believe that there are many potential 
acquisition candidates and that the number of towers available for purcbase will remain substantial over the next 
three to five years as cellular, pes and other wireless service providers continue to divest their tower holdings. 
We have strict valuation criteria and believe thaI certain tower properties can be purchased at price levels which 
will allow us to attain our financial targets. In 2000, we acquired 448 towers. As of December 31, 2000, we had 
letters of intent or definitive agreements to acquire 677 towers in 33 separate ttansactions for an aggregate 
purchase price of approximately $218.5 million. 



Capturing Other Revenues That Flow From our Tower Ownership. Tenants who lease antenna space on 
our towers need a variety of additional services in connection with their operations at the tower site. These 
services include installation, maintenance and upgrading of radio transmission equipment. antelUlas, cabling and 
other connection equipment, electricity, backhaul, (which is provided generally by telephone lines or a 
microwave antenna network), equipment shelters, data collection and network monitoring. Tenants often 
outsource the performance of some or all of these required services to third parties, including us. Because of our 
ownership of the tower, our control of the tower site and our experience and capabilities in providing these types 
of services, we believe that we are well positioned, and intend, to perform more of these services and capture the 
related revenue. 

Executing on a Local Basis. We believe that substantially all of what we do is best done locally, given tbe 
narure of towers as location specific communications facilities. We believe that to be successful in tower building, 
acquisition and leasing, and site acquisition, zoning and construction, we must have strong local presences in the 
markets we serve. 

Building on Strong Relationships with Major Wireless Service Providers. We are well-positioned to be a 
preferred partner in build-to-suit programs, site development projects and tower space leasing because of our 
strong relationships with wireless service and other telecommunications providers and our proven operating 
experience. In many cases, the personnel awarding site development projects for wireless service providers are 
the same persolUlel who make decisions with respect to build-ta-suit programs. We continually market our build­
ta-suit programs to our site development service customers. 

Maintaining our Expertise in Site Development Services. We continue to perfonn an array of site 
development services for wireless service and other telecommunications providers across the United States. We 
have a broad national field organization that allows us to identify and participate in site development projects 
across the country and that gives us a knowledge of local markets and strong customer relationships with wireless 
service and other telecommunications providers. We believe our site development experience provides us with a 
competitive advantage in selecting the best locations for tower ownershiP: 

Capitalizjng on our Management Experience. Our management team bas extensive experience in site 
leasing and site development services. Management believes that its industry expertise and strong relationships 
with wireless carriers will allow us to continue to build and acquire a high quality portfolio of towers. Steven E. 
Bernstein, our Chief Executive Officer, has more than 13 years of experience in the wireless communications 
industry and our other officers have an average of approximately ten years of experience in this industry. In 
addition, management is highly motivated to produce strong operating results based on their significant equity 
ownership. 

Company Services 

We provide our services on a local basis, through regional offices, territory offices and project offices, which 
are opened and closed on a project by project basis. Operationally. we are divided into four regions throughout 
the United States, run by regional vice presidents. Each region is divided into two or more sub-regions run by 
general managers and we have further divided each sub-region into three to six geograpbic territories run by 
territory managers. Within each territory manager's geographic area of responsibility he or she is responsible for 
all operations. including hiring employees and opening or closing project offices. and a substantial portion of the 
sales in such area. 

Our executive, corporate development, accounting. finance, human resources, legal and regulatory, 
information technology departments, site administration personnel, and our network operations center are located 
in our headquarters in Boca Raton, Florida. We also have in our Boca Raton office certain sales, new tower build 
suppon., and tower maintenance personnel. 
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Site Leasing Business 

The primary focus of our site leasing business is the leasing of antenna space on our multi-tenant towers to 
a variety of wireless service providers under long-tenn lease contracts. We lease antenna space on: 

the towers we construct through carrier directives under build-to-suit programs; 

existing towers we acquire; 

the towers we construct on locations we have selected which we call "strategic" new tower builds: 
and 


towers we lease, sublease and/or manage for third parties. 


We lease and sublease antenna space on our towers to a variety of wireless service providers. We own or 
lease the ground under these towers from third parties, and in some cases manage communication sites for third 
parties in excbange for a percentage of the revenues or tower casb flow. We determine tower cash flow by 
subtracting from gross tenant revenues the direct expenses associated with operating the tower, such as ground 
lease payments, real estate taxes, utilities, insurance and maintenance. The majority of our owned or controlled 
towers we built through build·~suit programs. In our build-ta-suit programs, we use some or all of the five 
phases of our site development business as we would when providing site development services to a third party. 

After a tower bas been constructed, we lease antenna space on Ibe tower. We generally receive monthly 
lease payments from customers payable under written antenna site leases. The majority of our outstanding 
customer leases, and the new leases we typically enter into, have original terms of five years (with four or five 
renewal periods of five years each) and usually provide for annual or periodic price increases. Monthly lease 
pricing varies with the number and type of antenna installed on a communication site. We also provide a 
lease/sublease service as part of our site leasing business whereby we lease space on a tower and sublease the 
space to a wireless service provider. 

We believe that the site leasing portion of our business bas significant potential for growth. and we intend 
to expand our site leasing business through increasing activity from our new tower builds and selective 
acquisitions. Our tower portfolio has continued to grow from 51 at year-end 1997 to 494 in 1998 to 1,163 in 
1999 to 2,390 in 2000. As of December 31 , 2000 we bad 5.548 tenants. 

(continued on following page) 
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The following table indicates the number of our acquired and built towers on a state by state basis as of 
December 31 . 2000: 

New 

% of 
Builds Acquired ThtaI Total

Location of Towers 


Georgia .............. . .... . .... . . .. . . ............. . . 200 46 246 10.3 

Tennessee . . . ... ... . .. ... .. .. . . ... ... .... . .......... . 123 58 181 7.6 

North Carolina . .... . ...... . . .. ..... .. . . ......... .. ... . 168 4 172 7.2 

Texas ..... . .... ... .. .. ..... .. ... ... .. . ............ . 38 134 172 7.2 

Ohio ......... .. ..... .. ..... ..... .. ............. . . . . 86 61 147 6.2 

South Carolina . ... .. . . . .. .. ...... .. ............ . ..... . 117 5 122 5.1 

Florida .. . . . ....... . .. .. ..... .. . .. . . ...... . ........ . 44 75 119 5.0 

Louisiana . ........ , .. .... . .. .. . .... . . . ......... .. ... . 12 89 101 4.2 

Indiana ........ . ... . ....... ................ . .. ..... . 85 5 90 3.8 

New york . .... . ..... .. ... .. ... . .......... .. ... ..... . 42 48 90 3.8 

Wisconsin .... .... . .. .. .. . .. . ... . ...... . .. .... ... ... . 79 10 89 3.7 

Pennsylvania .. .... ... .... ...... ... ... .. ... .... ... ... . 45 31 76 3.2 

Mississippi ........ . .......... . ...... .. ..... ... . ... . . 38 34 72 3.0 

Alabama .... . .. . .. . ......... . . . .. ... .... ..... .. .. .. . 29 32 61 2.6 

Connecticut . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49 9 58 2.4 

Oklahoma .. . .. ................. .... ... .... . .. .... .. . 30 27 57 2.4 

Vtrginia ....... ................. .... ... .... .. ... .... . 52 4 56 2.3 

Arizona .. . ... . . .. .. . ..... . .................. .. . .. .. . 42 I 43 1.8 

Missouri . .......... . ...... .... ... ... . ... .... ....... . 15 20 35 1.5 

Michigan . ......... . ...... . . ... .. . .... . .... .... ..... . 32 2 34 1.4 

Kansas .. .. . . .. . ..... .... .... . ..... .... . .. .. . .. .... . 6 27 33 1.4 

New Hampshire ... . ...... .. ... .. . . ..... .. ........ . ... . 30 2 32 1.3 

Massachusetts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 7 30 1.3 

Kentucky . ......... .. ... .... . .. .... .... . ............ . 16 13 29 1.2 

Arkansas . .. .. ..... .. . .. .... . .. . . .. ........ . ....... . . 15 12 27 1.I 

Oregon ... . .. .. . .. ... .. ....... .. .. . , .. . ......... ... . 22 3 25 1.0 

Illinois .. ... .... ... .... .. . .... ......... . ......... ... . 12 II 23 1.0 

Minnesota . . .... ..... .. ... . . ' . ' . ............. .. . ..... . 6 17 23 1.0 

California .. .. .. . . ... .. . ... . .. .............. .... . ... . 8 10 18 
 * 
Colorado ..... .. .. . .. . .. " ................... .... ... . . 7 10 17 
 * 
West Virginia . .. . .. ... . .. ... ...... ... .... ... ... .. . . .. . 7 10 17 * 
Iowa ... .... . .. .... . .. .. . .......... . .... . ...... .. .. . 7 8 15 * 
Delaware .... ..... .. .. . . . . . ...... . .... . .... . .. .... .. . 14 0 14 * 
New Mexico . ... . . .. ..... .. .. .. . . ...... .... ..... .. .. . 4 8 12 
 '" 
Washington .... ... .... ............ .. ... ...... . . . . . . . . 6 3 9 * 

Maryland .. . ... . . . . . ... " ...... .. . .. . .... .... ... .... . 7 0 7 
 * 
Nebraska ...... . .... ... .... . .... . . .... .. . .. .... ... .. . 6 I 7 * 
Wyoming .... . . . . .. ..... . ... . . . .......... . . .... ..... . 6 I 7 * 

South Dakota . .. .. ....... .. .. . .. ..... .. ....... .. ..... . 2 3 5 
 * 
Utah .. ..................... .. .... .. .. . ......... . . . . 2 3 5 
 * 
Idaho . ... . . .. ... . .... .... . .... .. . . . .. . .... . .... ... . . 3 4
I '" 
New Jersey . ... ..... . ... .. . ... . .. . ... . . .. .. .. .. . .... . 3 I 4 
 '" 
Maine . .... ............ .... .. . .. . . . .. . ... . " .. .. . . . . 2 0 2 
 * 
Rhode Island .. . .. .... .. .. . .. . . .. . . . . ..... . ..... .. . .. . 2 0 2 
 * 
North Dakota .. ..... ....... .. .... . .. . . . .. .. .. .. . ..... . o 1 
 '" 
Vennont . .... ..... .. .. . . . .. .. . . .. . . . . . .... . .. ... ... . o 1 
 * 

Total ... , .. ... .... , ... ... .. , .. . .. . ... .. ..... ... . 1,542 848 2,390 100% 

* Less than 1%. 
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Build-to-Suit Programs 

Under a build-to-suit program, we build a tower for a wireless service provider on a location of their 
direction. We retain ownership of the tower and the exclusive right to co-locate additional tenants on the tower. 
Many wireless service providers are choosing the build-to-suit option as an alternative to tower ownership, and 
we believe that this outsourcing trend is likely to continue. We believe that we have one of the largest number of 
non-binding build-to-suit mandates from wireless service providers in the industry. As of December 31, 2000, 
we had carrier directives to build approximately 600 additional towers under build-to-suit programs for carriers. 
Under our build-to-suit programs, we have built towers for many carriers, including Alamosa PCS, AT&T 
Wireless. Cingular, Georgia PeS, GTE. Horizon PeS, LEAP Wireless, Nextel . PrimeCo PCS. Sprint PeS, 
TeleCorp PeS, Tritel PeS and VoiceStream. In selling our build-to-suit programs, our personnel use their existing 
relationships in the wireless communications industry to target wireless service providers interested in 
outsourcing their network build-out. We make proposals for build-to-suit towers in response to competitive bids 
or specific requests and in circumstances where we believe the provider would have an interest in build-to-suit 
towers. We price build to suit agreements after baving made the determination that the expected tower cash flow 
from those towers will produce a targeted return on investment after a certain period of time. Although the tenns 
vary from proposal to proposal. we typically sign a five-year lease agreement with the anchor tenant. with four 
or five additional five-year renewal periods at the option of the lessee. While the proposed monthly rent also 
varies, broadband customers such as PCS. cellular or ESMR generally pay more than the aggregate monthly rent 
paid by paging or other narrowband customers. In addition, anchor tenants will typically pay lower monthly rents 
than subsequent tenants of a similar type service. In some cases, an anchor tenant may also enjoy an introductory 
lease rate for a period of time. If a wireless provider accepts the terms of the proposal submitted by us, the 
provider will award us a non-binding mandate to pursue specific sites. Based on the Stanls of the geographic 
areas we have been given a mandate to pursue, we will perfonn due diligence investigations for a designated 
period during which time we will analyze the site based on a number of factors, including co-location 
opportunities, zoning and permitting issues, economic potential of the site, difficulty of constructing a multi­
tenant tower and remoteness. of the site. These mandates are generally non-binding agreements and either party 
may terminate the mandate at any time. If, after our due diligence investigation during the mandate, we conclude 
that it is economicalJy feasible to construct the towers requested by the wireless service provider, we will eoter 
into an antenna site lease agreement with the provider. In certain limited circumstances we are contractually 
obligated to build a tower for the carrier regardless of the outcome of our due diligence investigation. We have 
negotiated several master build-to-suit agreements, including antenna site lease terms, with providers in specific 
markets. The antenna site lease agreements typically provide that all obligations are conditioned on our receiving 
all necessary zoning approvals where zoning remains to be obtained. Certain of the antenna site lease agreements 
contain penalty or forfeiture provisions in the event the tower is not completed within specified time periods. 

Strategic Siting 

Our strategic siting activities focus on developing new towers in locations chosen by us. instead of by an 
anchor tenant in a build-la-suit program. As of December 31, 2000, of our total 779 new builds, 284 were 
through our strategic siting programs, and we expect this number to grow in the future. We try to identify 
attractive locations for new towers and complete pre-construction procedures necessary to secure the site in 
advance of demand from a specific customer. We may invest in the zoning and permitting of these strategic sites, 
and even the construction of the towers, when we have not yet obtained an anchor tenant for competitive or 
zoning reasons. However, we generally will not build a tower on a strategic site until we have signed a lease 
with a tenant. 

Acquisitions 

We actively pursue acquisitions of towers. Our acquIsItIon strategy, like our new build strategy, is 
financially-oriented as opposed to geographically or customer-oriented. OUf goal is to acquire towers that have 
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an initial or planned capital investment not exceeding a targeted multiple of expected tower cash flow from the 
acquired towers after a certain period of time. We determine tower cash flow by subtracting from gross tenant 
revenues the direct expenses associated with operating the tower, such as ground lease payments, real estate 
taxes, utilities, insurance and maintenance. Our dedicated mergers and acquisitions personnel direct our 
acquisition activities and are responsible for identification, negotiation, documentation and consummation of 
acquisition opportunities, as well as the coordination and management of independent advisors and consultants 
retained by us from time to time in connection with acquisitions. In addition to our mergers and acquisitions 
personnel, we rely on our national employee base to identify potential acquisitions. Our field em ployees identify 
generally smaller acquisition prospects, involving one to ten towers. We often have an exclusive opportunity to 
structure and consummate a transaction with the potential seller. We believe that our field employees and 
knowledge of potential acquisition candidates gained through our substantial site development business 
experience provide us with a competitive advantage. This information permits us to identify and consummate 
acquisitions on generally more favorable terms than would be available to us through competitively-bid or 
brokered acquisition prospects. As is the case with our new tower builds, our focus is to acquire multi-tenant 
towers with under-used capacity in locations that We believe will be attractive to wireless service providers that 
have not yet built out their service in these locations. 

Lease/Sublease 

Under our lease/sublease program, we lease antenna space on a tower then sublease the space to wireless 
I' 	 service providers. When these lease/SUbleases were first signed, these providers chose the financial benefits 

associated with the lease/sublease program, which include reduced capital expenditures, as compared to paying 
for site development services on a fee basis. Wireless paging providers comprise a significant majority of 
customers who sublease antenna sites from us. The subleases generally have original terms of five years, with 
four or five renewal periods of five years each at the option of the lessee, and usually provide for annual or 
periodic price increases. 

Related Services 

To help maximize the revenue and profit we earn from our capital investment in the towers we own, we 
have begun to provide services at our tower locations beyond the leasing of antenna space. These services which 
we provide or may provide in the furure include generator provisioning. power provisioning, antenna installation, 
equipment installation and backbaul, which is the transpon of the wireless signals transmitted or received by an 
antenna to a carrier's network. Some of these services are recurring in nature, and are contracted for by a wireless 
carrier or other user in a manner similar to the way they lease antenna space. 

I Maintenance and Management 

. 1 Once acquired or constructed, we maintain and manage our towers through a combination of in-house 
personnel and independent contractors. We also manage towers for third parties. In-house personnel are 
responsible for oversight and supervision of all aspects of site maintenance and management, and are particularly 
responsible for monitoring security access and lighting. RF emission and interference issues, signage, structural 
engineering and tower capacity, tenant relations and supervision of independent contractors. We hire independent 
contractors locally to perform routine maintenance functions such as landscaping, pest control, snow removal, 
vehicular access, . ite access and equipment installation oversight We engage independent contractors on a fixed 
fee or time and materials basis or, in a few limited circumstances where these contractors were sellers of towers 
to us, for a percentage of tower cash flow. Our network operations center in Boca Raton, Horida central1y 
monitors security access and lighting for our towers, as well as other functions. As the number of towers we 
own and manage increases, we anticipate incurring greater expenditures to expand our maintenance 
infrastructure, including expendirures for personnel and computer hardware and software. We expect these 
expenditures to be marginal compared to the anticipated increased revenues from site leasing. 
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Site Development Services 

Our site development business consists of two segments, site development consulting and site development 
construction. Through this business we offer wireless service providers assistance on each stage of the 
development of a wireless network infrastructure. from network pre-design through installation of antenna and 
radio equipment. 

We deliver our site development services to a diverse range of customers. including cellular. PCS. wireless 
data and Internet services. paging. SMR. and ESMR providers as well as other users of wireless transmission 
and reception equipment Our customers currently comprise many of the major wireless communications 
companies and their affiliates, including KI&T Wireless, Cingular. Nextel, Sprint PCS, Verizon and Voicestream. 

Our site development business also provides us expertise and knowledge which complements our site 
leasing business. Specifical ly, our strong relationships with wireless service providers created and strengthened 
through our site development business provide the basis for our build-lo-suit programs. In addition, we are often 
able to use our site development activities to enhance our strategic new tower build programs by identifying an 
area without wireless signal coverage on which to build a tower for the benefit of a current or potential customer. 

Site Development Consulting 

In the consulting segment of our site development busaness. we offer clients the following services: 
(1) network pre-design; (2) identification of potential locations for lowers and antennas; (3) support in buying or 
leasing of the location; and (4) assistance in obtaining zoning approvals and permits. Once we are awarded a site 
development project, we dispatch a site development team to the project site and may establish a temporary field 
office for the duration of the project The site development team is typically composed of our pennanent 
employees and supplemented with local bires employed only for Ihat particular project. A team leader is assigned 
to each phase of the site development project and reports 10 a project manager who oversees all team leaders. 
Upon the completion of a site development project, the project office is typically closed and all of our permanent 
employees are either relocated to another project or directed to return to one of our offices. 

We generally set prices for each site development service separately. Customers are billed for these services 
on a fixed price or time and materials basis and we may negotiate fees on individual sites or for groups of sites. 

Site Development Construction 

In the construction segment of our site development business we provide a number of services. including 
Ihe fOllowing: (1) tower and related site construction; (2) switch construction; (3) antenna jnstallation; and 
(4) radio equipment installation, optimization and service. 

We provide these services on a turnkey basis throughout the United States. Alternatively, with respect to 
towers on which carriers are looking to become tenants, we can install , maintain, and upgrade radio transmission 
equipment, antennas, cabling and other equipment We began offering direct, as opposed to subcontracted, 
construction services in 1997 with our acquisition of Communications Site Services, Inc., which provided us with 
in-house tower construction and antenna installation capability. We expanded our operations through the 
acquisition of several telecommunications construction companies, the most notable of which was SBA Network 
Services. Inc. ("Network Services," fIlcla Com-Net Construction Services. Inc.) in 1999. to include additional 
tower construction equipment installation and antenna installation capability. as well as the ability to construct 
terminal switches for wireless carriers. competitive local exchange carriers and other telecommunications 
providers. 

We have constructed and expect to continue to conslIUct a portion of our towers in the furore, and provide 
equipment and antenna installation services for tenants on our towers. We believe we cost-effectively and timely 
complete construction projects. in part, because our site development personnel are cross-trained in all areas of 
site development, construction and antenna installation. 
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While we believe that our site development business will grow with the expected overall growth of wireless 
and other telecommunications networks. we believe our revenues and gross profit from the consulting segment 
of that business may continue to decline as carriers find new ways to obtain network development through 
outsourced tower ownership. We also believe that. over the longer term. our site leasing revenues will continue 
to increase due to the same outsourcing trend and as the number of towers we own or control grows. 

Customers 

Since commencing operations. we have performed site leasing and site development services for many of 
the largest wireless service providers. The majority of our contracts have been for PCS broadband, ESMR, 
cellular largest wireless service providers. The majority of our contracts have been for PCS broadband, ESMR, 
cellular and paging customers. We also serve wireless data and Internet, PCS narrowband, SMR, multi-channel 
multi-point distribution service, or MMDS, and multi-point distribution service, or MOS, wireless providers. In 
both our site development and site leasing businesses, we work with large nationaJ providers and smaller locaJ, 
regional or private operators. For the year ended December 31, 2000, Sprint PCS and Alamosa provided 10.8% 
and 11.0% of our site development revenues. In 1999, our largest site development customers were Sprint PCS 
and BellSouth Mobility DCS, representing 20.8%, and 13.9%, respectively. In 2000, Nextel and Sprint 
represented 10.6% and 10.3% of our site leasing revenues, respectively. PageNet represented 7.3% of our site 
leasing revenue for 2000 and 16.5% for the year ended December 31. \999. These PageNet revenues come 
primarily from our lease/sublease component of our site leasing business. No other customer represented more 
than 10% of our site leasing or site development revenues. 

I 
During the past two years, we provided services for a number of customers. including: 

AeriaJ Communications 
Alamosa PCS PrimeCo PCS 
ALLTEL Powertel 
AT&T Wireless Services SprintPCS 
Cingular TeleCorp PCS 
Horizon PCS Teligent 
LEAP Wireless Tritel PCS 
MediaOne Group Triton PCS 
Metricom 360 COmmunications Company 
Nextel US West Communication . 
Pacific Bell Mobile Service Verizon 
PageNet VoiceStream 

WinStar 

Sales and Marketing 

Our sales and marketing goals are: 

to continue to grow our site leasing business; 

to further cultivate existing customers to obtain mandates for build-ta-suit programs as well as to sell 
site development services; 

to use our contacts and industry knowledge to better identify attractive locations for new tower 
builds; 

to use existing relationships and develop new relationships with wireless service providers to lease 
antenna space on and purchase related services with respect to our owned or managed towers; 

to form affiliations with select communications systems vendors who use end-to-end services, 
including those provided by us, which will enable us to market our services and product offerings 
through additional channels of distribution; and 

to continue to grow and sustain a market leadersh.ip position in the site development business. 
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Historically, we have capitalized on the strength of our ex.perience, performance and relationships with 
wireless service providers to position ourselves for additional site development business. We have leveraged 
these attributes to obtain build-ta-suit mandates, and we expect to continue to do so in the future. We also use 
these attributes to identify attractive locations to build towers on strategic sites. 

We approach sales on a company-wide basis, involving many of our employees. We have a dedicated sales 
force wbich is supplemented by members of our executive management team. Our dedicated salespeople are 
based regionally as well as in the corporate office. We also rely on our regional managers, territory managers 
and other operations personnel to sell our services and cultivate customers. Our strategy is to delegate sales 
efforts to those employees of ours who have the best relationships with the wireless service providers. Most 
wireless service providers have national corporate headquarters with regionaJ offices. We believe that most 
decisions for site development and site leasing services are made by providers at the regional level with input 
from their corporate headquarters. Our sales representatives work with provider representatives at the local level 
and at the national level wben appropriate. Our sales staff compensation is heavily weigbted to incentive-based 
goals and measurements. A substantial number of our operations personnel have sales-based incentive 
components in their compensation plans. 

In addition to our marketing and sales staff, we rely upon our executive and operations personnel on the 
regional and territory office levels to identify sales opportunities within existing customer accounts, as well as 
acquisition opportunities. 

Our primary marketing and sales support is centralized and directed from our beadquarteTS office in 
Boca Raton, Florida and is supplemented by our regional and territory offices. We bave a full-time staff dedicated 
to our marketing efforts. The marketing and sales suppon staff are charged with implementing our marketing 
strategies, prospecting and producing sales presentation materials and proposals. 

Competition 

We compete with: 

wireless service providers that own and operate their own tower footprints and lease. or may in the 
future decide to lease, antenna space to other providers; 

• 	 site development companies that acquire antenna space on existing towers for wireless service 
providers, manage new tower construction and provide site development services; 

other large independent tower companies; and 


smaller local independent tower operators 


for towers to acquire and for sites to construct towers. 

Wlfeless service providers that own and operate their own tower networks generally are substantially larger 
and have greater financial resources than we do. We believe that tower location and capacity. price, quality of 
service and density within a geographic market historically have been and will continue to be the most significant 
competitive factors affecting the site leasing business. We also compete for development and new tower 
construction opponunities with wireless service providers, site developers and other independent tower operating 
companies and believe that competition for site development will increase and that additional competitoTS will 
enter the tower market. some of which may have greater financial resources than we do. 

The following is a list of our primary competitors for new tower builds and tower acquisitions: American 
Tower Corporation, Crown Castle Intemational Corp., Pinnacle Holdings, Inc. and SpectraSite Holdings, Inc. 

We believe that the majority of our competitors in the site development business operate within local market 
areas exclusively, while some finns appear to offer their services nationally, including American Tower 
Corporation, Bechtel, Black & Veach. General Dynamics, Mastec, Mericom. qServe and SpectraSite Holdings. 
Inc. The market includes participants from a variety of market segments offering individual. or combinations of, 
competing services. The field of competitors includes site development consultants, zoning conSUltants, real 
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estate firms, right-of-way consulting firms, construction companies, tower owners/managers, radio frequency 
engineering consultants, telecommunications equipment vendors, which provide end-to-end site development 
services through multiple subconttactors, and providers' internal staff. We believe Ihat providers base Iheir 
decisions on site development services on a number of criteria, including a company's experience, track record, 
local reputation, price and lime for completion of a project. We believe Ihat we compete favorably in these areas. 

Employees 

As of December 31, 2000, we had approximately 1,000 employees, none of wbom is represented by a 
collective bargaining agreement We consider our employee relations to be good. 

Regulatory and Environmental Matters 

Federal Regulations. Both the Federal Communications Commission ("FCC") and the Federal Aviation 
Administration ("FAA") regulate towers used for wireless communications transmitters and receivers. These 
regulations control the siting and marking of towers and may. depending on the cbaracteristics of particular 
towers, require prior approval and registration of tower fac ilities. Wireless communications devices operating on 
towers are separately regulated and independently licensed ba.'ied upon the particular frequency used. 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Communications Act of 1934. the FCC, in conjunction with the FAA, 
has developed standards to consider proposals for new or modified anteMas. These standards mandate Ihat the 
FCC and the FAA consider the height of proposed anteMas. the relationship of the structure to existing n.aturaI 
or man-made obstructions and the proximity of the anteMas to runways and aiIports. Proposals to construct or 
to modify existing anteMas above certain heights must be reviewed by the FAA to ensure the structure will not 
present a hazard to aviation. The FAA may condition its issuance of a no-hazard determination upon compliance 
with specified lighting and/or marking requirements. Towers required to be reviewed by the FAA must also be 
registered with the FCC. The FCC will not license the operation of wireless telecommunications devices on 
towers unless the tower has been registered with the FCC. The FCC will not register a tower unless it bas been 
cleared by the FAA. The FCC may also enforce special lighting and painting requirements. Owners of wireless 
ttansmissions towers may have an obligation to maintain painting and lighting to confono to FCC standards. 
Tower owners also bear the responsibility of notifying the FAA of any tower lighting. outage. In addition, any 
applicant for an FCC anteMa structure registration must certify Ihat, consistent with the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 
1988, neither the applicant nor its principals have been convicted of a federal drug crime. We generally 
indemnify our customers against any failure to comply with applicable regulatory standards. Failure to comply 
with the applicable requirements may lead to civil penalties. 

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 amended the Communications Act of 1934 by preserving state and 

I 

I local zoning authorities jurisdiction over the consttuction, modification and placement of towers. The new law, 
however, limits local zoning authority by prohibiting any action that would (I) discriminate between different 
providers of personal wireless services or (2) ban altogether the construction, modification or placement of radio 
communication towers. Finally, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 requires the federal government to belp I 
licensees for wireless communications services gain access to preferred sites for their facilities. This may require 
that federal agencies and departments work directly with licensees to make federal property available for tower 
facilities. 

Owners and operators of anteMas may be subject to, and therefore must comply with, environmental laws. 
The FCC's decision to register a proposed tower or license radio facilities on a tower may be subject to 
environmental review pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, which requires federal 
agencies to evaluate the environmental impacts of their decisions under certain circumstances. The FCC has 
issued regulations implementing the National Environmental Policy Act These regulations place responsibility 
on each applicant to investigate any potential environmental effects of operations and to disclose any potential 
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significant effects on the environment in an environmental assessment prior to constructing a tower. In the event 
the FCC determines the proposed tower would have a significant environmental impact based on the standards 
the FCC has developed. the FCC would be required to prepare an environmental impact statement, which will 
be subject to public comment This process could significantly delay the registration of a particular tower. 

As an owner and operator of real property. we are subject to certain environmental laws that impose strict, 
joint and several liability for the cleanup of on-site or off-site contamination and related personal or property 
damages. We are also subject to certain environmental laws that govern tower placement, including pre­
construction environmental studies. Operators of towers must also take into consideration certain RF emissions 
regulations that impose a variety of procedural and operating requirements. The potential connection between 
RF emissions and certain negative health effects. including some forms of cancer. has been the subject of 
substantial study by the scientific community in recent years. To date. the results of these studies have been 
inconclusive. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with and we have no material liability under any 
applicable environmental laws. These costs of compliance with existing or future environmental laws and 
liability related thereto may have a material adverse effect on our prospects, financial condition or results of 
operations. 

Stale and Local Regulations. Most states regulate certain aspects of real estate acquisition and leasing 
activities. Where required, we conduct the site acquisition portions of our site development services business 
through licensed real estate brokers or agents, who may be our employees or hired as independent contractors. 
Local regulations include city and other local ordinances. zoning restrictions and restrictive covenants imposed 
by community developers. These regulations vary greatly, but typically require tower owners to obtain approval 
from local officials or community standards organizations prior to tower construction. Local zoning authorities 
generally have been hostile to construction of new transmission towers in their commuruties because of the 
height and visibility of the towers. . 

Recent Developments 

In September 2000. we entered into an agreement to acquire 275 existing towers from TeleCorp PeS, Inc. 
in nlinois, Louisiana, Tennessee. Texas. Mississippi, Missouri, Arkansas and Puerto Rico. The acquisition price 
of the towers will be $327,500 per tower. Contingent on the closing of the TeleCorp tower acquisition, we bave 
agreed to become the exclusive build-to-suit provider for TeleCorp. Under the build-to-suit agreement, we will 
construct a minimum of 200 tower facilities and up to a maximum of 400 tower facilities. Under the terms of the 
acquisition, TeleCorp will enter into long-term leases at a monthly rate of $1,200 per acquired tower and 
$1 ,300 per built tower, to place its wireless network equipment on each tower acquired or built On March 16, 
200 I, we acquired 203 towers of the 275 towers under the agreement for $66.5 nullion. and we anticipate 
completing the acquisition of the remaining 72 towers in the second quarter of 2001. The remaining tower 
acquisitions are subject to our satisfactory completion of our review of the business. financial and legal aspects 
of towers that may be acqu ired. As of December 31. 2000, the 275 towers which would be purcbased if the 
TeIeCorp transaction was consummated, had an annualized run rate including pending leases of approximately 
$6.1 million in revenues and approximately $3.9 minion in cash How. 

In December 2000, we entered into an agreement wilh Louisiana Unwired, Inc., a subsidiary of 
US Unwired. Inc .• to acquire 300 towers in Louisiana. Texas and Arkansas. Pursuant to the terms of the 
agreement, we purchased 127 of the 300 towers on December 29, 2000. We have the obligation to purchase the 
remaining 173 towers. subject to the receipt of certain consents. by May 1.2001. Additionally. the agreement 
granted us the option until December 31. 2001 to purchase the lesser of (1) the number of towers constructed by 
Louisiana Unwired during 2001 and (2) 100 towers. Our ability to exercise this option is contingent upon our 
(A) securing financing adequate to purchase the towers and (B) placing in escrow a deposit of $1.67 million 
prior to April 10. 2001. The acquisition price for each of the towers covered by the agreement is $313,000 per 
tower. Under the terms of the acquisition agreement, US Unwired has agreed to enter into long-term leases, at a 
monthly rate of $1.500 per tower, to place its wireless network equipment at each tower thai we purchase. As of 
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December 31, 2000, the 300 towers, including the 173 towers which would be purchased if the second stage of 
the US Unwired transaction was consummated. had an annualized run rate, including pending leases, of 
approximately $5.8 million in revenues and approximately $3.4 million in cash How. 

While all of the towers acquired from TeleCorp and US Unwired will generate revenues immediately upon 
consummation of their respective acquisition, the towers will not at such time be profitable. We cannot assure 
you that these towers will ever be profitable because these towers will be profitable only if we are able to sign 
additional leases with third parties for the location of antennas on these towers. 

The acquisition of the remaining 72 TeleCorp towers and the remaining 273 US Unwired towers are subject 
to numerous closing conditions. We cannot assure you if or when either of these transactions will close. 

Backlog 

Our baclclog for site development services was $61.0 million as of De~mber 31, 2000 as compared to 
$40.0 million as of December 31 , 1999. Our backlog for pending tower acquisitions was 677 towers as of 
December 31, 2000 as compared to 94 towers as of De~mber 31. 1999. Our backJog under build-to-suit 
mandates was approximately 600 towers as of December 31 , 2000 as compared to 335 as of December 31, 1999. 
We anticipate that we will fulfill all of these services and complete the pending tower acquisitions during the 
current fiscal year. 

RISK FACTORS 

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our finandal health and prevent us from fulfllIing 
our payment obligations. 

As indicated below, we have and will continue to have a significant amount of indebtedness relative to our 
equity size. 

At December 31, 2000 After Note Ofrertngto) 

(In tbowiaDds) 

Total indebtedness . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $284,273 $709,273 
Stockholders' equity ....... .... ... ... $538.160 $533.397 

(a) 	 Subsequent to December 31, 2000, we borrowed $30.0 million under the revolving line of 
crediL In February 2001, the Company issued $500.0 million of its IOV.% senior notes due 
2009 and used $ 105.0 million to repay all amounts outstanding under !he senior credit facility. 
In connection wilh Ihe termination of our senior credit facility. we recorded an exaaordinary 
loss of $4.8 mill ion related 10 the write-off of deferred financing fees associated with our 
existing senior credit facility in the fin;( quaner of 200L 

OUT substantiaJ indebtedness could have important consequences to you. For example, it could: 

• 	 limit our ability to repay the IOV4% senior notes and the 12% senior discount notes; 

• 	 limit our ability to fund future working capital, capital expenditures and research and development 
costs; 


limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which 

we operate; 


place us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors that are less leveraged; and 

limit, aJong with the financial and other restrictive covenants in our indebtedness, among other 
things, our ability to borrow additional funds. Failing to comply with those covenants could result in 
an event of default. 

Our ability to service our debt obligations will depend on our furure operating performance. If we are unable 
to generate sufficient cash How from operations to service our indebtedness. we will be forced to adopt an 
alternative strategy that may include actions such as reducing. delaying or eliminating acquisitions of towers or 
related servi.ce companies, delaying tower construction and other capital expenditures, selling assets, 
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restructuring or refinancing our indebtedness or seeking additional equity capital. We may not be able to effect 
any of these alternative strategies on satisfactory tenus, if at all. The implementation of any of these alternative 
strategies could have a material adverse effect on our growth strategy. 

Our earnings have been insufficient to cover our fixed charges since the issuance of our 12% senior discount 
notes, treating the non-cash amortization of the original issue discount on the 12% senior discount notes as a 
fixed charge. This deficiency will increase as a result of the issuance of our $500.0 million 10114% senior notes 
completed in February 2001. We expect our earnings to continue to be insufficient to cover our fixed charges for 
the foreseeable future. We may incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. If new debt is added to 
our current debt levels, the related risks that we face could intensify. 

Our debt instruments contain restrictive covenants that could adversely affect our business by 
limiting ftellibility. 

The indentures governing our 10114% senior notes and our 12% senior discount notes each contain certain 
restrictive covenants. In addition. we intend to enter into a new senior credit facility in the future and this new 
facility will also likely contain restrictive covenants and require us to maintain specified financial ratios and meet 
financial condition tests. Our ability to comply with these covenants and meet these financial ratios and tests can 
be affected by events beyond our control, and we may not be able to meet these covenants, ratios and tests. A 
breach of any of these covenants could result in an event of default under the indentures governing the IOV4% 
senior notes and our 12% senior discount notes. Upon the occurrence of our bankruptcy, the outstanding 
principal, together with all accrued interest, will automatically become immediately due and payable. If any other 
event of default, including a continuing breach of our covenants, should occur the trustee or a percentage of 
such noteholders can elect to declare all amounts of principal outstanding, together with all accrued interest, to 
be immediately due and pa,yable. 

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate and therefore should Dot be considered indicative of our 
long-term results. 

The number of towers we build, the number of tenants we add to our towers and the demand for our site 
development services fluctuate from quarter to quarter and should not be considered as indicative of long-term 
results. Numerous factors cause these ftuctuations, including: 

the timing and amount of our customers' capital expenditures; 

the business practices of customers, such as deferring commitments on new projects until after the 
end of the calendar year or the customers' fiscal years; 

the number and significance of active customer engagements during a quarter; 

• 	 delays relating to a project or tenant installation of equipment:; 

• 	 seasonal factors, such as weather, vacation days and total business days in a quarter; 

• 	 employee hiring; 


the use of consultants by our customers; and 


• 	 the rate and volume of wireless service providers' network development. 

Although the demand for our services fluctuates, we incur significant fixed costs, such as maintaining a staff 
and office space in anticipation of future contracts. The timing of revenues is difficult to forecast because our 
sales cycle may be relatively long and may depend on factors such as the size and scope of assignments, 
budgetary cycles and pressures and general economic conditions. In addition, under lease terms typical in the 
tower industry, revenue generated by new tenant leases usually commences upon installation of the tenant's 
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equipment on the tower rather than upon execution of the lease, which can be 90 days or more after the execution 
of Ihe lease. 

We may be adversely affected by an economic slowdown. 

Our business may be adversely affected by periods of economic slowdown or recession. During periods of 
economic slowdown or recession. wireless carriers may be unable to raise sufficient capital to expand their 
networks or may choose to slow or stop capital expenditures. Any material decline in the availability of capital 
for. or in capital expenditures by, our customers would likely result in a decrease in the demand for tenant space 
on our towers and for our site development services. 

We may not secure as many site leasing tenants as planned. 

If tenant demand for tower space decreases, we may not be able to successfully grow our site leasing 
business. This may have a material adverse effect on our sttategy and revenue growth. Our plan for the growlh 
of our site leasing business largely depends on our management's expectations and assumptions concerning 
future tenant demand for independently-owned towers. Tenant demand includes both the number of tenants and 
the lease rates they are willing to pay. We bear a greater risk from lower tenant demand than other tower 
companies that have towers wilh positive cash flow. because the majority of our towers are newly consttucted 
and have little or no positive cash flow at the time of construction. 

WIreless service providers that own and operate their own towers and several of the independent tower 
companies generally are substantially larger and have greater financial resources than: we do. We believe that 
tower location and capacity, price. quality of service and density within a geographic market historically have, I 
been and wi)) continue to be the most significant competitive factors affecting the site leasing business. 

,[ 
I We are not profttable and expect to continue to incur losses. 

We are not profitable. The following chart shows the net losses we incurred faT the periods indicated: 
Yeus ended December 31, 

2000 1999 1998 

(In. millioos) 

Net losses . ... .... ... .... .. . .. . $28.9 $34.6 $19.9 

Our losses are principally due to significant depreciation. amortization and interest expense. We have not 
achieved profitability and expect to continue to incur losses for the foreseeable future. 

Increased competition to pun:base existing towers and to build new towers may negatively atTect die 
success of our growth strategy. 

Increased competition to purchase existing towers and to build new towers may negatively affect the success 
of our growth sttategy. We compete for the opportunity to build new towers primarily with site developers, 
wireless carriers and other independent tower companies. We believe that competition for the opportunity to build 
new towers will increase and that additional competitors will enter the tower market Some of these additional 
competitors have or are expected to have greater financial resources than we do. 

We compete with: 

• 	 wireless service providers that own and operate their own towers; 

• 	 site development companies that acquire antenna space on existing towers for wireless service 
providers, manage new tower construction and provide site development services; 

other large independent tower companies; and 

smaller local independent tower operators 

for towers to acquire and for sites to construct towers. 
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Our growth strategy depends in part on our ability to acquire and operate existing towers not built by us to 
expand our existing tower network. Increased competition for acquisitions may result in fewer acquisition 
opportunities for us and higher acquisition prices. We regularly explore acquisition opportunities, and we are 
currently actively negotiating to acquire additional towers. As of December 31. 2000, we had agreements to 
acquire 677 towers in 33 separate transactions for an aggregate purchase price of $2 18.5 million. including 
$90.0 million for all 275 towers from TeleCorp and $85.5 million for the additoinal 273 towers from US 
Unwired, or an average acquisition price of approximately $323.000 per tower. While all of the towers acquired 
from TeleCorp and US Unwired will generate revenues immediately upon consummation of their respective 
acquisition. the towers will not at such time be profitable. We cannot assure you that these towers will ever be 
profitable because these towers will be profitable only if we are able to sign additional leases with third parties 
for the location of antennas on these towers. All of these acquisitions are subject to a number of conditions and 
mayor may not close. 

We may not be able to identify. finance and complete future acquisitions of towers or tower companies on 
acceptable tenos or may not be able to profitably manage and market available space on any towers that we 
acquire. We may also face cballenges in integrating newly acquired towers or tower companies with our 
operations and may face difficulties in retaining current lessees on newly acquired towers. 

H our carrier-directed new tower buDd projects are unsuccessful in yielding binding agreements or 
completed towers, our growth strategy or business may be n~alively alTected. 

If our carrier-directed new tower build projects are unsuccessful in yielding binding agreements or 
completed towers, our growth strategy or business may be negauvely affected. A carrier directive is an indication 
of interest from a wireless carrier for us to build a tower which we will own. on which they will place their 
antenna. Upon completion of the tower. the wireless carrier would lease space on the tower. A carrier directive. 
however, does not require the wireless carrier to acrually lease space on the tower. That obligation does not arise 
until a lease is signed. We generally will not commence construction of a tower on a carrier-directed location 
until a lease is signed. As of December 3 I. 2000. we had carrier directives to build approximately 600 towers 
under build-to-suit programs for wireless service providers. We believe that the majority of these carrier 
directives will result in new towers built and owned by us and long-teno leases for antenna space on such towers. 
However. there are numerous factors that may p~vent carrier directives from resulting in leases, including: 

• FAA, FCC or zoning restrictions that ma~ prevenLlhe building of a communication tower; 

the results of the review of the bu\me\\. financial and legal aspects of the transactions conducted by 

us or our customers; 


the lease price; and 


the ability of the carriers who have awarded a directive to withdraw the directive. 


As a result, we cannot assure you as to the percentage of current and future carrier directives that will 
ultimately result in constructed towers and tenanl leases. 

We wiU need to seek adcUtiooal financing to fund our business plan. 

Our business strategy contemplates substantial capital expenditures for the expansion of our tower portfolio. 
We intend to increase the number of towers we own and lease by agreeing with wireless carriers to assume 
ownership or control of their existing towers. by pursuing build-Lo-suit opportunities and by exploring other 
tower acquisition oppommities. To the extent we are unable to finance our future capital expenditures. we will 
be unable to achieve our currently contemplated business goals. 

Our cash capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2000 were $445 .3 million. We currently 
estimate that we will make at least $400.0 million to $450.0 million of cash capital expenditures during the year 
ending December 31. 200 I, which will be primarily for the construction and acquisition of towers. tower 
companies andlor related businesses. Thi s estimate includes capital expenditures planned in connection with the 
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TeJeCorp and US Unwired transactions. We expect to fund $400.0 million of these planned capital expendirures 
from the proceeds from our $500.0 million lOY4% senior notes offering completed in February 2001 that resulted 
in net proceeds of $484.2 million. cash on hand and cash flow from operations. In addition. we intend to seek a 
new senior credit agreement on tenns no less favorable to us than our prior senior credit facility. Thereafter. 
however. or in the event we exceed our currently anticipated cash capital expenditures by December 31 . 200 I. 
we anticipate that we will need to seek additional equity or debt financing to fund our business plan. Additional 
financing. including a new senior credit facility. may not be available on commercially acceptable terms or at all. 
and additional debt financing may not be permitted by the terms of our existing indebtedness. including our 
IOY4% senior notes and 12% senior discount notes. Prior to March 1.2003. interest expense on our 12% senior 
discount notes will consist solely of non-cash accretion of original issue discount, and will not require cash 
interest payments. After that time. our 12% senior discount notes will have increased to $269.0 million and will 
require annual cash interest payments of approximately $32.3 million. If we are required to issue additional 
common equity to finance our capital expenditures. it could be dilutive to our existing shareholders 

Managing our expansion and integrating acquisitions may strain our resources and reduce our cash 
flow. 

Expanding our business may impose significant strains on our management, operating systems and financial 
resources. The pursuit and integration of newly constructed towers in addition to fubJre acquisitions. invesbnents. 
joint ventures and strategic alliances will require substantial attention from our senior management, which will 
limit the amount of time available to devote to our existing operations. 

From January I, 2000 to December 31. 2000. our work force increased from approximately 600 to 
approximately 1.000 employees. This growth has placed, and will likely continue to place. a substantial strain on 
our administrative. operational and financial resources. In addition, as part of our business strategy. we may 
ac(Juire complementary businesses such as telecommunications services companies or expand into new 
businesses. Acquisitions involve a number of potential risks. including the potential loss of customers, and the 
inability to productively combine disparate company cultures and facilities or manage operating sites in 
geographically diverse markets. We may not be able to manage OUT growth successfully. Our management, 
personnel or operational and financial control systems may not be adequate to support expanded or 
complementary operations. Any of these inabilities or inadequacies could cause a significant increase in our 
expenses and reduce our cash flow. 

We are subject to numerous regulations t.hat may prevent, delay, or increase the cost of building or 
operating towers. 

Extensive local, state and federal regulations may prevent, delay or increase the cost of building or operating 
towers. Before we can build a new tower. either for a wireless communications carrier or for our own account, 
we must receive approval under local regulations. Local regulations include city or other local ordinances, zoning 
restrictions and restrictive covenants imposed by community developers. These regulations vary greatly. but 
typically require tower owners to obtain approval from local officials aT community standards organizations prior 
to tower construction. In addition. as the concern over tower proliferation has grown in recent years, certain 
communities have placed restrictions on new tower construction or have delayed granting permits required for 
construction. If we cannot receive local governmental approvals or if it is expensive or time consuming to obtain 
these approvals, then our results of operations will be negatively impacted. 

Both the FCC and FAA regulate towers and other sites used for wireless communications transmitters and 
receivers. Wifeless communications devices operating on towers are separately regulated and independently 
licensed based upon the particular frequency used. 

The construction or modification of communication sites is also subject to the National Environmental 
Policy Act, which requires additional review of any tower that may have a significant effect upon the quality of 
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the human environment. In addition, the operation of our towers is subject to federal, state and local 
environmental laws and regulations regarding the use, storage, disposal , emission, release and remediation of 
hazardous and non-hazardous substances, materials or wastes. Under certain of these environmental laws, we 
could be held strictly liable for the remediation of hazardous substance conLamination at our facilities or at third 
party waste disposal sites, and could also be held liable for any personal or property damage related to the 
contamination. 

Our estimates regarding our growth rate and our anticipated financial performance include the costs of 
complying with these regulations, as they currently exist. If new regulations are introduced or existing regulations 
are modified it could increase our cost of operations and decrease our cash flow. 

If demand for wireless communication services decreases, our revenue win be adversely affected. 

Substantially all of our customers to date have been providers of wireless communications services. If 
demand for wireless communication services decreases, our revenue growth will be, and our revenue may be, 
adversely affected. Demand for both our site leasing and site development services is dependent on demand for 
communication sites from wireless service providers, which, in tum, is dependent on the demand for wireless 
services. A slowdown in the growth of, or reduction in demand in, a particular wireless communication segment 
could adversely affect the demand for communication sites. Most types of wireless services currently require 
ground-based network facilities, including communication sites for transmission and reception. The extent to 
which wireless service providers lease these communication sites depends on a number of factors beyond our 
control, including: 

the level of demand for wireless services; 

the financial condition and access to capital of wireless service providers; 

the strategy of ~ireless service providers with respect to owning or leasing communication sites; 

government licensing of broadcast rights; and 

changes in telecommunications regulations and general economic conditions. 

In addition, wireless voice service providers frequently enter into roaming agreements with competitors 
allowing them to use another's wireless communications facilities to accommodate customers who are out of 
range of their home provider 's services. Wireless voice service providers may view these roaming agreements as 
a superior alternative to leasing antenna space on communications sites owned or controlled by us. The 
proliferation of these roaming agreements could have a material adverse effect on our revenue. 

We depend on a relatively small number of customers for most of our revenue. 

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from a small number of customers that vary at any given 
time, particularly in the site development services side of our business. The loss of any significant customer could 
have a material adverse effect on our revenue. 

Following is a list of significant customers and the percentage of total revenues derived from such 
customers: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2000 1999 

(% of revenue) 

Sprint . .. . .. . . ..... .. ..... . . .. . 10.7 17.3 

Cingular . .......... . ... . .. .. . . . less than 10.0 12.5 


OUf site development customers engage us on a project-by-project basis, and a customer can generally 
terminate an assignment at any time without penalty. In addition, a customer 's need for site development services 
can decrease, and we may not be successful in establishing relationships with new customers. Moreover, our 
existing customers may not continue to engage us for additional projects. 
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The substantial majority of our existing carrier directives under build-to-suit programs are from Alamosa 
PCS, AT&T Wireless, Georgia PCS, Horizon PCS, and TeleCorp PCS. 

Due to the long-tenn expectations of revenue from tenant leases, the tower industry is very sensi tive to the 
creditworthiness of its tenants. Wifeless service providers often operate with substantial leverage. and financial 
problems for our customers could result in uncollected accounts receivable, in the loss of customers and the 
associated lease revenues, or in a reduced ability of these customers to finance expansion activities. In July 2000, 
PageNet, one of our site leasing customers, filed for bankruptcy. For the year ended December 31. 2000. PageNet 
constituted less than 5% our total revenues. PageNet has continued to make all payments due to us under their 
lease agreements. 

H we commence international operations in the future it could strain our resources and negatively 
affect our growth strategy and revenue. 

We are currently evaluating international opportunities and we would like to begin operating internationally 
if we find an opportunity we believe is appropriate to pursue. We may commence international operations at any 
time. Initiating international operations may strain our resources and negatively affect our growth strategy and 
revenue. If we commence international operations. we will be subject to various political, economic and other 
uncertainties, including: 

difficulties and costs of staffing and managing international operations; 

different technology standards; 

fluctuations in currency exchange rates or the implementation of currency excbange controls; 

• political and economic instability; 

unexpected cbanges in regulatory requirements; and 

potentially adverse laX consequences. 

Any of these factors could delay or preclude our ability to generate revenue in any international markets 
that we may enter. Accordingly. we cannot assure that if we begin international operations our strategies will 
prove to be effective or that management's goals will be achieved. 

Our towers are subject to damage from natural disasters. 

Our towers are subject to risks associated with narural disasters such as tornadoes, hurricanes and 
earthquakes. We maintain insurance to cover the estimated cost of replacing damaged towers, but these insurance 
policies are subject to caps and deductibles. We also maintain third party liability insurance to protect us in the 
event of an accident involving a tower. A tower accident for which we are uninsured or underinsured, or damage 
to a tower or group of towers could require us to make significant capital expenditures and may have a material 
adverse effect on our operations. 

New technologies may have a material adverse effect on our growth rate and results or operations. 

The emergence of new technologies could reduce the demand for space on our towers. This could have a 
material adverse effect on our growth rate and results of operations. For example, the FCC has granted license 
applications for several low-earth orbiting satellite systems that are intended to provide mobile voice and data 
services. Although these systems are highly capital intensive and have only begun to be tested, mobile satellite 
systems could compete with land-based wireless communications systems. In addition, products are currently 
being developed which may pennit multiple wireless carriers to use a single antenna. or to increase the range 
and capacity of an antenna. 
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Steven E. Bernstein controls the outcome of shareholder votes. 

Steven E. Bernstein. our Chainnan and Chief Executive Officer, controls 100% of the outstanding shares of 
Class B common stock. As of March 15.2001. Mr. Bernstein controlled approximately 57% of the total voting 
power of both classes of our common stock. As a result, Mr. Bernstein has the ability to control the outcome of 
all matters detennined by a vote of our common shareholders when voting together as a single class, including 
the election of all of our directors. 

The loss of the services of certain of our executive officers may negatively affect our business. 

Our success depends to a significant extent upon the continued services of Steven E. Bernstein. our 
Chainnan and Chief Executive Officer, Jeffrey A. Stoops. our President, Ronald G. Bizick, n. our Executive 
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer-U.S. Site Development, and John Marino. our Senior Vice President 
and Chief Financial Officer. The loss of the services of any of Messrs. Bernstein, Stoops, Bizick or Marino may 
have a material adverse effect on our business. Each of Messrs. Bizick and Stoops has an employment agreement. 
We do not have an employment agreement with Messrs. Bernstein or Marino. Mr. Bernstein's compensation and 
other terms of employment are determined by the Board of Directors. 

Ifwe are unable to attract, retain or manage skilled employees it could have a material adverse effect 
on our business. 

Our business, particularly site development services. involves the delivery of professional services and is 
labor-intensive. The Joss of a significant number of employees, our inability to hire a sufficient number of 
qualified employees or adequately develop and motivate the skilled employees we have hired could have a 
material adverse effect on our business. We compete with other wireless communications firms and other 
enterprises for employees with the skills required to perfonn our services. We cannot assure you thAt we will be 
able to attract and retain a sufficient number of highly-skilled employees in the future or that we will continue to 
be successful in training. retaining and motivating employees. 

Our dependence on our subsidiaries for cash ftow may negatively affect our business. 

We are a holding company with no business operations of our own. Our dependence on our subsidiaries for 
cash flow may have a material adverse effect on our operations. Our only significant asset is and is expected to 
be the outstanding capital stock of our subsidiaries. We conduct, and expect to conduct, all of our business 
operations through our subsidiaries. Accordingly. our only source of cash to pay our obligations is distributions 
from our subsidiaries of their net earnings and cash flow. We currently expect that the earnings and cash flow of 
our subsidiaries will be retained and used by them in their operations, including servicing their debt obligations, 
except as necessary to be distributed to us to cover balding company expenses including interest payments on 
our 10114% senior notes. Even if our subsidiaries determined to make a distribution to us. applicable state law 
and contractual restrictions, including any dividend covenants contained in any new senior credit facility we may 
obtain in the future, may restrict or prohibit these dividends or distributions. 

Future issuances of our stock may cause dUutlon. 

As pan of the consideration for our acquisitions. we sometimes agree to issue additional shares of Class A 
common stock if the towers or businesses that we acquire meet or exceed certain earnings or new tower targets 
in the 1-3 years after they have been acquired. As of December 31. 2000, we bad the obligation to issue 
approximately 300,000 additional shares of Class A common stoCk if the earnings targets identified in various 
acquisition agreements are met. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

We are headquartered in Boca Raton. Florida. where we currently lease approximately 32.000 square feet 
of space. In 2000. we entered into a new agreement to lease 75.000 square feet of space in Boca Raton, Florida. 
We expect to tenninate our old lease and occupy the new facility in the fourth quarter of 2001. We have entered 
into long-tenn leases for regional and Network Services office locations where we expect our activities 10 be 
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longer-term. We open and close project offices from time to time in connection with our site development 
business. and offices for new tower build projects are generally leased for periods not to exceed 18 months. Our 
interests in towers are comprised of a variety of fee interests. leasehold interests created by long-term lease 
agreements. private easements, easements and licenses or rights-of-way granted by government entities. Please 
refer to "Site Leasing Business" for a listing of the locations of our owned towers. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

From time to time. we are involved in various legal proceedings relating to claims arising in the ordinary course 
of business. We are not a party to any legal proceeding. the adverse outcome of which, individually or taken 
together with all other legal proceedings, is expected to have a material adverse effect on our prospects. financial 
condition or results of operations. 

ITEM 4. SUBMlSSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No matter was submitted to the vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. 

PART" 

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED SHAREHOLDER 
MATTERS 

The Class A common stock commenced trading under the symbol SBAC on the iNasdaq National Market 
System (" Nasdaq") on June 16, 1999. The following table presents trading information for the Class A common 
stock for the periods indicated, since June 16, 1999. on the Nasdaq: 

!!!!!! Low 

June 16. 1999-June 30, 1999 .. ..... . .. . ... . . $10.25 $ 7.75 
Quarter ended September 30. 1999 . ... . .. . . .. . . $15.38 $ 9.06 
Quarter ended December 31. 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . $18.75 $ 9.44 

Quarter ended March 31, 2000 . . . . . . . . . . ... .. '. $54.75 $16.50 
Quarter ended June 30. 2000 ... .... ... ... ... . $57.00 $31.50 
Quarter ended September 30. 2000 .. . ..... .. .. . $55.88 $37.00 
Quarter ended December 31, 2000 . . .. . ..... ; . . $55.25 $30.88 

As of March 15 , 200I, there were 211 record holders of the Class A common stock, and two record holders 
of the Class B common stock. 

This Company has not paid a dividend on any class of common stock and anticipates that it will retain future 
earnings, if any, to fund the development and growth of its business. We do not anticipate paying cash dividends 
on any of our common stock in the foreseeable future. In addition. the Company is restricted under the 12% 
senior discount notes and the IOV4 % senior notes from paying dividends or making distributions and 
repurchasing, redeeming or otherwise acquiring any shares of common stock except under certain circumstances. 
See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Liquidity and 
Capital Resources" and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED mSTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA 

The following table sets forth selected historical financial data as of and for the years ended December 31 , 
2000, 1999, 1998, 1997, and 1996, that has been derived from, and is qualified by reference to, our audited 
financial statements. The infonnation set forth below should be read in conjunction with "Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. 

Yean ended December ll, 

2000 1996 

(doUars In thoUSlllKls, except per share and tower data)
OPERATING DATA: 
Revenues: 
Site development. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 115,892 $ 60,570 $ 46,705 $ 48,241 $60,276 

Site leasing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 52.01 4 26.423 12.396 6.759 4,530 

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 167,906 86,993 59,101 55,000 64,806 

Cost of revenues (ex.c1usive of depreciation 
shown below): 

Cost of site development . , .. .... ... .... . 
Cost of site leasing. .. . . .......... .. .. . 

88.892 
19,502 

45,804 
12, 134 

36,500 
7.281 

31,470 
5,356 

39,822 
3,638 

Total cost of revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 108,394 57.938 43,781 36,826 43.460 

Gross profit ................ ..... . 59.512 29,055 15,320 18,174 21,346 

Selling, general and administrative(a) .. .... . 
Depreciation and amortization . ... .. ..... . 

27.799 
34,831 

19.784 
16,557 

18,302 
5.802 

12,033 
514 

17.754 
160 

Operating income (loss) ................ . 
Interest and other (ex.pense) income, net .... . 
(Provision) benefit for inc()me taxes(b) .... . . 
Extraordinary item ................. ... . 

(3,118) 
(24,564) 

(1,233) 

(7.286) 
(26,378) 

223 
( 1.150) 

(8.784) 
(12,641) 

1,524 

5.627 
236 

(5,596) 

3,432 
(132) 

(1,320) 

Net income (loss) ... . .... .......... ... . 
Dividends on preferred stock ........... . . 

(28.915) (34,591 ) 
733 

(19,90I) 
(2,S7S) 

267 
(983) 

1,980 

Net (loss) income available to common 
shareholders . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (28,915) $ (33,858) $ (22.476) $ (716) $ 1.980 

Basic and diluted loss per common share 
before extraordinary item ......... ... " 

Extraordinary item ......... .. ..... . ... . 
$ (0.70) $ (1.71) 

_~(0_,06_) 
$ 
_ 

(2.64) 
_ _ 

$ (0.09) 

Basic and diluted loss per cornman share ... . $ (0.70) $ (1.77) $ (2.64) $ (0.09) 

Basic and diluted weighted average number of 
shares of common stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41.156,312 19. 156.027 8,526,052 8.075,000 

OTHER DATA: 
EBITDA(c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 
Annualized tower cash flowed) . ... .. .. .... . . 
Capital expenditures(e) ... ... .. ..... ... . . . 
Cash provided by (used in): 

Operating activities . ... . ... . ......... . . 
Investing activities . .. .. .. . ............ . 
Financing activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

$ 32.026 
31.056 

494,053 

47,516 
(445,280) 
409,613 

$ 9,582 
18.692 

226,570 

23.134 
(208,870) 
162,124 

$ (2,377) 
8,088 

138,124 

7.471 
(138.124) 
151,286 

$ 7,155 
1,946 

17,676 

7.829 
(17,676) 
15,645 

$10,603 
991 
145 

1,215 
(145) 

(1,036) 

BALANCE SHEET DATA: 
Cash and cash equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 
Property and equipment. net . . .. .... .... . 
Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total debt(f) .... . ... . .. ...... . .... . . . 
Redeemable preferred stock ..... .... .... . . 
Common stockholders' equity (deficil) ... .. . 

$ 14,980 
765,815 
948,818 
284.273 

538,160 

$ 3,131 
338.892 
429,823 
320,767 

48.582 

$ 26,743 
150,946 
214,573 
182.573 
33,558 

(26,095) 

$ 6,109 
17.829 
44.797 
10.184 
30.983 
(4.344) 

$ 311 
632 

18.060 
4.921 

(102) 
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Yeus ended December 31. 

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 

(dollars In thousands. except per share and tower data) 

TOWER DATA: 
Towers owned at the beginning of period . . .. . . . .. .. . . 1.163 494 51 
Towers constructed . .......... ....... .. ....... . . 779 438 310 15 
Towers acquired . .. ..... .. .. . . . .. ... .... ... . . . . 448 231 133 36 -
Towers owned at the end of period ... ... .... . . . ... . 2,390 1.163 494 51 

(a) 	 For the year ended December 31 . 2000, selling, general and administrative expense included non-cash compensation 
expense of $0.3 million in connection with stock option and restricted stock activity. For the year ended December 31. 
1999, selling, general and administrative expenses included non-cash compensation expense of $0.3 million incurred in 
connection with the issuance of stock options and Class A common stock. For the year ended December 31, 1998. 
selling, general and administrative expenses included non-cash compensation expense of $0.6 million incurred in 
connection with stock option activity. 

(b) 	 Provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31. 1997 included the tax effect of our conversion to a C 
corporation. For 1996. the provision for income tax represents a pro forma calculation (40%) as we were lreated as an 
S Corporal ion under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as amended. 

(c) EBITDA represents earnings (loss) before interest income, interest expense, other income, income taxes, depreciation 
and amortization and the non-cash compensation expense referred to in footnote (a) above. EBITDA is commonly used 
in the telecommunications industry to analyze companies on the basis of operating performance, leverage and liquidity. 
EBITDA is nOI intended to represent cash flows for the periods presented, nor has it been presented as an alternative to 
operating income or as an indicator of operating performance and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute 
for measures of performance prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 
Companies calculate EBITDA differently and, therefore, EBITDA as presented by us may not be comparable to 
EBITDA reported by other companies. See our Consolidated Statements of Cash Aows in our Consolidated Financial 

I . Slatements iIicluded in this filing. . ~ , 

(d) 	 We define "tower cash How" as site leasing revenue less cost of site leasing revenue (exclusive of depreciation). We 
believe toweT cash flow is useful because it allows you to compare tower performance before the effect of expenses 
(selling, general and administrative) that do not relate directly to tower performance. We define "annualized tower cash 
How" as tower cash flow for the last calendar quaner attributable to our sile leasing business multiplied by foW'. 

(e) 	 Includes the value of Class A common stock issued in connection with acquisitions. 

(f) 	 For 1996, lotal debt does not include amounts owed to the shareholder of $0.1 million. 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDmON ANDI RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

'I 	 We are a le.ading independent owner and operator of wireless communications towers in the United States. 
We generate revenues from our two primary businesses, site leasing and site development. In our site leasing 
business. we lease antenna space on towers and other structures that we own or manage for others. The towers 
that we own have either been built by us at the request of a carrier or built or acquired based on our own I 	 initiative. In our site development business. we offer wireless service providers assistance in developing their 
own networks, including designing a network with full signal coverage. identifying and acquiring locations to 
place their antennas , obtaining zoning approvals. building towers when necessary and installing their antennas. 
Since our founding in 1989. we have participated in the development of more than 15,000 antenna sites in 49 of 
the 51 major wireless markets in the United States. 

I i 

Site Leasing Services 

In 1997. we began aggressively expanding our site leaSing business by capitalizing on our nationally 
recognized site development experience and strong relationships with wireles service providers to take 
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advantage of the trends toward independent tower ownership and co-location, which is the placement of multiple 
antennas on one tower. As of December 31, 2000, we owned or controlled 2,390 towers with 5,548 tenants, or 
2.3 tenants per tower. In addition, we had agreements to acquire 677 towers. We also had carrier directives to 
build over 600 additional towers and had, in various phases of development, over 1,000 locations which we had 
internally identified as desirable locations on which to build a tower. 

We believe our history and experience in providing site development services gives us a compeUUve 
advantage in choosing the most attractive locations on which to build new towers or buy existing towers, as 
measured by our success in increasing tower revenues and cash flows. Our same tower revenue growth at 
December 31, 2000 on the I ,163 towers we owned as of December 3 1, 1999 was 34%, based on tenant leases 
signed and revenues annualized as of December 31, 2000. We signed 261 new tenant leases in the quarter ended 
December 31, 2000 on the 1.950 towers we owned at the beginning of the quarter, at an average initial monthly 
rent of $1,567. Our annualized rate of tenants added per [ower, on a broadband equivalent basis, was .55, .64, 
.59, .56 for each of the last four quarters. A broadband equivalent basis is calculated by dividing total lease 
revenue by $1,500, an industry benchmark for monthly tower rent per tenant We believe that our annualized 
rate of new tenants added per tower per quarter is among the highest in the industry. 

We have focused our capiml expenditures on building new towers and acquhing existing towers. In general, 
we have chosen to build rather than buy the substantial majority, 65%, of our towers because we believe the 
economics of building are more favorable. To date, our average construction cost of a new tower is 
approximately $250,000, while we believe the industry's average acquisition cost of a new tower over the last 
two years has been approximately S400,OOO. 

While we have focused primarily on building new towers for growth, we have also acquired 848 towers as 
of December 31, 2000. We seek to acquire towers where we can increase cash flow to substantially reduce the 
tower cash flow multiple paid at acquisition through additional tenant leases. The 848 tower acquisitions to date 
were completed at an aggregate purchase price of $323.9 million, which averages to a price of approximately 
$382,000 per tower. In addition to what we have already acquired, we are actively negotiating to acquire existing 
towers. In September 2000, we entered into an agreement to acquire 275 existing towers from TeleCorp PeS, 
Inc. (TeleCorp). The acquisition price of each tower will be $327,500. The tower acquisition agreement is subject 
to our satisfactory completion of our review of the business. financial and legal aspects of towers that may be 
acquired, and other items. On March 16 2001, the Company paid $66.5 million to purchase 203 towelS under 
the TeleCorp agreement We anticipate that we will close on the remaining 72 towers in the second quarter of 
200 I . In December 2000, we entered into an agreement with US Unwired to purchase a total of 300 towers. We 
purchased 127 towers in December 2000, and expect to purchase the remaining 173 towers in the second quarter 
of 2001 , for approximately $54.1 miUion. As of December 3L, 2000, we had agreements to acquire 677 towers 
in 33 separate transactions for an aggregate purcbase price of approximately $218.5 million. including fhe 
TeleCorp and US Unwired agreements. These acquisitions are subject to a number of conditions and mayor 
may nOI occur. 

Site Development Services 

Our site development business consists of two segments, site development consulting and site development 
construction, through whicb we provide wireless service providers a full range of end-lo-end services. In the 
consulting segment of our site development business. we offer clients the following services: (I) network pre­
design; (2) identification of potential locations for towers and antennas; (3) suppon in buying or leasing of the 
location; and (4) assistance in obtaining zoning approvals and permits. In the construction segment of our site 
development business we provide a number of services, including the following: (1) tower and related site 
construction; (2) switch construction; and (3) antenna installation. 

We believe that our total site development business wiu grow with the expected overall growth of wireless 
and other telecommunications networks. We anticipate that site development construction revenues will continue 
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to exceed site developmem consulting revenues. We also believe that our site leasing revenues will grow as 
wireless service providers continue to lease antenna space on our towers and the number of towers we own or 
control grows. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

As we continue our transition into site leasing. operating results in prior periods may not be meaningful 
predictors of future prospects. You should be aware of the dramatic changes in the nature and scope of our 
business when reviewing the ensuing discussion of comparative historical results. We eltpect that the acquisitions 
consummated to date and any future acquisitions. as well as our new (ower builds. will have a material impact 
on future revenues. eltpenses and net loss. Revenues. cost of revenues. selling. general and administrative 
eltpenses, depreciation and amortization. interest income and interest expense each increased significantly in the 
year ended December 31. 2000 as compared to 1999. and some or all of those items may continue to increase 
significantly in future periods. We believe that our new tower build programs may have a material effect on future 
financial results, which effect will probably be negative until such time, if ever. as the newly constructed towers 
attain higher levels of tenant use. 

Year Ended 2000 Compared to Year Ended 1999 

Total revenues increased 93.0% to $167.9 million for 2000 from $87.0 million for 1999. Total site 
development revenue increased 91.3% to $115.9 million in 2000 from $60.6 million in 1999 due to an increase 

I 
1' 1 	 in both site development construction revenue and site development consulting revenue. Site development 

construction revenue increased 115.1 % to $91.6 million for 2000 from $42.6 million for 1999. due to the t 
inclusion of Network Services for an entire year, as well as higher levels of activity. Site development consulting 
revenue increased 35.0% to $24.3 million for 2000 from $18.0 million for 1999, due to the increased demand 

I
jJ

' j . for site acquisition and zoning services from wireless communications carriers. Site leasing revenue increased 
96.8% to $52.0 million for 2000 from $26.4 million for 1999, due to tenants added to our towers and the 
substantially greater number of towers in our portfolio during 2000 as compared to 1999. 

Total cost of revenues increased 86.9% to $ 108.4 million for 2000 from $57.9 million for 1999. Site 
development cost of revenue increased 93.9% to $88.9 million in 2000 from $45.8 million in 1999 due to higher 
site development revenues. Site development consulting cost of revenue increased 25.8% to $15.6 million for 
2000 from $12.4 milJjon for 1999. reflecting higher site development consulting revenues. Site development 
construction cost of revenue increased 119.2% to $73.2 million for 2000 from $33.4 million for 1999, due to 
higher site development construction revenues which resulted primarily from the inclusion of Network Services 
for an entire year. Site leasing cost of revenue increased 60.7% to $19.5 million for 2000 from $12.1 minion for 
1999, due primarily to the increased number of towers owned. 

Gross profit increased to $59.5 million for 2000 from $29.1 million for 1999, due to increased site 
development and site leasing revenues. Gross profit from site development increased 82.9% to $27.0 million in 
2000 from $14.8 million in 1999 due to higher site development revenues. Gross profit margins for site 
development decreased in 2000 LO 23.3% from 24.4% in 1999 due to a greater relative amount of lower margin 
site development construction business. Gross profit margin on site development consulting increased to 35.6% 
for 2000 from 30.9% for 1999. This increase is attributable to a change in the mix of our business to include 
more mUlti-purpose projects producing both site development revenue and build-to-suit towers. Gross profit 
margin on site development construction decreased to 20.1 % for 2000 from 21.6% in 1999 due to an increase in 
the use of subcontractor labor. Gross profit for the site leasing business increased 127.5% in 2000 from 54.1 % in 
1999. The increased gross profit was due to the substantially greater number of towers owned and the greater 
average revenue per tower in the 2000 period. The increase in gross margin was due to additional tenants added 
to our lOwers and the resulting increase in average revenue per tower. which was greater than the increase in 
average expenses. As a percentage of total revenues. gross profit increased to 35.4% of total revenues in 2000 
from 33.4% in 1999 due primarily to increased levels of higher margin site leasing gross profit. 
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Selling, general and administrative expenses intreased 40.5% to $27.8 million for 2000 from $19.8 million 
for 1999. The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses represents the addition of offices, personnel 
and other infrastructure necessary to support our continued growth, as well as increased developmental expenses 
associated with our higher levels of new tower builds and acquisition activities. As a percentage of total revenue, 
selling, general and administrative expenses decreased to 16.6% for 2000 from 22.7% in 1999. 

Depreciation and amortization increased to $34.8 million for 2000 as compared to $16.6 million for 1999. 
This increase was directly related to the increased amount of fixed assets, primarily towers, we owned in 2000 
as compared to 1999. 

Operating loss decreased to $(3.1) million for the year ended 2000 from $(7.3) million in 1999 as a result 
of the increased gross profit in 2000. Other expense, net, decreased to $(24.6) million for the year ended 2000 
from $(26.4) million for lhe year ended 1999. The decrease is attributable to higher interest income on increased 
cash balances which more than offset an increase in interest expense. The increase in interest expense is due to 
increased interest associated wilh the senior credit facility, amortization of deferred financ ing charges and 
original issue discount. partially offset by increased interest capitalization as a result of increased construction 
activity. The extraordinary item in 1999 of $(1.1) million relates to the write-off of deferred financ ing fees 
associated wilh a prior bank credit agreement. Net loss was $(28.9) million for the year ended 2000 as compared 
to net loss of $(33.9) million for the year ended 1999. 

Earnings (loss) before interest income, interest expense, other income, income taxes, depreciation and 
amortization and non-cash compensation expense ("EBITDAn) increased 234.2% to $32.0 million for the year 
ended 2000 from $9.6 million for the year ended 1999. The following table provides a reconciliation of EBITDA 
to net loss to common shareholders: 

Yeanended DeeelDber 31, 


lOGO 1999 

(In thousands) 


EBlTDA ..... .... ... ... . ... .. ..... . . ... .... .. . . $ 32,026 $ 9,582 
Interest expense, net of amount capitalized . ............ . (30,885) (27,307) 
Interest income ... . . .... ... . ......... . .......... . 6.253 881 
(Provision) benefit for income taxes ............ .... .. . (1,233) 223 
Depreciation and amortization .. . ................... . (34.831 ) ( 16,557) 
Other income . .. .. . . .. ... .... . . . ... .. ... . ..... . . 68 48 
Non-cash compensation expense . . ..... .... ... ...... . (313) (311) 
Extraordinary item . .. . .... . . .. .... .. .. ......... . . (1,150) 
Preferred stock dividend reversal ... . ...... . . ........ . 733 

Net loss to common shareholders ... .. ........ . . .. ... . $(28,915) $(33.858) 

Year Ended 1999 Compared to Year Ended 1998 

Total revenues increased 47.2% to $87.0 million for 1999 from $59.1 million for 1998. Total site 
development revenue increased 29.7% to $60.6 million in 1999 from $46.7 million in 1998 due to an Increase in 
site development construction revenue, which more than offset a decline in site development consulting revenue. 
Site development construction revenue increased 121.3% to $42.6 milJion for 1999 from $19.3 million for 1998. 
due to the acquisition of Network Services on April 30, 1999 as well as higher levels of activity. Site 
development consulting revenue decreased 34.6% to $18.0 million for 1999 from $27.4 million for 1998, due 
primarily to the decreased demand for site acquisition and zoning services from PCS licensees, as well as the 
increasing acceptance by wireless carriers of oursourced communication site infrastructure through build-to-suit 
programs where site acquisition and zoning services are provided by the tower owner. Site leasing revenue 
increased 113.2% to $26.4 million for 1999 from $12.4 million for 1998, due to a substantial number of revenue 
producing towers added during the period through new builds and acquisitions as well as the addition of new 
tenants on existing towers. 
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. 1 

In July 2000, we filed a universal shelf registration statement on Fonn S-3 registering the sale of up to 
$500.0 million of any combination of the foUowing securities: Class A common stock, preferred stock, debt 
securities, depositary shares, or warrants. In August 2000, we completed an offering under lhis universal shelf of 
5.8 million shares of our Class A common stock, including shares issued upon the exercise of the over-allotment 
option. We raised gross proceeds of $247.3 million, which produced net proceeds of approximately $236.0 
million, after deduction of the underwriting discount and offering expenses. We used $25.0 million of lhese net 
proceeds to repay a portion of lhe tenn loans under lhe senior credit facility. Remaining proceeds were used for 
the construction and acquisition of towers and general working capital purposes. As of the date of this report, we 
may issue any combination of the registered securities with an aggregate offering price of up to $252.7 miIlion 
under this universal shelf registration statement 

In February 200 1. the Company closed on $500.0 million 10'14% senior notes due 2009, which produced 
net proceeds of approximately $484.2 million after deducting offering expenses. The Company used $105.0 
million of these proceeds to repay all borrowings under the senior credit faciHty and terminated the senior credit 
agreement On March 16, 200) , the Company used $66.5 million of the remaining proceeds to purchase 203 
towers under the TeleCorp agreement We intend to use appro;w;imately $23.6 million of the remaining proceeds 
to purchase the remaining 72 towers under the TeleCorp agreemem and approximately $54.1 million to purchase 
173 towers from US Unwired. Remaining proceeds will be used to finance the construction and acquisition of 
additional towers and related businesses and for general working capital purposes. Interest on these notes is 
payable on February ) and August 1 of each year, beginning August I, 2001. The 10V4% senior notes are 
unsecured and are pari passu in right of payment with the Company's other existing and future senior 
indebtedness. The lOV4% senior notes place certain restrictions on. among other things, the incurrance of debt 
and liens, issuance of preferred stock, payment of dividends or other distributions, sale of assetS, transactions 
with affi liates, sale and leaseback transactions, certain inveslmenlS and our ability to merge or consolidate with 
other entities. 

!'I 
f 

Our cash capital eltpenditures for the year ended December 31. 2000 were $445.3 million, and for the year 
ended December 31, 1999, were $208.9 million. We currently plan to make total cash capital expenditures during 
the year ending December 31 , 20QI of at least $400.0 million 10 $450.0 million, including up to $175.0 million 

' \ 	 for the acquisition of up to 548 towers we may acquire from TeleCorp and US Unwired Subsrantial1y all of 

f 	 these planned capital expenditures are eltpected to be funded by the proceeds of our $500.0 million 10'14% senior 
note offering completed in February 200 I. cash on hand and casb flow from operations. The exact amount of our 
future capital expenditures will depend on a number of factors including acquisition oppornmities that become 
available during the period, the needs of our build-Io-suit customers and the availability to us of additional debt 
or equity capital on acceptable terms. In the event that we do not bave sufficient liquidity wben an acquisition or 
construction opportunity arises, we would be req uired to seek additional debt or equity financing. Failure to 
obtain any such fi nancing could require us to significantly reduce our planned capital expenditures and scale back 
the scope of our tower construction activities or acquisi tions, either of which could have a material adverse effect 
on our projected financial condition or results of operations. In addition we may need to refinance all or a portion 
of our indebtedness (including our IOV4 % senior notes and our 12% senior discount notes) on, or prior 10, 

scheduled maturity. Our ability to make scheduled paymenlS of principal, or to pay interest on, our debt 
obligations, and our ability to refinance any such debt obligations (including the IOV4% senior notes or the 12% 
senior discount notes). or to fund planned capital eltpenditures, will depend on our future performance, which. to 
a certain extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors 
that are beyond our control. 

We have on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission shelf registration statemenlS on Fonn 5-4 
registering up to a total of 3,000,000 shares of Class A common stock that we may issue in connection with the 
acquisition of wireless communication towers or companies that provide related services at various locations in 
the United States. During the year ended December 31, 2000, we issued 723,246 shares of Class A common 
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stock under these registration statements in connection with ten acquisitions. As of December 31. 2000. we had 
2.276.754 shares of Class A common stock remaining on these shelf registration statements. 

In addition to the issuance under the shelf registration statements. on September 30. 2000, we issued 
400,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock to the former shareholders of Network Services. in 
accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement. 

At December 31, 2000. our senior credit facility. as amended. consisted of a $50.0 million term loan and a 
$225.0 million revolving line of credit. Availability under the senior credit facility was determined by a number 
of factors. including the number of towers built by us with anchor tenants on the date of completion, the financial 
performance of our towers. the financial performance of our site development segment. as well as by oUter 
financial covenants, financial ratios and other conditions. At December 31, 2000, we had the $50.0 million term 
loan outstanding under the senior credit facility at a 10.06% variable rate and $25.0 million outstanding under 
the revolving credit facility at a 10.75% variable rate. In the first quarter of 200 I, we used proceeds from the 
issuance of the lOY4% senior notes to repay all amounts outstanding under the senior credit facility, and 
terminated the facility. 

Accordingly, the Company wrote off deferred financing fees related to the senior credit facility and will 
record a $4.8 million extraordinary loss in the first quarter of 2001 in connection with the termination of this 
facility. At December 31, 2000. we had $209.0 million outstanding on our 12% senior discount notes. net of 
unamortized original issue discount of $60.0 million. The 12% senior discount notes mature on March I, 2008. 

INFLATION 

The impact of inflation on our operations has not been significant to date. However, we cannot assure you 
that a high rate of inft ation in the future will not adversely affect our operating results. 

Hem 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

We are exposed to cenain market risks which are inherent in our financial instruments. These instruments 
arise from transactions entered into in the normal course of business. and in some cases relate to our acquisition 
of related businesses. During the year ended December 31 , 2000 we were subject to interest rate risk on our 
senior credit fac ility. At December 31. 2000 our fixed rate debt consisted primarily of the accreted balance of the 
12% senior discount notes. In the future. we may be subject to increased rate risk on any senior credit facility 
we may enter into and any other further financings. . 

The following table presents the future principal payment obligations and weighted average interest rales 
associated with our existing long-term debt instruments, assuming our actual level of long-term indebtedness: 

lOOI 1002 2003 1004 2005 

Long-term debt: 
Fixed rate (12.0%) .. .. . . . . $269.000.000 

Term loan, $50.0 million, 

variable rat.e (10.06% 

at December 31, 2000) ... - $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ 500,000 $ 48,SOO.000 


Revolving loan. variable rate 

(10.75% at December 31. 

2000) . . . . .. . .. .... .. . $2.500.000 $5,000,000 $7,500,000 $10,000.000 


NOles Payable, variable rates 

(2.9% to 8.8675% at 

December 31 , 2000) . . . .. $ 106,222 $ 50,176 $ 550,176 $ 25,088 
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OUf primary market risk exposure relates to (I) the interest Tate risk on long-term and short-term 
borrowings. (2) our ability to refinance our 12% senior discount notes at maturity at markel rates, (3) the impact 
of interest rate movements on our ability to meet interest expense requirements and exceed financial covenants 
and (4) the impact of interest rate movements on our ability to obtain adequate financing to fund future 
acquisitions. We manage the interest rate risk on our outstanding long-term and short-term debt through our use 
of fixed and variable rate debt. While we cannot predict or manage our ability to refinance existing debt or the 
impact interest rate movements will have on our existing debt, we continue to evaluate our financial position on 
an ongoing bas is. 

In February 2001 the Company closed $500.0 million of its lOY4% senior notes due 2009, and used a 
portion of the proceeds to repay all amounts outstanding under the senior credit facility and terminated the 
facility. 

Senior Discount Note Disclosure Requirements 

The indenture governing our 12% senior discount notes require cenain financial disclosures for restricted 
subsidiaries separate from unrestricted subsidiaries and the disclosure to be made of Tower Cash Flow, as defined 
in the indenture, for the most recent fiscal quaner and Adjusted Consolidated Cash Flow, as defined in the 
indenture, for the most recently completed four-quarter period. As of December 31.2000 we had no unrestricted 
subsidiaries. Tower cash How. as defined in the indenture, for the quarter ended December 31, 2000 was $7.8 
miJIion. Adjusted Consolidated Cash Flow for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $39.1 million. 

Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements 

This annual report contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the 
Securities Act and Section 21 E of the Exchange Act. Discussions containing forward-looking statements may be 
found in the material set forth in this section and under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations," "Industry Overview" and "Business," as well as in the annual report 
generally.' 

These statements concern expectations, beliefs. projections, future plans and strategies. anticipated events 
or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. Specifically. this annual report 
contains forward-looking statements regarding: 

our strategy to transition the primary focus of our business from site development services toward the 
site leasing business, including our intent to make strategic acquisitions of towers and tower 
companies; 

anticipated trends in the site development industry and its effect on our revenues and profits; 

our estimates regarding the future development of the site leasing industry and its effect on our site 
leasing revenues; 

our plan to continue to construct and acquire tower assets and the resulting effect on our revenues. 
capital expenditures, expenses and net income; 

our ability to successfully consummate letters of intent or definitive agreements for newly built towers 
or acquisitions of existing towers and the resulting effect on our financial operations; 

our estimate of the amount of capital ellpenditures for twelve months ending December 31, 200 I that 
will be required for the construction or acquisition of towers; and 

our intention to fund capital ellpenditures for the twelve months ending December 31. 2001 from the 
net proceeds from our February 200 I, 1Olj4 ~ senior note offering, cash on hand and cash flow from 
operations. 

30 



These forward-looking statemems reHect our current views about future events and are subject to risks. 
uncertainties and assumptions. We wish to caution readers that certain important factors may have affected and 
could in the future affect our actual results and could cause actual results to differ significantly from those 
expressed in any forward-looking statement. The most important factors that could prevent us from achieving 
our goals, and cause the assumptions underlying forward-looking statements and the actual results to differ 
materially from those expressed in or implied by those forward-looking statements include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 

our ability to secure as many site leasing tenants as planned; 

our ability to maintain and expand our site leasing business and our site development business; 

our ability to complete construclion of new towers on a timely and cost-efficient basis, including our 
ability to successfu lly address zoning issues. carrier design changes, changing local market conditions 
and the impact of adverse weather conditions; 

our ability to identify and acquire new towers, the ability to obtain third party consents, and the 
satisfactory resolution of any due diligence review of potential acquisitions; 

our ability to retain current lessees on newly acquired towers; 

our ability to realize economies of scale for newly acquired towers; 

the continued dependence on towers by the wireless communications industry; 

our ability to compete effectively for new tower opportunities and site development services in light of 
increased competition; and 

• 	 our ability to enter into a new senior credit facility and raise substantial additional financing to expand 
our tower holdings. 

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

Financial statements and supplementary data for the Company are on pages F -J through F-21. 

ITEM 9. 	 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT 

The items required by Part III, Item 10. are incorporated herein by reference from the Registrant's Proxy 
Statement for its 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed on or before April 3D, 2001. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The items required by Part m, Item II are incorporated herein by reference from the Registrant's Proxy 
Slatement for its 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed on or before April 3D, 2001. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The items required by Part Ill. Item 12 are incorporated herein by reference from the Registrant's Proxy 
Statement for its 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed on or before April 3D, 2001. 
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

The items required by Part Ill, Item 13 are incorporated herein by reference from the Registrant 's Proxy 
Statement for its 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 10 be filed on or before April 30, 2001 . 

PART IV 

ITEM 14. EXHmITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8·K 

(a) Documents filed as part of this report: 

( I) Financial Statements 

See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for Financial Statements included with this 
Annual Report on Fonn 10-K. 

(2) Financial Statement Schedules 

Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants on Schedule 

Schedule n- Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 

See "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for Financial Statements Schedules 
included with this Annual Report on Fonn 100K. 

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not required, not applicable, or the infonnation is 
otherwise set forth in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

(3) Exhibits 
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Exhlhit 

No. Description of Exhibits 


3.4 	 -Fourth Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of SBA Communications Corporation.(2) 

3.5 	 -Amended and Revised By -Laws of SBA Communications Corporalion.(2) 

4. 1 - Indenture. dated as of March 2, 1998, between SBA Communications Corporation and State Street 
Bank and Trust Company, as trustee, relating 10 $269,000.000 in aggregate principal amount at 
maturity of 12% Senior Discount Notes due 2008.( I) 

4.3 	 -Specimen Certificate of 12% Senior Discount Note due 2008 (included in Exhibit 4.1) 

10.1 	 - SBA Communications Corporation Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 5,1991. among 
the Company, Steven E. Bernstein, Ronald G. Bizick, II and Robert Grobstein.(I) 

10.1 	 - SBA Communications Corporation Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 6 1997, among 
the Company and the Preferred Shareholders. as uelinc!d Iherein.(I) 

10.8 	 - Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of ~Iarch ."\ 1. 1999, between the Company, Com-Net 
Construction Services, Inc., Daniell. Eldridge anti Eldnuge Family Limited Partnership.(2) 

10.81 	 - First Amendment to Agreement and Plan of \krg~r. ualed as of April 30. 1999 between the 
Company, Com-Net Construction Services Inc.. Danld J. Eldridge and Eldridg~ Family Limited 
Partnership.(2) 

/0.9 	 - Purchase Agreement dated as of March 31. 11)1)9. between the Company, Com-Net Development 
Group, LLC., Daniell. Eldridge and Tammy W. Eldridge.(2) 

10.91 	 - First Amendment to Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 30, 1999, between the Company, Com­
Net Development Group, LLC., Daniell. Eldridge and Tammy W. Eldridge.(2) 

10.10 	 - Employment Agreement dated as of January I, 1997, between the Company and Ronald G. Bizick, 
II.( I ) 

10.1 2 -	 Employment Agreement dated as of March 14, 1997, between the Company and Jeffrey A. Stoops.( I) 

10. 15 -	 Employment Agreement dated a~ of June 15. 1998, between the Company and Michael N. S imkin.( I) 

10.22 - Agreement to Build to Suil and 10 Lea.,e. dated as of October 30, 1998, by and among BellSouth 
Personal Communications, Inc .. for Il~elf and as general partner of BellSouth Carolinas PCS, L.P., 
SBA Towers, Inc. and SBA. Inc.(2) 

10.23 -	 1996 Stock Option Plan.(2) 

10.24 	 - 1999 Equity Participation Plan.(2) 


- 1999 Stock Purchase Plan.(2) 


10.26 	 - Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 16,1999, by and among SBA 
Communications Corporation, SBA Telecommunications, lnc., the several banks and financial 
institutions or entities from time to time parties thereto, Lehman Brothers. Inc., General Electric 
Capital Corporation, Toronto Dominion (Texas), Inc., Barclays Bank PLC, and Lehman Commercial 
Paper, [nc.(3) 

10.27 - Incentive Stock Option Agreement, dated as of September 5, 2000, between SBA Communications 
Corporation and Thomas P. Hunt. 

10.28 	 - Restricted Stock Agreement. dated as of September 5. 2000, between SBA Communications 
Corporation and Thomas P. Hunt. 

I
I 
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Exhibit 
No. Description of Exhibits 

10.29 -Employment Agreement dated as of September 5, 2000, between the Company and Thomas P. Hunt. 

10.30 - Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 15,2000, by and 
Puerto Rico Realty, Inc., TeleCorp Communications, 
Telecommunications, Inc. 

amon
Inc., SBA 

g TeleC
Towers. 
orp Realt

Inc. 
y, LLC, Tel

and 
eCorp 

SBA 

10.31 - Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as o
L.L.C. and SBA Properties, Inc. 

f December 18, 2000, by and between Louisiana Unwired 

21 - Subsidiaries. 

23.1 -Consent of Arthur Andersen LLP. 

(1) 	 Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 previously filed by the Registrant 
(Registration no. 333-50219). 

(2) 	 Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form Sol previously filed by the Registrant 
(Registration no. 333-76547). 

(3) 	 Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 5-3 previously filed by the Registrant 
(Registration no. 333-94175). 

(b) 	 Reports on Form 8-K: 

(1) The Company filed a report on Form 8-K on October 17, 2000. In this report. the Company reported, 
under Item 5, certain operational results. Under Item 7, the Company included the related press release. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, 
in the City of Boca Raton, State of Florida on March 30, 2001. 

SBACO~CATIONSCORPORATION 

By: ________IS_I__ __ ___ ____________S_TEV_EN E._B_E_RNsTEm 

Steven E. Bernstein 
Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Chief Executive Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature TItle Date 

lsi STEVEN E. BERNSTEIN Cbainnan of the Board of Directors, March 30, 2001 
Chief Executive Officer Steven E. Bernstein 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

lsi JEFFREY A. STOOPS President and Director March 30, 2001 

Jeffrey A. Stoops (Principal Executive Officer) 

lsi JOHNMARlNO Chief Financial Officer March 30, 2001 

John Marino (Principal Financial Officer) 

lsi PAMELA J. KLINE Chief Accounting Officer March 30, 200 I 

Pamela J. Kline (Principal Accounting Officer) 

/sl DONALD B. HEBS, JR. 

Donald B. Hebb, Jr. 

Director March 30, 200 1 

lsi C. KEvm LANDRY 

C. Kevin Landry 

Director March 30. 2001 

lsi ROBERT S. PICOW 

Robert S. Picow 

Director March 30, 2001 

lsi RICHARD W. Mn.LER 

Richard W. Miller 

Director March 30, 2001 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To SBA Communications Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SBA Communications Corporation (a 
Florida corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related consolidated statements 
of operations. shareholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company 's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the qmsolidated financial statements referred to above present fairl y, in all material respects, 
the financial position of SBA Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and 1999. 
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 
31. 2000 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

ARnruR ANDERSEN LLP 

West Palm Beach. Florida. 
February 20, 2001 (except with respect to 

the matters discussed in Note 16, as to 
which the date is March 16, 2001). 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ..... .. ....... .. . ...... ... .. ... . 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $2,117,344 and $785.299 

in 2000 and 1999, respectively . ....... . .. . ....... . .. . .. . . 
Prepaid and other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Costs and estimated earnings in eltcess of billings on uncompleted 

contracts .. ............... ...... . . ... ..... . . ... . ... . 

Total current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Property and equipment. net ......... ..... ......... . ......... . 
Intangible assets. net . .. .. . .... ... .. . . .... . . ........ ..... ... . 
Other assets .. ............ .... ............ .. ... .... ... ... . 

Total assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable ... .. ... .... ..... ....... .. ..... . . .. .. . . 
Accrued eltpenses .. .... . ...... .......... .... .......... . 
Current portion-notes payable ... ............ .... ... ..... . 
Due to shareholder. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Billings in eltcess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted 

contracts . . . ... .. ..... .... ... .... .. . . ... . . .... . .... . 
Other current liabilities . . ... . . . . .. .. .. . .... . ....... .. . . . . 

Total current liabilities ... ..... .. .... . .. .... . . ..... . 

Long·term liabilities: 
Deferred tax. liabilities. net ...... . ... .... .. . .. .. .. . . .. .- ... . 
Senior discount notes payable ........... ... . .. .... . .. . .. .. . 
Notes payable .. .. ....... .. . ....... .. .. ... . ... .. .. . .. . . 
Other long-term liabilities . . ... .. . .... ..... ... ... .... ... . . 

Total long-term liabilities . .. . . . . .. .. . . .. ..... .. .... . 

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 13) 

Shareholders' equity: 
Common stock-Class A par value $.01 (100,000.000 shares 

authorized), 40,989,044 and 21,546,737 shares issued and 
outstanding in 2000 and 1999, respectively .. .. . .... ... ..... . 

Common slock-Class B par value $.01 (8,100.000 shares authorized). 
5,455,595 and 7.644.264 shares issued and outstanding in 2000 and 
1999, respectively ..... . ..... .. . ....... .... . .. .... . . . . 

Additional paid-in capital .. ... .. ...... . ..... . . .. .. . .... .. . 
Accumulated deficit . ... .. ..... .. .............. .. ... .... . 

Total shareholders' equity ... .. .... . ....... .... ... . . . 


Total liabilities and shareholders ' equity .. .. ............ . 


December 31. 2000 December 31. 1999 

$ 14.980.046 $ 3,130,912 

47.704,256 22,644,777 
5,968,475 4,946,561 

13,583,513 2,888,963 

82,236,290 33.611.213 
765,814.824 338.891,513 

83,386.959 53.616.887 
17.380.027 3.703.613 

$948,818,100 $429.823,226 

$ 76.944,232 $ 40.655,950 
13,503,843 6.094,669 
2,606.222 50,176 

2,500,000 

5,942,241 1.600,981 
10,714,397 3,654,584 

109,710.935 54,556,360 

18,444,566 7,950,454 
209,041 ,552 186,041,542 

72,625,440 132,175,616 
835,276 517,007 

300,946,834 326.684,619 

409,890 215,467 

54.556 76,443 
627,370.391 109,049.538 
(89,674.506) (60,759,201 ) 

538,160.331 48,582,247 

$948.818,100 $429.823.226 

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these 
consolidated balance sheets. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 


CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

For the years ended December 31, 

2000 1999 1998 

Revenues: 
Site development ....... .... ..... ......... ... .. . 
Site leasing .. ..... .. ........... . .. ..... ...... . . 

$11 5,892.303 
52,013,366 

$ 60,569,614 
26,423,1 21 

$ 46.704,641 
12,396,268 

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 167,905,669 86,992.735 59,100.909 

Cost of revenues (exclusive of depreciation and amortization 
shown below): 
Cost of site development ....................... .. . 
Cost of site leasing ......... . ................... . 

88.892.376 
19,501.959 

45.804.553 
12,133,678 

36,499,980 
7,280,786 

Total cost of revenues ............... . ....... . 108,394,335 57,938,231 43,780,766 

Gross profit ..... .. ................... ..... . 59,511,334 29,054,504 15,320,143 

Operating expenses: 
Selling. general and administrative ...... .. .......... . 
Depreciation and amortization . .................... . 

Total operating expenses .. .... ..... .. .. . .. ... . 

27.798,589 
34,831,394 

62.629,983 

19.783,547 
16,556,533 

I 

36,34O,0~ 

18,302,226 
5,802,090 

24.104,316 

Operating loss ............................. . (3,118,649) (7,285,576) (8,784,173) 

Other income (expense): 
Interest income ....... , ... . ................. . .. . 
lnterest expense, net of capitalized interest . . .. ... . . . .. . 
Non-cash amortization of orig inal issue discount and debt 

issuance costs . ... ... .... ...... ... ... .. ..... . . 
Other . .. .. ... .... ... .... ..... .... ... .. ..... . . 

6,253,015 
(4,878,327) 

(26,006,270) 
68,191 

881,338 
(5,244,373) 

(22,063,495) 
47,912 

4,303,277 
( 1,196,544) 

(15,710,370) 
(37,591) 

Total other expense .. . .. ..... .... ..... .. .... . (24,563,391 ) (26,378,618) (12.641,228) 

Loss before (provision) benefit for income taxes and 
extraordinary item .. ... . ..... .. ..... ... . . . . (27,682,040) (33,664,194) (21.425.401) 

(Provision) benefit for income taxes ..... .... ......... . (1,233,265) 222,656 1,524,306 

Net loss before extraordinary item .............. . (28,915,305) (33,441,538) (19,901,095) 

Extraordinary item, write-off of deferred financing fees .... . (1,149,954) 

Nel loss ...... . ........ . .. . ..... . .. ... .... . (28,915,305) (34,591,492) (19,901,095) 

Dividends on preferred stock . ..... .. .... . .. .. ... .... . 733,403 (2,575,000) 

Net loss to common shareholders ........ ... .... . $(28,915,305) $(33,858,089) $(22,476.095) 

Basic and diluted loss per common share before 
extraordinary item ... .... .. .. . ...... ... .. ... . . .. . 

Extraordinary item ............ .. . .. ..... .. ..... .. . 
$ (0.70) $ (1.71) 

(0.06) 
$ (2.64) 

Basic and diluted loss per common share . ............ .. . $ (0.70) $ (l.77) $ 
= 

(2.64) 
==== 

Basic and diluted weighted average number of shares of 
common stock . ..... ... .. ..... .. ..... . . ... .. .. . 41 ,1 56.312 19,156.027 8,526,052 

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part 
of these consolidated statements. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 1999 AND 2000 

Common Stock 
AdditionalClass A Class 8 PaId-In Accumulated 

Number Amount Number Amouot Capital Deficit Total 

BALANCE. December 31 .1997 .. .. $ 8.075.000 $80.750 $ $ (4,425 .0 17) $ (4.344.267) 
Exercise of stock option . ....... . 775.961 7.760 37.316 45.076I' Issuance of common stock as 

eltecutive compensation ........ 104.961 1.049 504.005 505.054 
Non-cash compensation 

adjustment ... ... ... .... ..... 174.810 174.8 10 

Net loss ..... . . . . ... ....... . .. (19.901.095) (19.901.095) 

Preferred slock dividends ......... (2,575.000) (2,575.000) 


BALANCE. December 31. 1998 ... . 880.922 8,809 8.075.000 80.750 716. \31 (26.90 1.112) (26.095,422) 
Initial public offering of common 

stock. net of issuance costs '.' ... . 11.300.000 113,000 93.519.852 93.632,.852 
Non-cash compensation 

adjustment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . 311.265 311,265 
Preferred slock dividends . ... .. ... (1.345.500) (1,345.500) 
Pn:ferred stock 

conversion/redemption ... . .. .. . 8.050,000 80,500 (80,500) 2,078.903 2.078.903 
Shares received for repayment of 

shareholder loan .... .. .... .. . . (430.736) (4,307) (3.872,319) (3,876,626) 
Common stock. issued in connectionIII with acquisitions . .. , . . • .. .. .. 1.100.000 11,000 17,689,000 17.700.000.! 
Eltercise of employee stock 


options/common stock issued in 

connection with employee stock 
. , 

, . purchase plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 215.815 2.158 766.109 768.267 
Net loss ... .. .. ...... ... . .. . .. (34.591.492) (34.591,492) 

BALANCE. December 31, 1999 . . .. 21.546.737 215,467 7.644.264 76.443 109.049,538 (60.759.201 ) 48.582.247 
Offering of common stock. nel of 

issuance costs . . .. . ..... , .... 14.7-50.000 147,500 464.896.249 465.043,749 
Common stock issued in connection 

with acquisitions ..... ... . .... 1.123.246 11,232 48.761 .658 48.772.890 
Non-cash compensation 

adjUSDnCDl . . ... . . . . ....... . . 312,788 31 2.788 

Eltercise of employee stock! 
options/common stock issued inI II connection with employee stock 


, 
 ;: purchase plan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1.003.005 10.030 4.353,932 4.363,962 

Issuance of restricted stock ...... . . 20.000 200 (200) 

I :I Conversion of Class B to Class A . .. 2.188.669 21,887 (2.188,669) (21,887) 

, Eltcrcise of warrants ... ...... .. . 357,387 3,574 (3.574)
' , 

Net loss .............. ... .. ... (28.915.305) (28.915.305)
II I ' 
BALANCE, December 3 1, 2000 .. . 40.989.044 $409,890 5,455,595 $54,556 $627.370,391 $(89,674,506) $538.160.331 

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of 
these consolidated statements. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net loss ..... ... . ................... ....... ... . 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Provision for doubtful accounts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Provision for deferred taxes ....... .... . .. .. .... ... . . 
Non-cash amortization of original issue discount and debt 

issuance costs ..... .. ................ .... ... . . . 
Non-cash compensation expense ...... . ............. . 
Interest on shareholder notes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Write-off of deferred financing fees ... . . ............ . . 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in-
Accounts receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Prepaid and other current assets .. .. ... ... . ..... . . 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on 

uncompleted contracts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable. : ....... . .. . .............. . . 
Accrued expenses . ... .. .. ......... . ....... ... . 
Deferred tax liabilities .... .. ... .. ... ... ....... . 
Other current liabilities .. . '. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Other long-term liabilities .... ... .... ... .. ..... . . 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on 

uncompleted contracts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Total adjustments ...... .... ..... .. ........... . 
Net cash provided by operating activities .. .. ....... . 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Tower acquisitions, net of casb received and other capital 

expendibJres . ... .. ......... ..... .. ......... . . . 
Net casb used in investing activities . . ...... .. . . .. . 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTMTIES: 
Proceeds of common stock offerings. net of issuance costs .. 
Proceeds from notes payable, net of financing fees .... ... . 
Repayment on notes payable . ...... ..... .. ... ...... . . 
Proceeds from senior discount notes payable. net of 

financing fees ..... .. .. ..... ..... .. .. ... . . .. .. . 
Issuance of common stock .. ... .... ................ . 
Proceeds from exercise of slock options and employee stock 

purchase plan . . .. .. .. .. . ............... .. ... .. . 
Redemption of Series A redeemable preferred stock .... .. . 
Net cash provided by financing activities ... ..... .. .. .. . 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . .. .. . 

For tbe yean ended December 31, 

lOOO 1999 1998 

$( 28.915.305) $(34.591.492) $(19,901,095) 

34.831.394 16.556,533 5,802.090 
1.663.174 492.101 	 282.463 

(141.061) 

26.006.270 22,063,495 15,829.460 
312.788 311.265 174,810 

(91.858) (223,462) 
1.149.954 

(25.193,131) (3,623.719) ( 1.863,999) 
(929,465) 1.531.234 (4,998,412) 

( 10.029.079) (1.422,186) (480,736) 
( 14,478.524) (4.169.648) (5.970,258) 

35,341,548 22,314,456 12.264,937 
7,054.520 1.237,401 1,439,836 

10.494.112 (36.728) 4.147,248 
7,378,082 	 603,745 1.518,096 

381,567 

3,979,951 809,136 (190,162) 
76,431,640 57,725,181 27,312,417 
47,516.335 23,133,689 7.471.322 

(445 ,280,12Z) (208,870,025) (138,123,784) 

( 445 ,280.127) (208 ,870.025) (l38.123.784) 

465.043,749 93.632.852 
11.000.000 173,573.876 28,500.000 

(70,794.785) (73,026.087) (2 I .593.054) 

143,829.239 
505.054 

4,363.962 768,267 45.075 
{32.824.930) 

409,612,226 162,1 23,978 151,286,314 
11,849.134 (23.612.358) 20,633.852 

(continued) 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

For Ihe years ended December 31, 

2000 1999 1998 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: 
Beginning of year . .. ... . . . . . .... .. ..... .. . . ..... . . 3,130.912 26.743.270 6.109.418 

End of year . ... .. .. . . ... . ........... . . .. ....... . . $ 14,980,046 $ 3,130,912 $26,743.270 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION: 

Cash paid during the year for: 
Interest. including amounts capitalized . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 8.411.348 $ 5,940.096 $ 423,302 

Taxes .. .......... . . ... . . ....... . . ...... . . . ... .. $ 1,995.863 $ 665.622 $ 2.378,510 

NON-CASH ACTIVITIES: 
Accrual (reversal) of dividends on Series A redeemable 

preferred stock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 
==== 

$ (733.403) $2,575.000 

Note receivable-shareholder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 
==== 

$ 3.876.626 $ 
=== 

Exchange of Series B preferred stock for common stock . . . . . $ 
==== 

$ 80.500 $ 
=== 

ACQllsmON SUMMARY: 
Assets acquired . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Liabilities assumed .. .. . .. .. . .... .... ..... .. . ... . .. 
Common stock issued . . . ... . .. . . . .. .. .... . . . ....... 

$ 63.049.041 $ 32.281,360 
$ (2.197.157) $ (6.666,726) 
$(48,772,890) $(17,700.000) 

$ 
$ 
$ 

The accompanying notes 10 consolidated financial statements are an integral part of 
these consolidated statements. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. GENERAL 

SBA Communications Corporation (the "Company" or "SSA") was incorporated in the State of Florida in 
Marcb, 1997. The Company holds all of the outstanding capital stock of SBA Telecommunications, Inc. 
("Telecommunications") . Telecommunications holds all of the capital stock of SSA Towers. Inc. ("Towers"), 
SSA. Inc., SSA Leasing, Inc., and SSA Network Services, Inc. ("Network Services" fIkIa Com-Net 
Construction Services, Inc.). These companies own all of the outstanding capital stock of certain other tower and 
construction companies. 

Towers and its subsidiaries own and operate transmission towers in various parts of the United States. Space 
on these towers is leased primarily to wireless communications carriers. 

SBA. Inc. provides comprebensive turnkey services for the telecommunications industry in Ihe areas of site 
development services for wireless carners. Site development serv ices provided by SBA, Inc. include site 
identification and acquisition, contract and title administration. zoning and land use pennitting, construction 
management and microwave relocation. 

SBA Leasing, Inc. ("Leasing") leases antenna tower sites from owners and then subleases such sites to 
wireless telecommunications providers. 

Network Services and its subsidiaries are engaged in the construction and repair of transmission towers, 
including banging of antennae. cabling and associated tower components. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIF1CANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements is as follows: 

a. Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ihe Company and all of its wholly-owned 
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

b. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and el(penses during the reporting periods. The more significant 
estimates made by management include the allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, the costs and revenue 
relating to the Company's site development and construction contracts, valuation allowance on deferred tax 
assets, and the economic useful lives of towers. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company classifies as cash and cash equivalents all interest-bearing deposits or investments with 
original maturities of three months or less, and highly liquid shon-term commercial paper. 

d. Property and Equipment 

i 
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over 

the estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amonized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the 
useful life of the improvement or the term of the lease. Maintenance and repair items are expensed as incurred. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Interest is capitalized in connection with the construction of towers. The capitalized interest is recorded as 
part of the asset to which it relates and is amonized over the asset's estimated useful life. Approximately $3.5 

. ,, , million and $1.6 million of interest cost was capitalized in 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

e. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are comprised of costs paid in excess of the fair value of assets acquired ("Goodwill") 
and amounts paid related to covenants not to compete. deferred fi nancing fees and deferred lease costs. Goodwill 
is being amortized over periods which range from 7 to 40 years. The covenants not to compete are being 
amortized over the terms of the contracts. which range from I to 10 years. Amortization expense was $3.6 
million. $1.1 million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31. 2000, 1999 and 1998. respectively. 
Accumulated amortization totaled approximately $5.0 million and $1.4 million at December 31.2000 and 1999. 

f. Deferred Financiog Fees 

Financing fees related to the issuance of long-term debt and the 12% senior discount notes. and the related 
original issue discount on the 12% senior discount notes. have been deferred and are being amortized using a 
method that approximates the effective interest rate method over the length of indebtedness to which they relate. 

g. Deferred Lease Costs 

The Company defers certain initial direct costs associated with new leases and amonizes these costs over 
the initial lease term. generally five years. Total costs deferred were approximately $1.1 million in both 2000 
and 1999. 

h. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121 ("SFAS 121 ") Accounting for the Impairment of 
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of requires that long-lived assets, including certain 
identifiable intangibles, and the goodwill related to those assets, be reviewed for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset in question may not be recoverable. 
Management has reviewed the Company 's long-lived assets and has determined that there are no events requiring 
impairment loss recognition. 

The Company periodically evaluates whether events and circumstances have occurred that may warrant 
revision of the estimated useful life of intangible assets or whether the remaining balance of intangible assets 
should be evaluated for possible impairment. The Company uses an estimate of the related undiscounted cash 
Haws over the remaining life of the intangible assets in assessing whether an impairment occurred. The Company 
measures impairment loss as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the 
assets. 

i. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments, which includes cash and cash equivalents. 
accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, notes receivable, accounts payable. accrued expenses and notes payable, 
approximates fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments. The Company's 12% senior discount notes 
are publicly traded and were trading based on an 11 .81 % yield at December 31. 2000. indicating a fair value of 
the notes of approximately $211.2 million. The carrying value of the discount notes is approximately $209.0 
million at December 31. 2000. 

j. Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from tower leasing is recorded monthly on a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease 
agreements. Revenue for Leasing is recorded on a monthly basis at billed contractual amounts. Rental amounts 
received in advance are recorded in other liabilities. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Site development projects in which the Company perfonns consulting service~ include contracts on a time 
and materials basis or a fixed price basis. Time and materials based contracts are billed at contractual rates as the 
services are rendered. For those site development contracts in which the Company perfonns work on a fixed 
price basis. site development billing (and revenue recognition) is based on the completion of agreed upon phases 
of the project on a per site basis. Upon the completion of each phase on a per site basis, the Company recognizes 
the revenue related to that phase. Revenue related to services perfonned on uncompleted pbases of site 
development projects was not recorded by the Company at the end of the reporting periods presented as it was 
not material to the Company's results of operations. Any estimated losses on a particular phase of completion 
are recognized in the period in which the loss becomes evident. Site development projects generally take from 3 
to 12 months to complete. 

Revenue from consbUction projects is recognized on the percentage-of-completion method of accounting, 
detennined by the percentage of cost incurred to date compared to management's estimated total anticipated cost 
for each contract This method is used because management considers total cost to be the best available measure 
of progress on the contracts. These amounts are based on estimates, and the uncertainty inherent in the estimates 
initially is reduced as work on the contracts nears completion. The asset "Costs and estimated earnings in excess 
of billings on uncompleted contracts" represents expenses incurred and revenues recogniz,¢ in excess of 
amounts biDed. The liability "Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts" 
represents billings in excess of revenues recognized. 

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 
("SAB 10I"), IIRevenue Recognition in Financial Statements." SAB 10I provides guidance on the recognition, 
. presentation and disclosure of revenue in financial statements. The Company 's revenue recognition policy is in 
accordance with the provisions of SAB 101. Adoption of the provisions of SAB 101 did not have a material 
impact on the Company's consolidated financial position. 

Costs of site development project revenue and construction revenue include all direct material costs, salaries 
and labor costs, including payroll taxes, subcontract labor, vehicle expense and other costs directly related to the 
projects. All costs related to site development projects and construction projects are recognized as incurred. Costs 
of site leasing revenue include rent. maintenance and other tower expenses. Provisions for estimated losses on 
uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined to be probable. 

k. Selling. General and Administrative E xpenses 

Selling. general and administrative expenses represent those costs incurred which are related to the 
administration or management of the Company. Also included in this category are corporate development 
expenses which represent costs incurred in connection with proposed acquisitions, and new build activities where 
a capital asset is not produced, and expansion of the customer base. The above costs are expensed as incurred. 

I. Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes C"SFAS No. 109"). SFAS No. 109 requires the 
Company to recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of 
events that have been recognized in the Company 's consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities and 
assets are determined based on the temporary differences between the consolidated financial statements carrying 
amounts and the tax base of assets and liabilities. using enacted tax rates in the years in which the temporary 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

differences are expected to reverse. In assessing the likelihood of utilization of existing deferred tax assets. 
management has considered historical results of operations and the current operating environment. 

m. Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1999 and 1998 consolidated financial statements to conform 
to the 2000 presentation. 

n. Loss Per Share 

Basic and diluted loss per share are calculated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 128. Earnings per SluJre. The Company has potential common stock equivalents related to its 
outstanding stock options. These potential common stock equivalents were not included in diluted loss per share 
because the effect would have been anti-dilutive. Accordingly. basic and diluted loss per common share and the 
weighted average number of shares used in the computations are the same for all periods presented. There were 
3.1 million. 3.2 million and 1.7 million options outstanding at December 31. 2000. 1999 and 1998, respectively. 
The computation of basic and fully diluted loss per share is as foUows: 

For the yean ended December 31, 

2000 1999 1998 

Net loss before extraordinary item ...... ... . . . . $(28.915,305) $(33,441,538) $(19.901.095) 
Preferred stock dividend . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 733,403 (2,575.000) 

Loss to common stockholders . .. . ... . ...... . . (28.915,305) (32,708.135) (22,476.095) 
Weighted average number of shares outstanding .. 41.156.312 19,156,027 8,526,052 
Loss per share . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ (0.70) $ (1.71) $ (2.64) 

o. Comprehensive Income 

During the years ended December 31, 2000. 1999 and 1998, the Company did not have any changes in its 
equity resulting from non-owner sources and accordingly, comprehensive income was equal to the net loss 
amounts presented for the respective periods in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

3. CURRENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In June 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 138, Accounting for 
Cenain Derivative Instruments and Cenain Hedging Activities, an amendment of SFAS /33. SFAS 133 
established accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments including certain derivative instruments 
embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. SFAS 138 addresses a limited number of issues causing 
implementation difficulties for numerous entities that apply SFAS 133 and amends the accounting and reporting 
standards of SF AS 133 for certain derivative instruments and certain hedging activities. The Company has elected 
to defer the adoption of both SFAS 133 and SPAS 137. "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Acrivities-Defe"al of the Effective Dale ofSFAS No. /33," until fiscal 2001. The Company adopted SFAS 138 
on January 1,2001 and there was not a significant impact from the adoption. 

In February 2001. the FASB issued a revised Exposure Draft entitled "Business Combinations and 
Intangibles Assets - Accounting for Goodwill." This Exposure Draft. if adopted as proposed. would eliminate 
the amortization of goodwill against earnings. Instead, it would be written down against earnings only in the 
periods in which the recorded value of the goodwill is more than its fair value. The FASB is eltpected to issue a 
final statement on business combinations and intangible assets in 2001. The adoption of this statement, if issued 
as proposed. would not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

In March 2000, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 44 ("FIN 44" ), "Accounting for Certain Transactions 
involving Stock Compensation," an interpretation of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ("Opinion 
25"). FIN 44 clarifies (a) the definition of "employee" for purposes of applying Opinion 25, (b) the criteria for 
determining whether a plan qualifies as a non-compensatory plan, (c) the accounting consequence of various 
modifications to the terms of a previously fixed stock option or award. and (d) the accounting for an exchange of 
stock compensation awards in a business combination. FIN 44 was generally effective July 'I. 2000. and the 
effects of applying FIN 44 are recognized on a prospective basis from that date. In fiscal year 2000. FIN 44 did 
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position. results of operations or cash flow. 

4. ACQUISITIONS 

On April 30. 1999. the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of Network Services and 
issued 780.000 shares of its Class A common stock to the former shareholders of Network Services. The fonner 
shareholders of Network. Services received $2.5 million in cash and 320.000 additional shares of the Company's 
Class A common stock in 1999 and an additional 400.000 shares of the Company's Class A common stock in 
2000. as certain targets were met. The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of the nel assets 
acquired was recorded as goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of IS years. 

During 2000. the Company acquired 448 towers and related assets from various sellers, aU of which were 
individually insignificant to the Company. The aggregate purchase price for these acquisitions for the year ended 
December 31 . 2000 was $174.5 million. which was paid from proceeds from borrowings. equity offerings, cash 
provided from operations and cash on hand. The historical results of operations of the assets acquired are not 
material in relation to the Company's consolidated financial statements; accordingly. pro fonna financial 
information has not been presented for 2000. 

During 1999. the Company completed 40 acquisitions consisting of 231 towers and related assets from 
various sellers. all of which were individually insignificant to the Company. The aggregate purchase price for 
these acquisitions for the year ended December 31. 1999 was $80.9 million. which was paid from cash on hand. 

All acquisitions occurring in 2000 and 1999 were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. 
The results of operations of the acquired assets are included with those of the Company from the dates of the 
respective acquisitions. 

The unaudited pro-forma results for 1999 have been prepared for comparative purposes only and include 
certain pro-forma adjustments. such as additional amortization expense as a result of goodwill as if the 
transactions occurred at the beginning of 1999. The pro-forma results do not purport to be indicative of results 
that would have occurred had the combination been in effect for the periods presented, nor do they purport to be 
indicative of the results that will be obtained in the future. 

For lbe year ended 
D«ember 31. 1999 

Unaudited pro fonna revenues ....... .. .... . .. ..... .. . .... .. .. . $100.556.580 


Unaudited pro fonna net loss . .... ... .. ... . . .. ...... ... ... .. .. . $ (34.671.567) 

Unaudited pro forma basic and diluted loss per common share ..... .. .. . $ (1.77) 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

S. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 

The Company's credit risks consist primarily of accounts receivable with national and local wireless 
communications providers and federal and state government agencies. The Company performs periodic credit 
evaluations of its customers' financial condition and provides allowances for doubtful accounts as required based 
upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other information. Following 
is a list of significant customers and the percentage of total revenue derived from such customers: 

For tbe years ended December 31. 

lOOO Im.l998 

(% of revenue) 

Sprint ..... .. . . .......... .. ... .. . . .. . . . .... . .. . 10.7 17.3 34.0 
Bell South . . ......... .. ........ . .. .. . .. .. . . .... . less than 10.0 12.3 19.3 
Pacific Bell Mobile Systems .. . .. . . ... . . .. ... .. . . ... . less than 10.0 0.9 10.7 

Our site development consulting, site development construction and site leasing segments derive revenue 
from these customers. 

6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Propeny and equipment, consists of the following: 

Estimat.rd 

u.sefullins As of December 31, 


(Years) 2000 1999 

Towers ..... ................. .... ... . 15 $721 ,360,967 $329,046,558 
Construction in process . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69,012,222 18.648,109 
Furniture, equipment and vehicles ...... . .. . 2-7 19,497,128 7,547.827 
Buildings and improvements .. ..... . ..... . 5-26 624,659 596,676 
Land .. . ......... .. . . . ... . . . . ...... . 10,013,526 6,664,178 

820,508,502 362,503,348 
Less: accumulated depreciation and 

amortization .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (54,693.678) (23,611.835) 

Propeny and equipment, net .. . . ..... . . .. . $765,814,824 $338,891,513 
", I f 

I 

Construction in process represents costs incurred related to towers which are under development and will 
be used in the Company's operations. 

7. COSTS AND ESTIMATED EARNINGS ON UNCOMPLETED CONTRACTS 

Costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts consist of the following: 

As of December 31, 

2000 1999 

Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts . . ...... . ... . .. . $48,060,291 $I1,259.s II 
Estimated earnings . . . ... .. ........ . . . ..... . . .. . . . . 9,940,359 2,830,072 
Bimngs to date .. . ...... .. . .... . . .. . . . ... : ....... . (50,359,378) (12,801,60 I) 

$ 7,641.272 $ 1.287,982 
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These amounts are included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet under the following captions: 

As of Dea!mber 31, 

2000 1999 

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings 
on uncompleted contracts ........ .. .. . .. .. . .. . . ..... . $13,583.513 $2,888.963 

Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings ... ..... ... . (5,942,241) (1,600,981 ) 

$ 7,641.272 $1,287.982 

8. CURRENT AND LONG-TERM DEBT 

Current and long-term debt consists of the following: 

As of December 31, 

2000 1999 

Senior credit facility term loans, interest at variable rates 
(10.06% at December 31,2000), quarterly installments 
basedon reduced availability beginning March 31, 2002, 
maturing December 31, 2005. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. $ 50,000.000 $ 75,000,000 

Senior credit facili ty revolving loan, interest at a variable rate 
(10.75% at December 31, 2(00), quarterly installments 
based on reduced availability beginning March 31. 2001 , 
maturing December 31, 2004 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25,000,000 57,000.000 

12% senior discount notes, net of unamortized original issue 
discount of $59.958.448 at December 31. 2000, and 
$82.958,458 at December 31, 1999, unsecured, cash 
interest payable semi-annually in arrears beginning 
September I, 2003, balloon principal payment of 
$269,000,000 due on March 1,2008. . . ...... ... .. ... 209,041,552 186,041,542 

Notes payable, varying rates (2.9% to 8.8675% at December 
31, 2(00) ... .. ...... . ....... .. ..... .. ..... ... 231,662 225.792 

284.273.214 318,267,334 
Less: current maturities .... .... . . . . . .. ... .... ..... . (2.606.222) (50,176) 

Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $281,666.992 $318.217,158 

Senior Credit Facility 

On February 5, 1999, the Company, through Telecommunications. entered into a new credit facility (the 
"senior credit facility") with a syndicate of lenders which replaced and superceded in its entirety the Credit 
Agreement described below. The senior credit facili ty originally consisted of a $25.0 million tenn loan, which 
was fuUy funded at closing, and a $100.0 million revolving line of credit. The revolving line of credit was 
increased to $150.0 million on March 8. 1999 after receiving me requisite consents from the holders of the L2% 
senior discount notes (the "Notes"). The Company amended me indenture governing me Notes to increase one 
of the categories of permitted indebtedness from $125.0 million to $175.0 million. The senior credit facility also 
provides for letter of credit availability. On December 16, 1999. after receiving me requisite consents from me 
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holders of the Notes. the Company amended the indenture governing the Notes to increase one of the categories 
of indebtedness from $175.0 million to $300.0 million. Simultaneously. Telecommunications amended and 
restated its existing senior credit facility and received commitments to expand total amounlS available under the 
senior credit facility to $300.0 million. The tenn loan portion of the senior credit facility was increased to $75.0 
million and was fully funded at closing. The revolving loan portion of the senior credit facility was increased to 
$225.0 million . . 

Availability under the senior credit facility was determined by a number of factors. including number of 
towers buil t by the Company with anchor tenants on the date of completion. the financial perfonnance of the 
Company's towers. site development and construction segments. as well as by other financial covenants. financial 
ratios and other conditions. The initial tenn loan of $25.0 million and the $225.0 million revolving loan were to 
mature December 31 . 2004 with amortization pursuant to a schedule and reduced availability beginning 
March 31. 200 I. The additional tenn loan of $50.0 million was to mature December 31. 2005 with amortization 
pursuant to a schedule and reduced availability beginning March 31. 2002. Borrowings under the senior credit 
facil ity were to bear interest at the EURO rate plus a margin ranging from 2.25% to 3.50% (determined by a 
leverage ratio) or "base rate" (as defined in the senior credit facility) plus a margin ranging from 1.25% to 2.50% 
(determined by a leverage ratio). The senior credit facility was secured by substantially all of the assets of 
Telecommunications and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. required Telecommunications to maintain certain 
financial covenants, and placed restrictions on. among other things. the incurrence of debt and liens. dispositions 
of assets. transactions with affi liates and certain investmenlS. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2000 the Company borrowed an additional $30.0 million under the senior 
credit facility. In addition. subsequent to December 31 . 2000 the Company used proceeds from our $500.0 
million 10% senior note offering (see Note 16) completed in February 2001. to repay all amounts outstanding 
under the senior credit facility. and terminated the facility. Accordingly. the Company wrote off deferred 
finanCing fees related to the senior credit facili ty and will record a $4.8 million extraordinary loss in connection 
with the tennination of this facility in the first quarter of 2001. 

12% Senior Discount Notes 

1n March. 1998. the Company closed on $269.0 million 12% senior discount notes due March I, 2008. The 
issuance of the Notes netted approximately $150.2 million in proceeds to the Company. The Notes will accrete 
in value until March I. 2003 at which time they will have an aggregate principal amount of $269.0 million. 
Thereafter. interest will accrue on the Notes and will be payable in cash semi-annually in arrears on March 1 and 
September I. commencing September I. 2003. Proceeds from the Notes were used to acquire and construct 
telecommunications lowers as well as for general working capital purposes. 

The 12% senior discount nOles contain numerous restrictive covenants, including but not limited to 
covenants that restrict the Company's ability to incur indebtedness, pay dividends, create liens, sell assets and 
engage in certain mergers and acquisitions. The ability of the Company to comply with the covenants and other 
terms of the 12% senior discount notes and to satisfy its respective debt obligations will depend on the future 
operating performance of the Company. In the event the Company fails to comply with the various covenants 
contained in the 12% senior discount notes it would be in default thereunder. and in any such case. the maturity 
of a portion or all of its long-tenn indebtedness could be accelerated. 

Bank Credit Agreement 

On June 29. 1998. the Company amended and restated its Credit Agreement with a syndicate of banks (the 
''Credit Agreement"). The amended Credit Agreement provided for revolving credit loans of $55.0 million. 
Availability was limited based on a minimum number of owned. leased or managed towers and at a\l times by 
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certain fi nancial conditions and covenants and ratios, and other conditions. The Credit Agreement was scheduled 
to mature on June 29, 2005. This Credit Agreement was replaced and superceded in its entity by the senior credit 
facility in February, 1999. Accordingly, deferred financing fees of approximately $ \.I million were written off 
and are included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as an extraordinary item. 

The Company 's long-term debt at December 31, 2000 matures as follows: 

2001 . ... . . . , . .. .. .. ..... .. ..... .. ... .... ... .. .. . .. . $ 2,606,222 
2002 . ..... . ... ... .... . . . .... . .... .. ... . . ..... .. . . . . 5,550,176 
2003 .. . ... .. ... . . ... . ... ...... .. . ..... . . ... .. .... . . 8,050,176 
2004 . .................... . .. ... . , . . ... .... ........ . 10,525,088 
2005 ... ........... . .... . ..... .. .... . .. . ... . .. ..... . 48,500,000 
Thereafter . ... . . .. .... . ... . . . . . ... . . . ..... ..... ..... . 209,041,552 

Total . . .. : . .. ... . . .. .. . .. . . . ............. . .... . .. . $284,273,214 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The $2.500,000 due to shareholder at December 31, 1999 represents the amount owed [0 the former 
shareholders of Network Services as a result of certain earnings targets for 1999 having been met. The amount 
was paid in full in March 2000. 

10. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

B. Redeemable Preferred Stock 

In 1997, the Company sold 8,050,000 shares of 4% Series A preferred stock, convertible initiaUy into one 
share of the Company 's Class A common stock and one share of the Company's 4% Series B redeemable 
preferred stock, to a syndicate of institutional investors. The Series A preferred stock had a conversion price of 
$3.73 and net proceeds received by the Company from the sale of the shares was approximately $27.0 million 
(nel of approximately $2.4 million of issuance costs charged to retained earnings). 

Each holder of Series A preferred stock had the right to convert his or her shares at any time into one share 
of Class A common stock, subject to certain anti-dilution protection provisions, and one share of Series B 
preferred stock. The Series A preferred stock automatically converted into Class A common stock and Series B 
preferred stock upon initial public offering. 

The holders of outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock were entitled, in preference to the holders of 
any and all other classes of capital stock of the Company, to receive, out of funds legally available therefore. 
cumulative dividends on the Series A preferred stock in cash. at a rate per annum of 4% of the Series A subject 
to pro-ration for partial years. The liquidation amount equals the sum of $3.73 and any accumulated and unpaid 
dividends on the Series A preferred stock. Accrued but unpaid dividends on the Series A preferred stock were 
paid upon the conversion of the Series A preferred stock into Class A common stock and Series B preferred 
stock. On June 21, 1999, the date of the conversion, accrued dividends of approximately $2.8 million were paid 
to the holders of the Series A preferred stock. The Company had accrued the preferred stock dividends on the 
effective interest method over the period from issuance until the scheduled redemption. As a result, in 1999 the 
Company recorded a reduction in the amount of dividends payable of $0.7 million as a result of the early 
conversion and redemption prior to the originally scheduled redemption dale. 
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b. Initial Public Offering 

On June 21 . 1999. the Company completed an initial public offering of 10.0 million shares of its Class A 
common stock. The Company raised gross proceeds of $90.0 million which produced net proceeds. after 
deduction of the underwriting discount and offering expenses. of $82.8 million. The Company used 
approximately $32.8 mi llion of these net proceeds to pay all outstanding dividends on all outstanding shares of 
the Company 's Series A preferred stock and to redeem all shares of the Company's Series B preferred stock. 
The Company also used $46.0 million to repay all revolv ing credit loans under the senior credit facility. 
Remaining pToceeds were used for the construction and acquisition of towers and for general working capital 
purposes. 

On July 19. 1999. the managing underwriters of the Company's initial public offering exercised and closed 
on their over-allotment option to purchase 1.3 million shares of Class A common stock. The Company received 
net proceeds of approximately $10.9 million from the sales of shares, which were sold at the initial public 
offering price of $9.00 per sbare. These net proceeds were also used for the construction and acquisition of 
towers and for general working capital purposes. 

c. OtTering of Common Stock 

In February 2000, the Company completed an equity offering of 9.0 million shares of its Class A common 
stock. The Company raised gross proceeds of $243.0 million. which produced net proceed of approximately 
$229.5 million. after deduction of the underwriting discount and offering expenses. The Company used $70.5 
million of these net proceeds to repay all revolving credit loans under the senior credit facility. Remaining 
proceeds were used for the construction and acquisition of towers and for general working capital purposes. 

In February 2000. the managing underwriters of the equity offering exercised and closed on their over­
allotment option to purchase an additional ).4 million shares of the Company's Class A common stock. Certain 
shareholders along with the Company had granted th is option to the underwriters in connection with !be equity 
offering. These certain shareholders satisfied from their sbareholdings the exercise of the over-allotment option 
in full, resulting in no proceeds to Ihe Company as a result of this exercise. 

In July 2000, the Company filed a universal shelf registration statement on Fonn S-3 with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission registering the sale of up 10 $500.0 miUion of any combination of the following 
securities: Class A common stock, preferred slock, debt securities, depositary shares, or warrants. In 
August 2000, the Company drew down $247.3 miJIion under this universal shelf in connection wi!b an offering 
of 5.8 million shares of its Class A common stock. including 750,000 shares issued upon the exercise of the 
managing underwriter 's over-allotment option. From this offering , the Company raised gross proceeds of $247.3 
million, which produced net proceeds of approximately $236.0 million, after deduction of the underwriting 
discount and offering expenses. The Company used $25.0 million of these net proceeds 10 repay a portion of the 
(enn loans under the senior credit fac ility. Remaining proceeds were used for the construction and acquisition of 
towers and general working capital purposes. As of December 31. 2000. the Company may issue under this 
universal shelf registration statement, any combination of the registered securities. with an aggregate offering 
price of up to $252.7 million. 

d. Registration of Additional Shares in the Year Ended 2000 

During 2000, the Company filed Iwo shelf registration statements on Fonn S-4 with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission registering an aggregate 3.0 million shares of its Class A common stock. These shares 
may be issued in connection with acqUisitions of wireless communication towers or companies that provide 
related services at various locations in the United States. During the year ended December 31. 2000, the 
Company issued 723 .246 shares of its Class A common stock pursuam to these registration stalements in 
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connection with ten acquisitions. Subsequent to December 31. 2000. the Company issued 277.202 shares under 
these registration statements for one acquisition. As of the date of this report. the Company may issue up to 
1,999.552 additional shares under these registration statements. 

e. Exercise of Warrants 

rn February 2000. the holders of warrants exercised, pursuant 10 a cashless option, warrants issued in 1997 
to purchase 402.500 shares of SBA's Class A common stock at an exercise price of $3.73 per share. Pursuant to 
the cashless exercise option, the Company issued 357.387 shares of Class A common stock and the holders 
surrendered warrants to purchase 45.113 additional shares as consideration. 

f. Issuance of Common Stock 

On September 30, 2000, the Company issued 400,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock to tbe 
fonner shareholders of Network Services in accordance with the terms of the acquisition. 

g. Issuance of Restricted Stock 

In September 2000, the Company granted 20,000 shares of Class A common stock pursuant to the 
Company 's 1999 Equity Participation Plan. These restricted shares have a three year vesting period. Deferred 
compensation representing the fair value of the shares on the date of grant was recorded as an adjustment to 
additional paid in capital and compensation expense is being recognized over the vesting period. 

h. Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

In 1999, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted the 1999 Stock Purchase Plan (the "Purchase 
Plan"). A total of 500,000 shares of Class A common stock are reserved for purchase under the Purchase Plan. 
The Purchase Plan permits eligible employee partic lpanls to purchase Class A common stock at a price per share 
which is equal to the lesser of 85% of the fair market value of the Class A common stock on the first or the last 
day of an offering period. As of December 31. 2000. 59.369 shares had been purchased by employees under the 
Purchase Plan. 

11. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS 

In 1996, certain of the Company 's senior executives terminated existing employment, incentive and option 
agreements in exchange for new employment agreements and immediately exercisable options to purchase 
1,425,000 shares of Class A common stock. All of the options are exercisable at $.05 per share. As of 
December 31,2000,248,764 of the initial options remain outstanding. 

The Company has two stock option plans (the 1996 Stock Option Plan and the 1999 Equity Participation 
Plan), whereby options (both non-qualified and incentive stock options), stock appreciation rights and restricted 
stock may be granted to directors, employees and consultants. A total of 6.300,000 shares of Class A common 
stock were initially reserved for issuance under these plans. At December 31. 2000. I ,856.135 shares remained 
for future issuance. These options generally vest over three or four year periods from the date of grant. The 
Company accounts for these plans under APB Opinion No. 25. under which compensation cost is not recognized 
on those issuances where the exercise price equalS or exceeds the market price of the underlying stock on the 
grant date. 

During 1998, 208.419 options to purchase Class A common stock were granted under the 1996 Stock 
Option Plan at exercise prices which the Company believed were below market value. Also during 1998, the 
Company granted 104,961 shares of Class A common stock to two executives and recorded non-cash 
compensation expense which represented the fair value of the shares on the date of grant. 
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During 1999, 881,157 options to purchase Class A common stock were granted under the 1999 Equity 
Participation Plan which the Company believed were below market value at the time of grant All other option 
grants were at or above market value at the time of grant. The Company recorded non-cash compensation 
expense of $312,788, $3 11 ,265 and $678,815 for the years ended December 31, 2000. 1999 and 1998, 
respectively. 

As required by FASB Statement No. 123 ("SFAS 123"), for those options which the Company granted at 
or above fair market value. the Company has determined the pro-forma effect of the options granted had the 
Company accounted for stock options granted under the fair value method of SFAS 123. The Black-Scholes 
option pricing model was used with the following assumptions for 1999 and 1998; risk free inteTest rate of 12%, 
dividend yield of 0%; expected volatility of .00 1 % and expected lives of three years. For 2000 the following 
assumptions were used; risk free interest rare of 10%, dividend yield of 0%, volatility of 86%, and expected 
lives of three years. Had compensation cost for the stock option plan been deteTmined based on fair value at the 
date of grant in accordance with SF AS 123. the Company's pro-forma net loss would bave totaled $(38,277,115), 
$(40,198,079) and $(20,156,126) and pro-forma loss per share would have been S(0.93), $(2.10) and $(2.36) fOT 
the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The effect of applying SFAS 123 in this prl)­
forma disclosure is Dot necessarily indicative of future results. 

A summary of the status of the Company's stock option plans including their weighted average exercise 
price is as follows: 

2000 1999 1998 
Shares Price- - Shares Price Sbares Price 

Outstanding at beginning of year ... . . . . . . . . 3,1 77,194 $ 7.11 1,660,016 $ 2.12 1,797,292 $0.96 
Granted ... . . : .. ...... . .. ....... .. .... ],001.493 36.87 1,740,935 11.12 799,019 2.81 
Exercised/redeemed . ....... ......... ... . (973,569) 3.95 (183,520) 2.63 (775,961) 0.05 
Forfeited/canceled ...... ... ... . ......... (115,462) 24.99 (40,237) 3.90 (160,334) 2.63 

Outstanding at end of year .......... .. .... 3,089,656 $16.97 -­ 3,177.194 $ 7.11 -­ 1,660,016 $2.12 
-­

Options exercisable at end of year . ..... .... 1,172,564 $ 6.29 
-­

1.211,829 $ 3.24 
-­

723,883 $1.45 
-­

Weighted average fair value of options 
granted during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $36.91 - ­ $11.12 -­ $1.81 

-­
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Option groups outstanding at December 31, 2000 and related weighted average exercise price and remaining 
life, in years, information are as follows: 

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING 	 OPTIONS EXERCISABLE 

Weighted 
Average Weighted Weighted

RBngeor Contractual Average Average
Exercise PrIce Outstanding Life Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price 

$ O,(~---$ 0.05 248,764 5.0 $ 0.05 248,764 $ 0.05 
$ 2.63- $ 4.00 484,687 7.2 $ 2.66 335.661 $ 2.67 
$ 8.00-$ 9.75 718.269 3.9 $ 8.14 352.655 $ 8.06 
$10.88- $15.25 704,747 8.9 $ 15.19 232.284 $15.21 
$18.75 5.200 8.7 $ 18.75 0 $ ­
$27.00--$30.88 250.282 8.5 $27.08 3,000 $27.00 
$32.38- $36.38 61.500 9.2 $35.52 0 $ ­
$37.06-$41.94 497.907 9.4 $40.40 200 $37.25 
$43.00-$46.88 91.600 9.4 $44.18 0 $ ­
$50.06-$51.94 26.700 9.4 $50.54 0 $ ­

3.089.656 7.2 $16.97 1.172.564 $ 6.29 

12. 	 INCOME TAXES 

The provision (benefit) for income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations consists of the 
following components: 

For the years ended December 31. 

1000 1999 1998 

Current provision (benefit) for taxes: 
Federal income tax .. .. ..... .. ..... .. ... . $ $( 1.255.510) $( 1.729.384) 
Foreign income tax .. .. .. ... .. .. ... .. ... . 231.462 65,731 
State income tax . ................. .. ... . 1,233,265 801,392 280,408 

Total ..... .... .. . .. ............ .... . . $1,233,265 $ (222,656) $( .1 ,383.245) 

Deferred provision (benefit) for taxes: 

Federal income tax . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (8,156,398) (9,460,748) (123,429) 
State income tax . . .. .. .. ..... . . ..... ... . (l,173.180) (1,597,838 ) (17,632) 
Increase in valuation allowance .... ... . . ... . 9,329,578 11.058,586 

Total .. . .. . . .... ........ . ... .. .. ... . . $1,233,265 $ (222.656) $( 1.524,306) 


A reconciliation of the provision (benefit) for income taxes at the statutory U.S. Federal tax rate (34%) and 
the effective income tax rate is as follows: 

For the years ended December 31, 

2000 1999 1998 

Statutory Federal expense 
(benefit) ..... .. .. .... . . . ... . ........ . . $(9,401.014) $( II ,836,810) $(7.284.636) 

State income tax . .. .. . . .......... . .... . .. . 39,656 (525.654) (784,569) 
Foreign tax ....... . . .................. . . . 540,744 (40.120) 
Other .. . . .. ........ ... .. .. ............ . 235.611 540,478 261,824 
Goodwill amortization .. . .. ...... .. ...... . . 1,029,434 
Valuation allowance .. .. .. . .... . .... . .. .. . . 9.329,578 11,058.586 6,323,195 

$1,233.265 $(222,656) $( 1.524.306) 
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The components of the net deferred income tax asset (liability) accounts are as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2000 1999 

Allowance for doubtful accounts .. .. ... . . . . . .. ...... . .. . $ 868,421 $ 314,120 
Deferred revenue ... .. . . . ....... . .... .. .... . .. .. .. . . 2.958,100 1.175.516 
Other ............ .... . .. . . ... .. .. . .... . .. . ...... . 208.261 288,057 
Valuation allowance . .. ... . . .. .. . .. .. . .. . . . ... . .. ... . ( 4,034.782) (1,777,693) 

Current deferred tax liabilities ... . .. .. . ... . .... . . ...... . $ $ 

Original issue discount ... . .... . . . .. .. . . ... .......... . $ 22,596.166 $ 13,580,162 
Net operating loss ..... .. . .... ... . . .. ..... .. ..... ... . 15.938,424 3,819,561 
Employee stock compensation ................. . . ... ... . 1,772,652 
Book VS. tax depreciation . .. ... .. ....... . .. .... ... ... . (26,869.448) (11,651,792) 
Other .. .. . .... . . .. ...... . . .. ... .... . . . .... .. . ... . 1,057,995 201,383 
Valuation allowance ... . .. . .... . . .. .. .. . ........... . . (31 ,167,703) (1 5,672,420) 

Non-current deferred tax liabilities .. .. .. . .. ........ . ... . . $( 18,444,566) $( 7.950.454) 

In connection with the acqu.isition of certain towers during 2000 and 1999, the Company recorded deferred 
tax liabilities and goodwill of $10.5 million and $4.6 million. respectively, related to the book/tax basis 
differences in the acquired towers. 

The Company has recorded a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as management believes that it is 
not "more likely than not" that the Company will be able to generate sufficient taxable income in future periods 
to recognize the assets. 

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

a. Operating Leases 

The Company is obligated under various non-cancelable operating leases for land. office space, vehicles 
and equipment, and site leases that expire at variou limes through September, 2093. The annual minimum lease 
payments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2000 are as follows: 

2001 . . . .... . . . .. . . . . . .. .. . . ... .... . .... ... . $ 25.702.727 
2002 . ... . .. . . . .. .. ... . . .. ... . . .. .. .. . .. ... . 24,982,348 
2003 .. . .... . . . . . .. . . . . . .. . ... . .. . .... ..... . 24,480,554 
2004 .. ... . . .... .. . .. . . . .. . .... .. .... . ..... . 21,007,7 15 
2005 ... .. .. ..... .. .. . . . .... . .. .... ... ..... . 13,858,393 
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 62,316.527 

Total .. . .. . .... .. ....... .. . ... . .. ..... ... . $172,348,264 


Principally, all of the leases provide for renewal at varying escalations. Leases providing for fixed rate 
escalations have been reflected above. 

Rent expense for operating leases was $16.993,303. $12,778,099, and $10.834.234 for the years ended 
December 31. 2000, 1999 and 1998. respectively. 
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b. Tenant Leases 


The annual minimum tower space income to be received for tower space and antenna rental under non ­

cancelable operating leases as of De ember 31, 2000 are as follows: 

2001 ... .... ... . .. . ........................ . $ 72,128,373 
2002 . .. .. . . ... ..... . . .. . ............ . ..... . 72,087,503 
2003 . .. . . .. ..... .. . . . .. . . . .. .. .. .. ........ . 68,11 7,939 
2004 ...... . ...... . .. .. . .. . . ... . . .... ... ... . 58,183,932 
2005 .. ... .. .. ..... .. .. . . . ..... . . .. .... . ... . 33,268,968 
Thereafter . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 55,158,316 

Total ..... ... . ... .. . . ... . . .... . . . ..... . . . . $358,945,031 

Principally, all of the leases provide for renewal at varying escalations. Leases providing for fixed rate 
escalations have been reflected above. 

c. Employment Agreements I 
The Company has employment agreements with certain officers of the Company wbich grant these 

employees the right to receive their base salary and continuation of certain benefits in the event of a tennination 
(as defined by the agreement of such employees). 

d. Litigation 

The Company is involved in various claims, lawsuits and proceedings arising in the ordinary course of 
business. While there are uncertainties inherent in the ultimate outcome of s.uch mallers and it is impossible to 
presently detennioe the ultimate costs that may be incurred, management believes the resolution of such 
uncertainties and the incurrence of such costs will not have a material adverse effect 00 the Company 's 
consolidated financial position or results of operations. 
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SBA COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 


NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 


14. SEGMENT DATA 

The Company operates principally in three business segments: site development consulting, site 
development construction, and site leasing. The Company's reportable segments are strategic business units that 
offer different services. They are managed separately based on the fundamental differences in their operations. 
Revenues, gross profit, capital expenditures (including assets acquired through the issuance of the Company 's 
Class A common stock) and identifiable assets pertaining to the segments in which the Company operates are 
presented below: 

For tile years ended December 31, 

2000 1999 1998 

Revenues: 
Site deve lopment~onsulting . ..... .. ... .. . . ..... . . . $ 24,250,982 $ 17,964.006 $ 27,448,910 
Site development~oristruction . ...... . . ... . .. . . .. .. . 91,641,321 42,605,608 19,255,731 
Site leasing .. . ..... .. .. . ......... . . ..... .. ..... . 52,013,366 26.423,121 12,396,268 

$167.905.669 $ 86.992,735 $ 59,100,909 

Gross profit: 
Site developmenl~onsulting .. . .. . . ... .. . . . . ... ... . $ 8,624.855 $ 5,546,475 $ 5,552,140 
Site development~onstruction . ... ... . ... . ... ..... . . 18.375,072 9.218,586 4,652,521 
Site leasing ..................... . . ..... . .. . .... . 32,511,407 14,289,443 5,115,482 

$ 59,511,334 $ 29.054,504 $ 15,320,143 

Capital expenditures: 
Site development~onsulting .... . . . .... . . .. ... .. .. . $ 1.488.937 $ 6.971 ,008 $ 21,565 
Site development~onstruction .. . .. . . ..... .. .. .. . .. . 25,569,547 28,185,007 119,285 
Site leasing .... .. . . ............ . . . . ... . . . . ..... . 465,399,827 189,778.740 137,274,109 
Assets not identified by segment ...... . . ..... .. . . ... . 1,594,706 1.635.270 708.825 

$494,053.017 $226,570,025 $138,123,784 

As of Decmlber 31, 

2000 1999 

Assets: 
Site development~onsulting . ... ...... .. ...... ... . . $ 14,248,205 $ 22,418,344 
Site development~onstruction . ... . ..... . .. . ....... . 99,961,668 48,519,024 
Site leasing ... . ... . ... .. . .. .. .. .... . ........... . 815,659,797 338,722,978 
Assets not identified by segment .... .. ..... .. ....... . 19,341.481 20,162,880 

$949.211,151 $429,823,226 

IS. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unaudited) 

Quarters £Oded 

Dec. 31, 2000 Sept. 30, 2000 June 30, 2000 March 31, ZOOO 

Revenues ..... . . . . ..... . . ..... .. ... .. . . . $53,578,755 $45,395,003 $38,502,886 $30.429,025 
Gross profit .. .. . .... .. . . .. . ... . . ....... . 18,562,646 16,560, 155 13,394.499 10,994.034 
Net loss .......... . . ..... . . ............ . (5,378,933) (5,905,328) (7,907,627) (9,723,417) 
Basic and diluted loss per common share ....... . $ (0.12) $ (0.28) $ (0.20) $ (0.27) 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Quarters Ended 

Dec. 31, 1999 SepL 30, 1999 June 30, 1999 Marcb 31,1999 

Revenues .... . . . ..... ... .... ... .. ..... . . $29,260,169 $24,61 0,993 $19,405,272 $13,716.301 
Gross profit ... .. ..... .... . .. ..... .. ... . . 9,758,139 7,922,608 6,658,157 4.715,600 
Loss before extraordinary item 
and preferred stock dividends ... ..... .. ... .. . (9.514.500) (7,985,681) (8,734,089) (7,207,268) 
Net loss . .... . .. ..... .. ..... .. . . . ...... . (9,51 4.500) (7 ,985.681) (7.288,1 86) (9,069.722) 
Basic and diluted loss per common share 
before extraordinary item ... . ....... ....... . $ (0.33) $ (0.14) $ (0.64) $ (0.88) 
Basic and diluted loss per common share . . . . . .. . $ (0.33) $ (0.14) $ (0.64) $ (1.01) 

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

a. Issuance of lOlA % Senior Notes 

Subsequent to December 31, 2000 the Company borrowed an additional $30.0 million under the senior 
credit facility revolver. In February 2001, the Company issued $500.0 million of its 101/4% senior notes due 
2009. which produced net proceeds of approximately $484.2 million after deducting offering expenses. The 
Company used $105.0 million of these proceeds to repay all borrowings under the senior credit facility, and 
terminated the senior credit agreement. The Company wrote off the deferred financing fees relating to the senior 
credit facility and will record a $4.8 million extraordinary loss in the first quarter of 2001 in connection with the 
termination of this facility. On March 16,2001, the Company used $66.5 million of the remaining proceeds to 
purchase 203 towers under our agreement with TeleCorp PCS. Inc. The Company intends to use approximately 
$23.6 million of the remaining proceeds to purcbase the remaining 72 towers under our agreement with TeleCorp 
PCS. Inc. and approximately $54.1 milJion to purchase 173 towers from Louisiana Unwired, Inc., a subsidiary 
of US Unwired, Inc. The remaining proceeds win be used to finance the construction and acquisition of 
additional towers and related businesses and for general working capital purposes. 

b. Issuance of Options 

In January 200 I, the· Company entered into bonus agreements with certain executives and employees to 

issue up to 592,500 shares. or options to acquire shares, of the Company's Class A common stock. Accordingly, 
the Company expects to record approximately $3.2 million of non-cash compensation expense in 200 I. and $1.2 
million in non-cash compensation expense in each year from 2002 through 2006. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON SCHEDULE 

We have audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, the 
consolidated financial statements of SBA Communications Corporation, and have issued our reports thereon 
dated February 20. 200 I. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on those consolidated 
financial statements taken as a whole. The schedule listed in the index of consolidated financial statements is the 
responsibility of the Company's management and is presented for purposes of complying with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission rules and is not part of the basic consolidated financial statements. This schedule has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in 
our opinion, fairly states in all material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to 
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

West Palm Beach, Florida 
February 20, 2001 (except with respect to 

the matters discussed in Note 16. as to 
which the date is March 16.2(01). 
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SBA COMMUNIC ATIONS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

SCHEDULE II 
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

Additions 
Balaoce at 

Beginniog al 
Peri.od 

C harged 10 
Costs and 

Expenses(1) 

Deduction 
From 

Reserves(2) 
Balance at 

End or Period 

Allowance for Doubtful AccounlS For the Years Ended: 
December 31 . 2000 .. . . . .. ... .. . ... . .... ... . . $ 785.299 $ 1.663.174 $331.129 $ 2.117,344 
December 31. 1999 .. ... .... . . . .... ... .. .... . $ 436,671 $ 492,101 $143,473 $ 785,299 
December 31. 1998 . ...... .. ... ... . ... .. . . .. . $ 508,268 $ 282,463 $354.060 $ 436,671 

Tax. Valuation Account For the Years Ended: 
December 31. 2000 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . $17,450,113 $17.752.372 $ $35.202.485 
December 31. 1999 .. ....... .. .... .. .. . . . . .. . $ 6.323.195 $11.126.918 $ $17 ,450,113 
December 31. 1998 .. . .... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ $ 6.323,195 $ $ 6,323.195 

(I ) For tax. valuation account. amounlS include adjustments for stock option compensation. 
(2) Represents accounts written off. 
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EXHIBIT B 

BIOGRAPHIES 

SBA has assembled an expelienced team of industry professionals to achieve its 
mission of market leadership. The following summaries and resumes highlight 
management's extensive background: 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Steven E. Bernstein , founder of the Company, has been Chainnan and Chief Executive 
Officer of the parent company since its inception in 1989. From 1986 to 1989, Mr. 
Bernstein was employed by McCaw Cellular Communications ("McCaw"). While at 
McCaw, Mr. Bernstein was responsible for the development of the initial Pittsburgh 
cellular system and the start up of the Pittsburgh sales network. Mr. Bernstein is a 
graduate of the University of Florida, where he majored in Real Estate and earned a 
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. He earned the Personal 
Communications Industry Association's 1996 Entrepreneur of the Year Award and was a 
1995 and 1996 Florida Entrepreneur of the Year Finalist. 

President 
Jeffrey A. Stoops, President and director, joined the parent company, SBA, Inc., in 
March 1997, initially as Senior Vice President responsible for finance, capital market 
activities, mergers and acquisitions and legal matters of the company. In December 1998 
Mr. Stoops was appointed Chief Financial Officer and in Aplil 2000 he was appointed 
President. As President, Mr. Stoops is responsible for all day-to-day operations of the 
company. Prior to joining the company, Mr. Stoops was partner with Gunster, Yoakley, 
Valdes-Fauli & Stewart, a Florida based law finn, where he practiced for thirteen years in 
the corporate, securities and mergers and acquisitions areas. Mr. Stoops is a member of 
the Florida Bar. 

Chief Operating Officer 
Rona1d G. Bizick, II, Chief Operating Officer- United States Development, joined SBA, 
Inc., in February 1990 shortly after its inception and has been an executive officer since 
1993. Mr. Bizick is responsible for all of our development activities in the entire United 
States. He has held a variety of key executive positions at the company. Most recently, 
Mr. Bizick was responsible for all company operations, sales, marketing and strategic 
asset development in the eastern United States. Prior to joining SBA, Mr. Bizick was 
employed by a private land planning and development finn specializing in commercial 
and residential wetland, subdivision and zoning approvals. Mr. Bizick holds a Bachelor 
of Arts degree in Business and Communications from the University of Pittsburgh. 



Executive Vice President - International 
Michael N. Simkin, Executive Vice President- International, joined the parent company 
in April 1998 and has been an executive officer of SBA, Inc. since beginning his 
employment. Mr. Simkin is responsible for heading up the company's international 
efforts. Most recently, Mr. Simkin was responsible for all company operations, sales, 
marketing and strategic asset development in the western United States. Mr. Simkin has 
fifteen years of wireless industry experience. From July 1997 to February 1998, he was 
Chief Executive Officer of Centennial Communications Corporation, an international 
specialized mobile radio service provider based in Denver. From April 1995 to April 
1997, Mr. Simkin was Vice President and General Manager of Prime Co Personal 
Communications for the South Florida Region. Prior to his service with PrimeCo, Mr. 
Simkin held various management positions with Airtouch Communications including 
Executive Director-Strategic Planning and Vice President of Airtouch Paging. Mr. 
Simkin earned an AB in Economics and an MBA degree from the University of 
California at Berkley. 

Vice President-Operations and Chief Technical Officer 
John S. Stevens, P.E., has a broad array of experience in the telecommunications 
industry having successfully managed programs at both large and start-up industry 
leaders. Prior to his service at SBA, Mr. Stevens served as Director of Engineering and 
Operations for Sprint PCS in the initial design and development of PCS markets in 
Albany and Syracuse, New York, Connecticut and Atlanta, Georgia. Mr. Stevens has a 
BS in Engineel1ng from the University of Colorado and an MBA from the State 
University of New York. He is also a licensed professional engineer. 

Vice President Engineering and Operations 
J. Allen Tharp has twelve years of experience in the telecommunications industry. He 
has held the position of Network Design Manager in the Bilmingham and Atlanta 
markets for Sprint PCS. He also held the position of Area Manager of Engineering and 
Operations. Most recently he served as the Technology Development Director for 
Southern LINC, researching, testing and approving all new technology implemented in 
the iDEN systems. Mr. Tharp has a BS in Electrical Engineering from Auburn 
University. 

Director of Technical Services 
Paul L. Clewell has seven years experience in the telecommunications industry. He has 
held the position of Network Design Engineer and Wireless Switching Engineer in the 
Atlanta market for Sprint PCS. He has also served as consultant to AT&T Emerging 
Technologies Research and Development group. Most recently he served as Projects 
Director for Mastec Technologies. Mr. Clewell has a dual B.S. in Economics and 
InfOlmation Systems and is also a certified Project Manager. 



Director of Network Design 
John W. Brannon has extensive experience in the telecommunications industry. He has 
held the position of Senior Engineer in New Technology and Planning for Southern 
LINC, developing and researching new technology. He has also served as Network 
Design Engineer for Sprint PCS. Mr. Brannon's background includes experience in 
engineering and operations for wireless networks, as well as involvement in the design 
and deployment of wireless networks . Mr. Brannon has a BS in Electrical Engineering 
from the University of Alabama at Birmingham. 

Director of Network Operations 
Ronald A. Brady has 13 years experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. 
Brady has held the position of Circuit Actions manager as a Non-Commissioned Officer 
in the United States Air Force as well as various other engineering positions in the United 
States and abroad. Most recently he has served as a Project Manager/Engineering Lead 
for Southern LINC, developing, researching, testing and approving all new technology 
implemented in the iDEN system. Mr. Brady has an AS in Computer Science from 
Jefferson State Community College and holds a current FCC General Radio Telephone 
Operator's license. 
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SBA Broadband Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. I 
Original Title Page I 

REGULATIONS RATES AND SCHEDULE 


OF CHARGES APPLICABLE TO 


INTRASTATE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 


FURNISHED BY 


SBA BROADBAND SERVICES, INC. 


BETWEEN POINTS 


WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA 


AS PROVIDED FOR HEREIN. 


Service is provided by means of wire, radio, terrestrial or satellite facilities or any combination 
thereof, as specified herein. 

A copy of this Tariff is on file with the Florida Public Service Commission. 

A copy of this Tariff is available for review during normal business hours at the Company's 
principal place of business located at One Town Center Road - Third Floor, Boca Raton, 
Florida 33486. 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued By: 

John S. Stevens, P.E. 

Chief Technical Officer 


One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

Boca Raton, FL 33486 
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CHECK SHEET 

Pages inclusive of this tariff as of the date shown: 
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18 
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Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

SHEET 

19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 

REVISION 

Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

Effective:Issued: 

Issued By: 

John S. Stevens, P.E. 

Chief Technical Officer 


One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

Boca Raton, FL 33486 
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Original Page 3 

Description 

Check Sheet 

Table of Contents 

Tariff Format 

Explanation of Symbols 


Section 1.0 - General 
1.1 
1.2 

Section 2.0 - Rules and Regulations 
2.1 
2.2 
2.3 
2.4 
2.5 
2.6 
2.7 
2.8 
2.9 
2.10 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Application of Tariff 
Definitions 

Undertaking of the Company 
Obligations of the Customer 
Liabilities of the Company 
Service Orders 
Charges and Payments for Service Facilities 
Termination or Denial of Service by the Company 
Special Services 
Special Pricing Arrangements 
Special Construction 
Inspection, Testing and Adjustment 

Sbeet Number 

2 
3 
4 
5 

6 
6 
6 

10 
10 
10 
13 
13 
14 
18 
20 
21 
21 
22 

Section 3.0 - General Classification and Description of Services 23 
3.1 
3.2 
3.3 
3.4 
3.5 
3.6 
3.7 

Section 4.0 - Rates and Charges 
4 .1 
4.2 
4.3 
4.4 
4.5 
4.6 

23 

Measurements 
Service Points 

23 
Timing and Billing Increments of Calls 23 

Reserved for Future Use 24 

TI Service 24 

T3 Service 24 
24OC-3 Service 
25 

Returned Check Charge 25 

Rate Schedules 25 
Discounts for Hearing Impaired Customers 26 
Reserved for Future Use 26 
Operation of Telecommunications Relay Service 26 

Promotional Discounts 26 

Reserved For Future Use 27 

Effective:Issued: 

Issued By: 

John S. Stevens, P.E. 

Chief Technical Officer 


One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

Boca Raton, FL 33486 
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TARIFF FORMAT 

A. 	 Sheet Numbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Sheets are 
numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the Tariff. When a new 
sheet is added between pages already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet 
added between pages 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. 	 Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. 
These numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file with the Commission. 
For example, the 4th Revised Page 14 cancels the 3rd Revised Page 14. Because of various 
suspension periods, deferrals, etc ., the Florida Public Service Commission follows in their tari ff 
approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the 
tariff page in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect. 

C. 	 Paragraph Numbering Sequence - there are five levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding 
is subservient to its next higher level: 

2. 
2.1 
2.1.1 
2.1.1.1 
2. 1. I.1.A 
2.1.1.I.A.l 
2.1 .1.I.A.l.(a) 
2. 1. I.1.A. l.(a).I 
2.1.1 .1.A.1.(a).I.(i) 

2.1.1.I.A . I.(a).I.(i).1 


D. 	 Check Sheets - When a tariff filing is made with the Florida Public Service Commission, an 
updated check sheet accompanies the tariff filing. The check sheet lists the sheets contained in 
the tariff, with a cross-reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the 
check sheet is changed to reflect the revision . An asterisk (*) designates all revisions made in a 
given filing . There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes made 
to it (i.e., the format, etc. rema ins the same, just revised revision levels on some pages) . The tariff 
user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current on 
with the Florida Public Service Commission. 

Issued: 	 Effective : 

Issued By: 

Jolm S. Stevens, P.E. 

ChiefTeclmicalOfficer 


One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

Boca Raton, FL 33486 
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EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS 

D- Delete or Discontinue 
1­ Change Resulting in an Increase to a Customer's Bill 
M­ Moved from Another Tariff Location 
N­ New 
R­ Change Resulting in a Reduction to a Customer's Bill 
T- Change in Text or Regulation But No Change to Rate or Charge 

Effective:Issued : 

Issued By: 

John S. Stevens, P.E. 

Chief Technical Officer 


One Town Center Road - Third Floor 

Boca Raton, FL 33486 




SBA Broadband Services, Inc. Florida Tariff No. I 
Original Page 6 

SECTION 1.0 - GENERAL 

1.1 	 Application of Tariff 

1.1.1 	 This Tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to the provision of 
intrastate telecommunications service by SBA Broadband Services, Inc., 
hereinafter referred to as the "Company", from its points of presence in 
the State of Florida to other points in the state. Service is furnished 
subject to the availability of facilities and subject to transmission, 
atmospheric and like conditions. 

1.1.2 	 The provision of such service by the Company as set forth in this Tariff 
does not constitute a joint undertaking with the Customer for the 
furnishing of any service. 

1.2 	 Definitions 

Certain terms used throughout this Tariff are defined as follows: 

1.2.1 	 Application for Service 

A standard order form which includes all pertinent billing, technical, and 
other descriptive information which will enable the Company to provide 
the service as required. 

1.2.2 	 Authorization Code 

A numerical code, one or more of which may be assigned to a Customer to 
enable the Company to identify the origin of the user or individual users or 
groups of users on one account so that the Company may rate and bill the 
call. 

1.2.3 	 Commission 

The Florida Public Service Commission. 

1.2.4 	 Company 

SBA Broadband Services, Inc. 

Issued: 	 Effective: 
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1.2.5 Consumer 

A person initiating any intrastate telephone call. 

1.2.6 Customer 

Any individual, partnership, association, trust, corporation, cooperative or 
governmental agency or other entity which utilizes the services provided 
by the Company on a subscription basis. A Customer, as set forth herein, 
is responsible for the payment of charges and for compliance with all 
applicable tenllS of the Company's Tariff. 

1.2.7 Customer Provided Equipment 

Terminal Equipment or facilities provided by persons other than the 

Company and connected to the Company's services and/or facilities. 


1.2.8 Dialed Access 

An arrangement whereby a Customer uses the public switched network 
facilities of a local exchange telephone company to access the terminal of 
the Company. 

1.2.9 Domestic Message Telecommunications Services (MTS) 

The term "Domestic Message Telecommunications Service" denotes the 
furnishing of station-to-station direct dial Intrastate switched network 
services to the Customer for the completion oflong distance voice 
transmissions from the Company's points of presence to domestic points 
as specified herein. 

Issued: Effective: 
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l.2.10 Equal Access 

Has the meaning given that term in Appendix B of the Modification of 
Final Judgment entered August 24,1982, in United States v. Western 
Electric, Civil Action No. 82-0192 (United States District Court, District 
of Columbia), as amended by the Court in its orders issued prior to 
October 17, 1990. 

1.2.11 Equal Access Code 

An access code that allows the public to obtain an Equal Access 
connection to the can'ier associated with that code. 

1.2.12 Local Exchange Carrier (LEC) 

A telephone company that furnishes local exchange services. 

1.2.13 Measured Usage Charge or Measured Charge 

A charge assessed on a per-minute basis in calculating all or a portion of 
the charges due for a completed call over the Company's facilities . 

1.2.14 Other Common Carrier 

The term "Other Common Carrier" denotes a common carrier, other than 
the Company, providing domestic or international communications service 
to the public. 

1.2.15 Premise 

The space designated by a Customer as its place or places of business for 
provision of service or for its own communications needs. 

Issued: Effective: 
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1.2.16 Service 


The offerings by the Company to the Customer under this Tariff. 
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SECTION 2.0 - RULES AND REGULATIONS 

2.1 	 Undertaking of the Company 

2.1.1 	 Scope 

The Company is a carrier providing intrastate domestic communications 
services to Customers for their direct transmission of voice, data and other 
types of telecommunications within the State of Florida as described in 
this Tariff. 

2.1.2 	 Limitations 

2.1.2.1 The services provided pursuant to this Tariff are offered subject to 
the availability of facilities and the other provisions of this Tariff. 

2.1.2.2 The Company does not undertake 	to transmit communications or 
messages, but rather furnishes facilities, service and equipment for 
such transmissions by the Customer. 

2.1.2.3 The 	 Company retains the right to deny service to any new 
Customer which fails to comply with the rules and regulations of 
this Tariff, or other applicable rules, regulations or laws. 

2.2 	 Obligations of the Customer 

2.2.1 	 All Customers assume general responsibilities in connection with the 
provision and use of the Company's service. General responsibilities are 
described in this section. When facilities, equipment, and/or 
communication systems provided by others are connected to the 
Company's facilities, the Customer assumes the additional responsibilities 
as set forth in Section 2.2 herein. 
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2.2 .2 	 The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for any and all 
services or facilities provided by the Company to the Customer. 

2.2.3 	 Subject to availability, the Customer may use specific codes to identify the 
users groups on its account and to allocate the cost of its service 
accordingly. The numerical composition of such codes shall be set forth 
by the Company to assure compatibility with the Company's accounting 
and automation systems and to avoid duplication of such specific codes. 

2.2.4 	 The Customer shall indemnify and save harmless the Company from and 
against all loss, liability, damage and expense, including reasonable 
counsel fees , due to claims for libel, slander, or infringement of copyright 
or trademark in connection with any material transmitted by the Customer 
using the Company's services; and any other claim resulting from any act 
or omission of the Customer regarding the use of the Company's facilities . 

2.2.5 	 Nothing contained herein, or in any other provision ofthis Tariff or in any 
marketing materials issued by the Company shall give any Customer or 
person any ownership interest or proprietary right in any particular code 
issued by Company; provided, however, that a Customer that continues to 
subscribe to Company's services will be provided a replacement code in 
the event such Customer's initial code is canceled. 

2.2.6 	 The Customer shall reimburse the Company for damages to the 
Company's facilities caused by any negligence or willful act or acts on the 
part of the Customer. 

2.2.7 	 The Customer shall pay and hold the Company harmless from the 
payment of all charges for service ordered by the Customer from the Local 
Exchange Carriers or other entities for telecommunications services and/or 
facilities connecting the Customer and the Company. 

2.2.8 	 In the event a suit is brought by the Company and won, or an attorney is 
retained by the Company to collect any bill or enforce the terms of this 
Tariff against a Customer and Judgment is made for the Company, that 
Customer shall be responsible for payment of all reasonable attorney's 
fees, court costs, costs of investigation and any and all other related costs 
and expenses incurred by the Company in connection therewith. 
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2.2.9 	 The Customer understands that the services are furnished subject to the 
condition that there will be no abuse, fraudulent and/or illegal use thereof. 
Such activity includes, but is not limited to: 

A. 	 Using the service for any purpose which is in violation of any law. 
A customer reselling or rebilling the Company's service must be 
certificated as an interexchange carrier by the Commission. 

B. 	 Obtaining or attempting to obtain services through any scheme, 
false representation and/or use of any fraudulent means or devices 
whatsoever with the intent to avoid payment, in whole or in part, of 
charges for services, or assisting any other person or firm in such 
regard. 

C. 	 Attempting to, or actually obtaining, accessing, altering or 
interfering with the communications and/or information by 
reananging, tampering with or making any cormection with any 
facilities of the Company or assisting any other person or firm in 
such regard. 

D. 	 Using the services in a manner that interferes unreasonably with 
the use of service by one (1) or more other Customers. 

E. 	 Using the service to convey information deemed to be obscene, 
salacious or prurient, to impersonate another person with 
fraudulent or malicious intent, to call another person or persons so 
frequently, at such times, or in such a marmer as to armoy, abuse or 
harass, or to convey information of a nature or in a marmer that 
renders such conveyance unlawful. 

2.2.10 The Customer shall be responsible for all maintenance of such equipment 
and/or facilities. 
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2.3 	 Liabilities of the Company 

2.3.1 	 The liability of the Company for damages resulting in whole or in part 
from or arising in connection with the furnishing of service under this 
Tariff, including but not limited to, mistakes, omissions, interruptions, 
delays, errors or other defects or misrepresentations, shall not exceed an 
amount equal to the charges under this Tariff applicable to the specific call 
(or portion thereof) that was affected. No other liability shall attach to the 
Company. 

2.3.2 	 The Company shall not be liable for any failure of performance hereunder 
due to causes beyond its control, including, but not limited to: (1) acts of 
God, fires, flood or other catastrophes; (2) any law, order, regulation, 
directive, action or request of the United States Government, or any other 
government, including state and local governments having jurisdiction 
over the Company, or of any department, agency, commission, bureau, 
corporation or other instrumentality of anyone or more of said 
governments, or of any civil or military authority; or (3) national 
emergencies, insurrections, riots or wars. 

2.3.3 	 The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission of any other 
entity furnishing facilities, equipment or services used by a Customer, 
with the Company's services. In addition, the Company shall not be liable 
for any damages or losses due to the failure or negligence of any Customer 
or due to the failure of Customer provided equipment, facilities or 
servIces. 

2.4 	 Service Orders 

The Customer must place an application for service with the Company to initiate 
the services provided pursuant to this Tariff. All applications for services must be 
in writing and provide, at a minimum, the following information: 
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2.4.1 	 Customer's names(s), telephone number(s) and addressees). In the case of 
a corporation or partnership, a designated officer or agent shall be named 
as the contact person for such corporation or partnership. 

2.4.2 	 Names(s), addressees) and telephone number(s) ofperson(s) to whom 
notices from the Company to the Customer shall be addressed, if different 
from 2.4.1 above. 

2.4.3 	 The amount of toll service usage the Customer was billed for the two (2) 
months immediately preceding the request for service if such information 
is applicable and available. 

2.5 	 Charges and Payments for Service Facilities 

2.5.1 	 Deposits and Advanced Payments 

A. 	 Deposits - The Company does not accept deposits at this time. 

B. 	 Advanced Payments - The Company will accept advanced payments 
not to exceed one (1) month estimated charges and will apply that 
payment towards the Customer's next month's bill. 

2.5.2 	 Description of Payment and Billing Periods 

A. 	 Service is provided and billed on a monthly basis. Service 
continues to be provided and billed on a monthly basis until 
canceled by the Customer through notice given to the Company. 

B. 	 The Company's name (SBA Broadband Services, Inc.) and the 
Company's toll-free number (for reCeIVIng Inqumes and 
complaints) will appear on the end-user's bills. 
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2.5 .3 	 Taxes, Gross Revenue, Gross Income and Gross Earnings Surcharges 

A. 	 Sales tax is covered by State statute and other applicable taxes may 
be covered by State or Federal statutes. Any applicable taxes will 
be included on Customer bills, as separate line items, in 
accordance with any applicable rules of the state or federal 
regulatory authority. 

B. 	 In addition to all recurring, non-recurring, minImUm, usage, 
surcharges or special charges, the Customer identified in this Tariff 
shall also be responsible for and shall pay all applicable federal, 
state and local taxes or surcharges, including sales, use, excise, 
gross earnings, and gross income taxes. All such taxes shall be 
separately shown as line items and charged on bills rendered by 
Company or its billing agent. Sales and use taxes shall be applied 
to all charges and shall also be applied to all applicable gross 
earnings, gross revenue and gross income taxes. 

2.5.4 	 Payment and Late Payment Charge 

A. 	 Payment will be due as specified on the Customer bill. 
Commencing after that due date, a late charge of up to the highest 
interest rate allowable by law will be applied to all amounts past 
due. (CulTently, the highest allowable rate is one and one half 
percent (1 Y2%) per month.) 

B. 	 Collection procedures are unaffected by the application of a late 
payment charge. The late payment charge does not apply to 
unpaid balances associated with disputed amounts. Undisputed 
amounts on the same bill are subject to the late payment charge if 
unpaid and catTied forward to the next bill. 

c. 	 Service may be denied or discOlmected, with five (5) working days 
notice, at the Company' s discretion for nonpayment of amounts 
due the Company past the due date as specified in 2.5.4.A. 
Restoration will be subject to all applicable installation charges. 
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2.5.5 	 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE 

2.5.6 	 Suspension or Termination for Nonpayment 

In the event of nonpayment of any bill rendered, the Company may, after 
giving five (5) working days written notice, suspend service to the 
Customer. The Company will not suspend service for nonpayment unless 
the payment is at least twenty-nine (29) days past due. 

2.5.7 	 Credit Allowances/Service Interruptions 

A. 	 Credit for interruption of service will be allowed only when the 
interruption is caused by or occurs in the Company's facilities or 
equipment owned, provided and billed for by the Company. A 
credit allowance is not applicable for any period during which 
Customer cannot utilize the service, except for such period where 
the service is interrupted by the Company for access to its facilities 
for the purposes of investigating and clearing troubles and/or 
maintenance. 

B. 	 Credit allowances for interruption of service or equipment starts 
when the Customer notifies the Company of the interruption and 
ceases when the operation has been restored and an attempt has 
been made to notify the Customer by the Company. 

c. 	 The Customer shall notify the Company of interruptions of service 
or equipment and make reasonable attempts to ascertain that the 
interruption is not caused by Customer provided equipment or 
Customer provided facilities, any act, or omission of the Customer, 
or in \viring or equipment connected to the Customer's terminal. 
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D. 	 Only those portions of the service or equipment operation disabled 
will be credited. 

E. 	 Any credit provided to the Customer under this Tariff shall be 
determined in accordance with the provisions of Section 2.5.8. 

2.5.8 	 Service Interruption Measurement 

A. 	 In the event of an interruption of service that exceeds the minimum 
requirements set forth in this paragraph, the Company shall make a 
credit allowance at the Customer's request for a pro rata 
adjustment of all service charges billed by the Company for 
services rendered inoperative by the interruption. The credit 
allowance will be computed by dividing the duration of the service 
interruption measured in twenty-four (24) hour days, from the time 
the interruption is reported to the Company, by a standard thirty 
(30) day month, and then multiplying the result by the Company's 
fixed monthly charges for each interrupted service. 

The credit allowance formula is as follows: 
A x B = Credit Allowance 
720 

A=Duration of service interruptions measured in hours. 

B=Company's fixed monthly charges for each interrupted service. 

A period of time less than six (6) hours shall not be credited. In no 
case shall the credit exceed the total monthly charges. No 
adjustments will be made for periods of noncontinuous 
interruptions, and no other liability shall attach to the Company in 
consideration of such interruption to service. 
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B. 	 A credit allowance will not be given for interruptions caused by 
the negligence or willful act of the Customer, or interruptions 
caused by failure of equipment or service not provided by the 
Company. 

2.6. 	 Termination or Denial of Service by the Company 

2.6.1 	 The Company may, immediately and without notice to the Customer, and 
without liability of any nature, temporarily deny, terminate, or suspend 
service to any Customer: 

A. 	 In the event such Customer or its agent uses Company's equipment 
in a manner as to adversely affect Company's equipment or 
services to others; 

B. 	 In the event of hazardous conditions caused by Customer or 
Customer's tampering with the equipment furnished and owned by 
the Company; or 

C. 	 In the event of unauthorized or fraudulent use of service by 
Customer. Whenever service is disconnected for fraudulent use of 
services the Company may, before restoring service, require the 
Customer to make, at his or her own expense, all changes in 
facilities or equipment necessary to eliminate illegal use and to pay 
an amount reasonably estimated as the loss in revenues resulting 
from such fraudulent use. 
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2.6.2 	 The Company may, with five (5) working days written notice, and without 
liability of any nature, temporarily deny, terminate, or suspend service to 
any Customer: 

A. 	 For a Customer's noncompliance with or violation of the 
Commission's regulations or the Company's rules on file with the 
Commission; 

B. 	 For nonpayment of bills for telephone service, including the 
telecommunications access system surcharge referred to in Rule 
25-4.160(3) of the Flolida Administrative Code. FLA. ADMIN. 
CODE ANN. R 5-4.160(3). Five (5) days written notice to the 
Customer shall not be required in extreme cases. 

2.6.3 	 The Company may refuse or discontinue service under the following 
conditions provided that, unless otherwise stated, the Customer shall be 
given notice and allowed a reasonable time to comply with any rate or 
remedy any deficiency: 

A. 	 For neglect or refusal to provide Company with reasonable access 
for the purpose of inspection or maintenance of equipment owned 
by the Company; 

B. 	 For noncompliance with or violation of any state or municipal law, 
ordinance or regulation pertaining to telephone service; 

C. 	 For the use of service provided by Company for any other property 
or purpose than that described in the application. 
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2.7. 	 Special Services 

2.7.1 	 General 

For the purpose of this Tariff, Special Services are deemed to be any 
service requested by the Customer and provided by the Company for 
which there is no prescribed rate in this Tariff. Special Services charges 
will be developed on an individual case basis (ICB) and may be 
established by contract between the Company and the Customer. Such 
contract or ICB rates will be filed with the Commission for its approval 
one (1) day in advance, if required by applicable rules and regulations. 

2.7.2 	 When Applicable 

Special Services rates apply in the following circumstances: 

A. 	 If at the request of the Customer, the Company obtains facilities 
not normally used by the Company to provide service to its 
Customer; 

B. 	 If at the request of the Customer, the Company provides teclmical 
assistance not normally required to provide service; 

c. 	 Where special signaling, conditioning equipment, or other features 
are required to make Customer provided equipment compatible 
with the Company's service; 

D. 	 When, at the specific request of the Customer, installation by the 
Company or its agent and/or routine maintenance is performed 
outside of the regular business hours. 

E. 	 If installation and/or routine maintenance is extended beyond 
normal business hours at the request of the Customer and these 
circumstances are not the fault of the Company, Special Service 
charges may apply. Such circumstances include, but are not 
limited to, stand-by in excess of one (1) hours, weekend, holiday or 
night time cut-over, and additional installation testing in excess of 
the normal testing required to provide service. 
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2.7.3 Cancellation 

If a Customer orders service requiring special facilities dedicated to the 
Customer's use and then cancels its order before the service begins, before 
completion of any minimum service periods associated with such special 
facilities ordered by the Company or before completion of some other 
period mutually agreed upon by the Customer and the Company, a charge 
will be made to the Customer for the nonrecoverable portions of 
expenditures or liabilities incurred expressly on behalf of the Customer by 
the Company and not fully reimbursed by installation and monthly 
charges. If, based on such an order, any constmction has either begun or 
been completed, but no such service provided, the nonrecoverable cost of 
such constmction shall be borne by the Customer. 

2.8 Special Pricing Arrangements 

Customized service packages and competitive pricing arrangements at negotiated 
rates may be furnished on a case-by-case basis in response to requests by 
Customers for proposals or for competitive bids. Special Pricing Arrangements 
offered under this Tariff will be provided to the Customer pursuant to contract. 
Unless otherwise specified, the regulations for such arrangements are in addition 
to the applicable regulations and prices in other sections of the Tariff. The rates 
and terms of such contracts will be filed with the Commission for approval on one 
(1) day's notice, if required by applicable mles and regulations. 

2.9 Special Constmction 

All rates and charges quoted in this Tariff provide for the furnishing of a 
service when suitable facilities are available or where the constmction of 
the necessary facilities does not involve unusual costs. When the revenue 
to be derived from the service does not warrant the Company assuming the 
unusual costs of providing the necessary constmction, the Customer may 
be required to pay all or a portion of such costs and to contract for the 
service for a sufficient period to warrant the constmction, depending upon 
the circumstances in each case. The Company's charges for such special 
constmction shall follow the same guidelines for establishing charges for 
Special Pricing Arrangements as described in Section 2.8 of this Tariff. 
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2.10 Inspection, Testing and Adjustment 

2.10.1 

The Company may, upon reasonable notice, make such tests and inspections as 
may be necessary to investigate the installation, operation or maintenance of the 
Customer's or the Company's equipment or connecting facilities. The Company 
may interrupt service at any time, without penalty or liability to itself, where 
necessary to prevent improper use of service, equipment, facilities or connections. 

2.10.2 

Upon reasonable notice, the facilities and equipment provided by the Company 
shall be made available to the Company for such tests and adjustments as may be 
necessary for its maintenance in a condition satisfactory to the Company. No 
interruption allowance will be granted for the time during which such tests and 
adjustments are made, unless such interruption exceeds four (4) hours in length. 
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SECTION 3.0 - GENERAL CLASSIFICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

3.1 Service Points 

The Company provides long distance communications to customers for direct 
transmission of telecommunications throughout the State of Florida. 

3.2 Measurements 

SBA offers Flat Rate Service and mileage sensitive service. 

3.3 Calculation of Distance 

Usage charges for all mileage sensitive products are based on the airline distance 

between the serving wire center locations associated with the originating and 

terminating points of the call. The distance between the originating and terminating 

points is calculated by using the "V" and "H" coordinates of the serving wire centers 

as defined by BellCore (Bell Communications Research), in the following manner: 


Step 1 - Obtain the "V" and "H" coordinates for the serving wire center of the 

originating and the destination points. 

Step 2 - Obtain the difference between the "V" coordinates of each of the wire 

centers. Obtain the difference between the "H" coordinates. 

Step 3 - Square the differences obtained in Step 2. 

Step 4 - Add the squares of the "V" difference and "HI! difference obtained in Step 3. 

Step 5 - Divide the sum of the square obtained in Step 4 by ten (10). Round to the 

next higher whole number if any fraction results from the division. 

Step 6 - Obtain the square root of the whole number obtained in Step 5. Round to 

the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the distance 

between the originating and terminating serving wire centers of the call. 


Formula: / 

/ (V,-V2)2+(H,-H2/ 


\ / ------------------- ­

V 10 
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3.4 	 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE 

3.5 	 T1 Service 

The Company provides access through a digital transmission link with a capacity 
of 1.544 million bits per second. 

3.6 	 T3 Service 

The Company provides access at a capacity of 44.736 million bits per second. 

3.7 	 OC-3 Service 

The Company provides access through a fiber-optic link with capacity of 155.52 
million bits per second. 
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SECTION 4.0 - RATES AND CHARGES 

4.1 	 Returned Check Charge 

Customers whose payment by check is returned for insufficient funds, or is 
otherwise not processed for payment, will be subject to a returned check charge. 
Such charge will be applicable on each occasion when a check is returned or not 
processed. 

Per Occasion $20.00 

4.2 	 Rate Schedules 

4.2.1 	 T1 Service Rates 


I $600.00 per month - $3,200.00 per month 


4.2.2 T3 Service Rates 

I $9,000.00 per month - $45,000.00 per month 

4.2 .3 OC-3 Service Rates 

I $30,000.00 per month - $120,000.00 per month 
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4.3 Discounts for Hearing Impaired Customers 

The Company currently does not offer time-of-day rates. However, in the event 
that this changes, intrastate toll message rates for TDD users, which is 
communicated using a telecommunications device for the deaf (TDD) by properly 
certified business establishments or individuals equipped with TDDs for 
communications with hearing or speech impaired persons, shall be evening rates 
for daytime calls and night rates for evening and night calls. 

4.4 RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE 

4.5 Operation of Telecommunications Relay Service 

Intrastate toll calls received from the relay service will be discounted by 50 
percent of the applicable rate for a voice non-relay call except that where either 
the calling or called party indicates that either party is both hearing and visually 
impaired, the call will be discounted 60 percent off the applicable rate for a voice 
non-relay call. The above discounts apply only to time-sensitive elements of a 
charge for the call and shall not apply to per call charges such as a credit card 
surcharge. 

4.6 Promotional Discounts 

The Company may from time to time offer promotional discounts. Such 
discounts will be for a specified period of time, will not exceed published rates, 
and will be offered to all qualifying Customers on a non-discriminatory basis, 
under any rules prescribed by the Commission. The promotional discounts will 
be approved by the Florida Public Service Commission with specific starting and 
ending dates, and will be made part of this tariff. 
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RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE 
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